LOO7

TERRELL FAMILY

By

Nellie F. Ayres

Terrellsto 1300 BC

Preserved and distributed by:
Terrell Society of America, Inc.
128 20" Ave NW
Cairo, GA 31728-1017
terrell @mail.caironet.com
http//www.caironet.com/terrell/index.htm



Since the writing of TERRELL FAMILY by Nellie F. AYRES records have been discovered that prove some of the information on
pages 1 & 2to beincorrect. Please note the following differences

Comments by L awr ence L eStour geon; Charlotte NC ; June 1988
Page 1:
“Richmond and William were the sons of William TYRRELL.” Not true. They were the sons of Robert TYRRELL, Councilor of
Reading and Jane BALDWIN. Richmond was baptized 17 October, 1624; William was baptized 22 June, 1629.

Page 2:

Richmond and William TERRELL were both LARGE landownersin Virginia” Not True. Richmond was alarge landowner.
Thereis NO record of William owning any land in Virginia except the 100 acres given to him by his brother, Richmond. William
apparently sold his 100 acres as soon as he could. Remember that Richmond came to Virginiain 1656. No William owned land
until 1714. William, Richmond's brother was then 85 years old. It isimprobable that William would buy hisfirst land at age 85.
Thereis no proof that he wasin Virginia. Thereis proof that he was in London in the mercantile business in the late 1600s.

Richmond TERRELL could get 50 acres of land for each passenger that he brought from England to (now) America. Records prove
that he paid passage several times for his brother, Robert and several other people too.

The chart in Joseph TYRRELL’s original 1904 book does not show William or Bryn asa son of George TYRRELL. BUT the chart
in Joseph TYRELL’s 1910 American Supplement does show William of Bryn as a younger son of George.

Additional Comments
All genealogical treatises are founded upon a combination of the information available to the researcher and the theory that he/she
favors at the time. Most of us reach (jump to?) conclusions that are not supported by adequate documentation.

Richmond claimed land for having paid passage for one William TERRELL. Truth isthat we do not know that this William was the
brother of Richmond. Some descendants believe that the William transported by Richmond was his nephew, son of his brother,
William — merchant of London. Initially researchers believed that William, brother of Richmond married Susannah [WATERS?].
Later researchers, including our late VP Mr. Jeddie Mack TERRELL believed that Susannah married William, nephew of Richmond
and son of William of London. | have not seen any documentation to prove either of these, or that the maiden name of Susannah
was in fact WATERS.

Research in England by the TYRRELL FAMILY HISTORY SOCIETY in the mid-1990s uncovered wills that [at least to my
satisfaction] prove that Robert of Reading descended from Rabert and Agnes of Hagbourne — not from George TYRRELL of
Thornton manor. There is a possibility that both Robert of Hagbourne and George of Thornton had the same common ancestor, but
the TFHS researchers have not been able to document the line beyond Robert of Hagbourne.

Joseph TYRRELL’s 1904 book dealt with his on personal line—the IRISH TYRRELLS! | do not know that he fabricated the 1910
supplement to humor Edwin Holland TERRELL, but the possibility does exist. Regardless, TYRRELL did not provide any
documentation to prove the paternity of either Robert TYRRELL of Reading for William TYRRELL of Bryn.

Published genealogies are fit for use only as leads to locate source documents (if any still exist). Only you can decide: what to
believe; what to try to verify; and what to either discount or discard.

Dan Brinson August 2000



THE TERRELL FAMILY

Notes compiled by

Nellie F. Ayres

Memphis, Tennessee

August 1. 1946

This collection of notes on the Terrell
Tamily is compiled from several sources. To quote
from Montaign's Essays, "As one might say of me
+-at I have only made here a collection »f cther
people's flowers, having provided notning of my
~<n but the cord to bind them together.’

I am indebed to Miss Maud McLure Xelly, of
Birmingham, Alabama for most of fthe origiral re-
search in North Carolina County Records. !Miss
Xelly has spent much time, morney and sirength
assembling data on her ancestral lires, and has
freely shared with me her Rush, Terrell and Martin
nctes. ’
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The following extracts are copied (without permission) from
"Further Genealogical Notes on the Tyrrell-Terrell Families of Vir-
ginie and its English and Norman Progenitors”, by E. H. Terrell.

"Very early 1in the establishment of the family in Englend, the
coat of arms seems to have been taken which has since been identified
with the Tyrrells of Heron and in the different branches of the family
descended from them. This coat of Armms goes back into the twelfth
or thirteenth century and consists of the arms in silver, within a
bordure engrailed, giles, two chevrons, azure; with the motto, "Sans
Dieu Rein," and with the crest of a peacock's tail issuing from the
mouth of & boar's head, couped, erect. The motto, Sans Dieu Rein,
is the motto of the Essex Terrells and 1s the only one which the
American descendants of the Tyrrells of Heron would have the right
to use. The author of this pamphlet visited the old University
town of Oxford, and, in looking o.er the al mni registers of that
University, he fo nd tnat Sir Timothy Tyrrell, of Oskley in Bucks,
as well as Sir Timothy II, were both graduates of the University of
Oxford. These members of the family are referred to as living in
a beautif 1 country seat near Oxford, called Sho+over, (From the

French, Chateau Vert.) The rame of this Sir Timothy Tyrrell will be
found in Burke's book.

It has generally teen considered in the traditions of *he Virginia
Terrells that the first ancestor was a descendant of this I‘r Timotay
Tyrrell, of Oakley in Bucks. The date of the arrival of the first
member of the Terrell family seems to be invol-ed it some obscunity.
It is a tredition that a Thomas Tyrrell or Terrell, arrived in Vir-
ginia about 1637, and a James Tyrrell in 1648, but nothing has ever
teen learned as to these two immigra-rts, or as to any desc=ndants
from them. It is known, hovever, tha* Richmond and Williem Terrell
arrived in Virginia about the middle of the seventeenth centiry.

In the old Colonial records at Riciimond, Virgiria, in the first
mention made of William's arrival, and his cornection with lands,
his surreme is spelled "Tyrrell."” In the same record, where mention
is made of his brother, Rictmond, the :ame of <he latter is spelled
"Tirrell."” There is a deed referred to in the Wm. & Mary Quarterly
Vol 13, p 264, whereby Richmond conveys to Herry Wyatt a tract of larnd
in New Kent Co., Va., the date of the deed is 26 April 1670, and in
it the grentor reserves 100 acres which he says he had previously
given unto his brother, William Terrell, and which has since been
sold by the latter to Francis Waring. This deed clearly shows that
Richmond and William were brothers.

“he tradition smong the descendants of William and Richmond Terrell
are sometimes contradictory as to just where in England the two brothers
ceme fram, and as to the exact year of their arrival. They are all on
record, however, in saying that the two came from the old family of
the Tyrrels of England and were descendants of the stock established
there by Sir Walter Tyrrell III. As before stated, the tradition
generally relied on is that William and Richmond were the sons of



William Tyrrell, who was the son of Sir Timothy Tyrrell II, of Oakley.
This Sir Timothy Tyrrell was the son of Sir Edward Tyrrell of Thornton
and belonged to that branch of the English Tyrrells known as the Tyrrells
of Thornton, and vwho were an offshoot of the Tyrrells of Heron. This
Willliem Tyrrell (or Tyrell), son of Sir Timothy Tyrell I, was killed at
the battle of Chester in 164%, during the Civil War in Ergland.

Richmond and William Terrell were both large landowners in Virginia
at a very early period after their arrival. The family traditions are
that they came to Virginia with some sort of official authority in connec-
tion with the Crown Lands in Virginia, either as surveyors, or in some
other important capacity. - It has generally been supposed that. the large
grants of lands received by both of these irmigrants came for their
services in cornection with their ofZicial positions. It is a significant
fact that the Christlan rame of Timothy was largely vsed in the firs:
two or three gererations of the desczendants of both Richmond and William
and that among the children of William were five who bore :he exact
Christian names of five of the children and grandenildren of Sir Timothy
Tyrrell of Oakley in Bucks. As to whether these two Virginia colonists,
Willism and Riclmond Terrell were lireally descended frem Sir Timothy
Tyrrell I, or from Sir Edward Tyrrell of Thoraton, i3 no% yet quite clearly
estabiished. But that they came frem the old stock of <he Tyrells of
Hderon, and probably from the Tyrrells of Thoraton, is s ts*antlally establish-
ed in many ways. Among the descenda-*s of williem now 1iving ia the State
of Georgla, there is an old gold watcn, said to have Ttsan brought over by
Willlam from Erglezd, and still held in the family as a ~val able relic,
whlch has engra~ed on it the o0ld cres*t of the Tyrells of Heron, namely,
the crest of the boar's head with tie peacock's tail iss:ing therefrom.
fowever, there 1s another branch of *ae family in VirgirZia wnich has an
old ring, handed Zswn from many gensrations in ihat state, with the same
crest engraved thereon.

Sir Timothy Tyrrell, of Oakley in Bucks, was the son of Sir Edward
Tyrrell of Thornton, as before sta*ed, and a descendar: of the Tyrrells
of Heron, and was born 1575. In the correspondence whish trhe avtror as
nad £or a year pest with the English historian of the femily, Mr. J. H.
Tyrrell, Mr. Tyrrell has intimated <hat the Virginia arncestor »f the
fanmily probably ceme from the branch known in England as the Tyrrells of
Thornton. In a letter dated June 9, 1908, from Mr. Tyrrell to the a:thor,
he says, among other things: "It may interest you to know that no mat+ter
what branch of the English house the American femilies are descended from,
tney are of royal descent, as you will see by the enclosed chart." Included
in this letter was a very elaborate chart, very carefully prepared by
Mr. Tyrrell, from the authorities so accessible in zngland, showing the
line of descent from Edward I, King of Enrgland, and Eleanor of Castile,
his wife, to Sir Zdward Tyrrell of Zrornton, through the marriage of Joan
Plantagenet, the da ghter of Edward I, to Gilbert de Clare, Farl of
Gloucester, Joan Plantegenet's name is sometimes given in history as
Joan of Acre, es she was born during the Siege of Acre, in the Crusades,



where Edward I, then Prince of Walea, was taking part, accompanied.
by his wife, Eleanor of Castile.

There are doubtless many families in American whé are descended
from royal ancestora, but it is not always easy to‘establish this
fact by accrrate lists of the marriages and pedigrees.

In a Pepublic like that of the United States, where transcendent
genius relying upon character, industry and opportunity, can enable
a man to rise from the depths of poverty and obscurity to the loftlest
station of usefulness, honor and fame, like the immortal Abraham
Iincoln, deacent from royalty, no matter how regular and honorable,
seems of trivial importance indeed. In many cases the character of
the sovereign has been so disreputable or vicious that to have hinm
for an ancestor would be anything but creditable. However, Edward
Plantagenet {Edward 1 of England), was a great law-giver, soldier
and statesman, and protably the ablest King that England ever had,
one wnose sirong persorality, keen intelligence and vigorois :ha “acter
were deeply impressed on English history, 1t may possibly be g mazier
of curious interest for descendants of this old Engiish country family

to read the line of descent so carefully prepared by Mr. Zdward
Gillespie.




ANCESTRY OF NELLIE F. AYRES
Chart 1.

These ancestral lines of the compiler, aside from irmediate family

genealogies, come rrow Burke's Peerage, Magna Charta, by Jshn S. Yurts,
"Your Family Tree" by-David Starr Jordan and various text baoks of nistory.

"I cannot vouch what the truth may be--
I only tell the tale as 'twas told to me."

Generation

Number

1. NELLIE F. AYRES, b April 24, 1881, dau or

2. Manlius A. Ayres b Nov. G, 1847, 4 Aug. 1, 1902, md Treresa Virginia
Dorsey, b Sept. 3, 1843, d Sept. 21, 1927.

3. He was the son of Samuel Matthias Ayres b May 10, 1825, d Nov. 19,
1850, md Priscilla Frances Priest, b Oct. 19, 1828, 4 Nov. 21, 1307.
dau of

L. Zlizabeth Rush, (1804-1839) md George Stubblefield Priest, {1803-
1888,) she was 2dau of

5. Grigsby Rush 178:-18L5 m Priscilla Farris, 1781-18L2, dau of John and
Patience (Taylor) Harris. He was the san of

O. Abigail Terrell 1760-2335 m William Rush 1755-1827, son of Benjamin II
and Alice (Grigshy) Rush. She was the dauchter of

T. Hezexzish Terrell b ca 1732 d ca 175T m Faoebe Martin, daughter of John
and Rachel Martin., He was the san of

8. John Terrell ca 1700,/10-1780.88, m Elizabeth . He was son of

9. William Terrell b ca 1636 probably All-Hallows oF Little-All-Hallows
Parish, London, Zngland, d ca 1727 New Kent County, Va., m Susannah
“aters, who was living in 1725. He was son of

10. ¥illiam Terrell, baptised St. Giles, Reading, Eugland, 22 June 1629,
settled in New “ent Co., Va. m Martha « Son of

1l. Robert Terrell (or Tyrrell) d June 1543} Reading, England, m 1590, Jane
daughter of Robert Baldwin. He was the son of

lz. William Tyrrell, Lord of anor of Bruyn (or Brun), which he sold, then
settling in Reading, England, m Miss Richmond of Stewley, Bucks. He was
the son of «

13. George Tyrrell of Thornton d 16 May 1571, m lst ELEANOR MONTAGU, dau
Sir Edward Montagu, Lord Chief Justice of England, (See CHART 2,) This
George Tyrell was also of South Ockenden and Bruyn, Essex, Lord of Manor

N of Bruyn and Fobbing, Essex. He was the son of

1 *

Humphrey Tyrrell of Thornton Hall, held Manor of Bruyn and 500 acres, m
1519 Jane, dau & heiress of John Ingleton and d 15 Jan 1548. Son of



15.

16.

N lT.

18.

19|
20.
wel.

22.

23.

24,

N 25,

\ 26.

William Tyrrell of Ockenden, heir to hisg b:rother, Hugh; Lord of laror

of Bruyn, m Elizabeth, da: and eventual co-heiress of Thomas Bodley

and his wife, dau and heiress of Dennis Leech of Wellirgborough. Son of
Sic Thomas Tyrrell of Ockenden, 4 before 1 90; held 1/3 of MMaror of
Springfield, Essex: m Elizateth), dau & heiress of Sir H:mph:ey le Brun
in South Ockenden and his wife, da of Robe:t Da-cy of Malden, and died
before 1 90. She had bruyn as dower. She m 2nd Thomas Brandon. Son of
Ann (or Anna) Marney, davghter of John, m Sir Taomas Tyrrell of Heror,
Sheriff of Essex and Herts 14c0. Chamberlain of Excheq:er, 4 1476,

She was da:ghter of (see chart 3) %

John Marney of Layer Marney, Essex, m Agnes Throckmorton. Son of
Elizabeth Serjeaux, m Sir William Marney. Daughter of

Philippa Fitzalan m Sir Henry Serjeaux. Daughter of.

Isabel Despencer m Richard Fitzalan, Sth Earl of Arundel. (See Chart h.yi
she was daughter of —_—
Eleanor de Clare, m Hugh Despencer, Earl of Gloucester. (See Chart 5.) <,
she was da ghter of -
Gilbert, 9th Earl of Clare, Zarl of Gloucester & Hertford "the Red Earl”.
b 2 Sept 1243 at Christch rch, Hants, was a ward of Humphrey de Bohun, b
Ezrl of Hereford, knighted 1li May 1264, On 3 July 1290 he gave a tanguet
at Tonbridge Castle to celebrate his marriage to Princess Joan of Acre,
daughter of Edward I of Englani, (See CHART <) which ozcurred in th
pr=vicus May. He died at Mommouth Castle T Dezx 1295 and is buried at
Tewksbury. He married ist in the spring of 1233, Alice, dau of Hugh le
Bruy, Count if La M=rche and Argouwleme and his wife Yoleonde, dau of
Pierre Mauclark. Ye married 2£ad, when he was abtout 47 years old, in 1290,
Princess “o2n, da ghter of Fiusrd I and Tountess of Gloucester and Hert-
ford, who “as vorn: at Acre, Palestine pr:hably early in 1272, She was
the second da.ghter of Edwzrd I by his wife Eleanor of Czstile. Gilter®
de Clare was the son of T

Richard, 8th Ear> of Clare, Glouces:er ard Herz-ord b 4 Aug 1222 4 at
John de Griol’'s lanor of Astenfleld in Waltham, near Canterbury 15 July
1262, interred at Tewksbury. His first wife was Margaret, dau of Hubert
de Burgp, Earl of Kent., She died in YNov 1237 and he m 2nd on or hefore
2° Jan 1237/8, Maud, da of Suretv Sohn i= CHART 7). She had
anor of Clare for dowry. Sre died 10 Mar 1288 9. Son of

Gilbert, 7th Earl of Clare, the Surety, b about 1180 and in June 1202

he was entrusted with the lands of Harfleur and Mostrevilliers. He was
one of the Barons still coposing the Crown, fought at Lincoln ard was
taken prisoner by William Marshall, whose da: ghter he later married. He
led an ammy against the Welsh in 1228 and captured Morgan Gam. Being
engaged in an expedition to Erittany, he died on ais way back at Penros
in that Duchy 25 Oct 1230 and is buried at Tewksbury. He married 9 Qct
1217 Iﬁéﬁg%}g, daughter of William Marshall ard sister of William Mar-
shall the Surety. She d4 17 Jan 1239,40. Besides Richard (24) they had:
Agnes who m Roger de Mowbray, grandson of Surety Wm. de Mowbray; Isatel

b 2 Nov 1226 who m Robert Bruce, son of Robert Bruce, Lord of Annandale
and his wife Isabel, 2nd4 da.: of David, Earl of Huntington. Son of
Richard, €th Earl of Clare, the Surety, 4th Earl of Hertford. He was
present at coronation of Kirg Richard 3 Sept 1139 and of King John 1199.




27.

28.

N\ 29.

20.

-

-~

—\ 31

32.
~ 33.
3hc
35

36.

37.
38.
329.
“4”00
L1,

He sided with the Barons and his castle of Tonbridge was taken; on 9
Nov 1215 he was one of the commissloners of the par t'of the Barons to
the treaty of peace with the king. On 4 Mar 1215,6 his lands in Counties
Cambridge, Norfolk, Suffolk and Essex were granted to Robert de 3etun.
He d between 3 Oct and 28 Nov 1217. He married Amice, Countess of Glou-
cester, 2nd dau of Wm Fitzrobert, Earl of Gloucester and his wife,
Hawise, dau of Robert de Beaufort, Earl of Lelcester. She died 1 Jan
1224/5, Among their children were Joan.Clare m Rhys-gryd, Lord of
Ystrad Tyni, and Maud Clare who M Roger, Baron Lacle. Son of
Reger, th Earl of Clare, b before 1116 who succe=ied his brother, Gil-
bert when he died without isste in 1151. In 1165 he assisted with thne
Constitution of Clarendon. He was called the "good Earl"” and died in
1173, leaving by his widow Maud, dau of James de St. Hillary the one son
Richard. Roger was the son of .
Richard Fitzgiltert, 2rd Earl of Clare b before 1105, in-aded Wales with
an army and became lord of vast possessions there, but firally was slai:
in a skirmish with Welsh yoeman near Abergavenry 15 Apr 1136. He marrizd
Adeliza, dau of Randolph de Meschires, Earl of Chester who d 1128. He
was the son of
Gilvert de Tonebri:ge, 2nd Farl of Clare b before 1066. Ye appears %o
have Jjoirned the retellion against Kirng William Rufus and lost his castle
Tonebruge, dyirng s:ior:ly thereafter in 1114 or 1117 a munifizient beve-
factor to the :ni rch. Ffe m Adeliza, dau of Hugh, Co.nt of Clermont azi
his wife Marguerita. Their daughter Adeliza m Alberic de Vere. 3Son of
Richard Fitzgllter: de Tonebr ge, ls%t earl of Clare, lawyer and Chilefl
Justice of England, oern before 1035, founder of the fouse of Clare.
Accompanied Duke Willism to England 1066 and later 2:1d 176 Loriships,
ore being Clare, i~ County Suffolk, which bte:ame his Chief seat. He fell
in a sxirmish wizi the Welsh in 1090, He marri=d Rohese, da. of ¥Weller
Gifford de Bolet=c and had tesides Gilbert abo~2, Robert FitzRichard and

Allce, who married “m de Percie. de was son, eldest, of
Gislebert (Gilbert) Count of Eu & Brionne, a descendant of Chari nagne.
He was tne son of : (see CEART 8.)

Geoffrey, Count of Fu and Brionne. Son of

Lady Guanora m Richard I, 3rd Duke of Normandy who was born 933 and died
133, Sre was daughter of {see CEART 9.)

Z“arald Blastand, King of Demnmark 4 981. Son of

Jorm del Gammel, King of Demmark 4 913 m Thyra. Son of

Earold Parcus, King of Demmark m Elgiva, dau of Ethelrod I, King of
England, brother of Alfred the Great. Son of

Gorm Enske, 4 820 m Sida. Son of

Frotho, King of Dermark 4 875. Son of

Horda Knut, King of Demmark 4 850. Son of

Sizurd Srodoye, King of Cenmakr & Sweden, d 330. Son of

Reayner Lodbrok, King of Sweden and Demnmark, 4 79L. Son of

Sigurd Ring, living 750. Son of '

Harald Eildetand, King of Demmark & Sweden T25. Son of

Roric Slingetand, Kirg of Demmark & Swedea T0O. Son of

Ivan Vidfadma, King of Dermark & Sweden co0. Son of

Halfdan, King of Dermark. Son of



L7.
L8.

49.
50.
51.
52.

53.

¢ 5k,

55.

56.
N 57

58.

59.
&C.

ol

Hilda m Frode VII who 4 548. Deughter of
Hilderic, King of the Vandals 525. Son of

E ioxia m Hunneric who 4 480. Daughter of
Valentinian IIT 4 455 m Evdoxia, dau of Theodosius and Atherais. S> 7
Constantius ITI, Emperor of the Eastern Roman Empire, m Placidia. S:: ¢
Constantius II, (Flavius Julius Constantius), 317-361 Emperor 337-:
second son of (Married Fausta)

Constartine the Great (Flavius Valerius Aurelius Constantinus 230-3°",
Roman emperor 306-337, m Fausto and had 3 sons, Constantine II, Co.s:i= -
tius II and Constans I. Zis eldest son Constantine II was father of
Uther Pendragon, King of Britain 498 and the latter's son, King Arthuc,
one of the Nine Worthies, succeeded his father in the year 516 at agze

15, repulsing the invadirg Saxons and died 21 May 542. Son of Helex

“of the Cross" (the arms of Colchester were " a cross with three
crcwns") She was born 248 and 4 328 m Constanti-s I, Roman Emperor :
2k2 and 4 306, at Eborac:m (York) in Britain. Constantius I in righ: of
his wife was King of Britain. She was daughter of

Strada "the fair", who married Coel, a later King of Colchester, living
A.D. 232 whoge parentage is not stated. Daughter of
Gladys who m Cadven of Cambria, Prince of Wales. Daughter of
King Llevver Mawr, the Second Blesses Sovereign (Lucius the Grea®)
succeeded to throne of Brizain 170 A.D., as *the First Christian Ki:g i~
the World, 4 1€1, m Gladys, deu of Eurgen iro was a sister of Czol 'old
Cole) and dau of Meric (Marius) King of Briiain and his Wife Quzen Zcad-
icea of Britaln, through wrose right he was King. Son of

Prince Coel, living A. D. 120. Son of

t. Cyllin (Cyllinus) first Bishop of Rome, King of Sil.cia. %on cf
Caradoc (Caractacus' King of Siluria (Monmouthshire, etc), whers <= lied.
Zorn Trevan, Lianilid in Glamorganshire; had three scns: Tyilin (ato 2);
ILieyn (Linus; and Cynon; and two daughters Eurgain and Gladys (€ls=iis}.
He was the son of
Bran "the Blessed", King of Siluria, commander of the British Flee®.

In the year A.D. 36, he resigned the crown to his son, Carcdoc. 7=
spent seven years in Rome tecame the first Royal convert to Christiaizy
and was baptised by the Apostle Paul, as was his son Carodoc and %l.e
latter's two sons, Cylli s and Jynon. He was son of
Penardim, who married Llyr (King Lear) who was educated in Rome by
Augustus Caesar. She was the daughter of

Zeli and his wife, Anna, who were also the parents of lMary, tiae mozher
of Jesus.

.

The genealogy below is taken from the third chapter of Luke in the
Bible, rearranged, one correction belng made in accordance with the t
Judgment of Bible scholars. Luke 3:23 says that Joseph was the son of
Heli. The explanation of this is that Mary, being a woman, her rame i
accordance with Jewish usage could not be used in genealogies, males
alone forming the line, so Joseph's neme was intruduced in the planz of

Mary, he beilng Mary's husband. The genealogy glven in Matthew 1is “he
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genealogy of Joseph, the reputed father of Jesus, his father in the eyes
of the law, cnd that given in Luke is the genealogy of Mary. So the
conclusion is that Hell 1is the father of Mary and of her sister
Penardim, and Joseph was ‘he son of Jacob. Matthew 1/16.

From profane history we learn that Heli (463) and his wife Anna had at
least three children as follows: Mary, the mother of Jesus; Beli Macor;
and Penardim. Zrom Hell and Anra, through Penardim, the sister of Mary
mother of Jesus, the line contin es back:
i211 was the son of

Matthat, son of

Levi, son of

Melchi, son of

Jannasi, son of

Joseph, son of

Mattathias, son of

Amos, son of

Naum or Nahum son of

Esli, son of

Negge or Neggsl, son of

Maath, son of

Mattathias, son of

Semein, son of

Josecr:, son of

Joda, son of

Joaran, son of

Rnesa, son of

Zoritabel or Zer chabel, son of
Shealtiel (Greek: Salathiel), son of
Neri, son of

Melchi, son of

Addi, son of

Cosam, son of

Elmadam, son of

Er, son of

Jose or Jesus, son of

Elizer, son of

Jorim, son of

Matthat, son of

Levi, son of

Simeon, son of

Judas, son of

Joseph, son of

Jonam, son of

Eliakim, son of

Melea, son of

Menna, son of

Ma<tatha, son of

Rathan, son of

King David who m (3rd) Bathsheba, daughter of Eliam, son of



10k, Jesse, son of

105. Obed b A. M. 2699 (B.C. 1305), son of -

106. Boaz married A. M. 2698 (B.C. 1306) Ruth, a descendant of Lot. Son of

107. Sales (Selmon) m Rahab of Jericho. Son of

108. Nahshon, son of

1C9. Amminadadb, son of

110. Admin, son

111. Arni, son of

112, Esrom (Hezron), teken to Egypt when one year old m a dau of Machir.
He was the son of

113. Pharez (Perez) son of

114. Judsh and Temar. Son of

115. Jacob and Leah. Son of

116. Isaac ("laughter") b A.M. 2108 (B.C. 1896). At about 33 years, Issac
became a type of our Lord's offering of himself, but God gave back to
Abrzzam the willing son. Isaac died A. M. 2288 (B.C, 1716) aged 120
years, having married Rebecca ("flattering"). his father's great riece.
They were parents of the two boys, twins, Esau and Jacob, born A.M.
2186 (A.D. 1836 son of

117. Abram ("high father") who became Abrahem ("father of nations") b A.M.
2008 (B.C. 1996) two years after Noah died. The birth of Abrsham is
approximately the halfway mark tetween the Creation of Adam and the
birth of Christ. Abrehem dled A.M. 2183 (B.C. 1821, agel 175 years. Ye
married his half-sister, Saral ("contentious”) who tecame Szran (prin-ess).
Ste was the daughter of his father by a previous wife. Geresis 2C:12.
Abraham wes aged 75 at his call, AM. 2083 (5.C. 1921) in which year
his father died and a son was promised to him. 25 years later when
Abraham was 100 and “Sarah 90, thelr son Isasac was born. After Sersn’'s
death, Abrsham had by Keturah ("fragrance") saveral sons from whcm *ne
Midlenites are descended. Fe was the son of

118. Terah ("delay") born A.M. 1378 (B.C. 2126) when Nahor wes 29 years old.
He died A.M.2083 (B.C. 1921) aged 205 years. He was the father of Abra-
hem, Sarah, Nahor Jr., and Haran. Haran (enlightened") eldest son was
born Ur of Chaldees when his father Terah was over TO and there he died
in his father's lifetime. Haran was father of Milcah ("counsel”) and
also of L t ("concealed") from whose two da:ghters descend the Moabites
and Amorites. Hahor Jr. married Milcah his niece, daughter of =nis
oldest trother Haran. They were the parents of Bethuel (dweller in God"),
father of Rebecca who becaeme t-e bride of Iseac; and of Labuan (glorious’)
whose daughters Leah and Rachel were given in marriage to Jacob. Tersh
was 130 years old when his son Abram was born. He was the son of

119. Nahor or Nachor ("the slayer") who was born A.M. 1849 (B.C. 2155 and
died AM., 1887 (B.C. 2007) aged 148 years. son of

120. Serug or Saruch ("strength ") b A.M. 1819 (B.C.2185 when Reu was 33
years old. He died A.M. 2049 (B.C. 1955) aged 230 years. He was 20
years old when his son Nahor was born. son of

121, Reu or Reguel ("friend ")of God") b A.M. 1787 (B.C. 2217) when his fat-
her was 30 years old. He died aged 239 years A.M. 2026 (B.C. 1978) when
his great great ndson Abraham was 18 years old. son of

122, Phalec or Peleg ("division") born AM. 1757 (B.C. 2247, after the flood
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101 years, when Nimrod began to build the Tower of Babel. At Peleg's
birth, Noah divided the earth among the peoples, but they refused to
obey and scatter and occ py the land. Instead’ they spent 53 years in
building the Tower of Babel. Peleg died A. M. 1996 (B.C. 2008) aged
229 years. son of

Ezer or Heber ("fellowship"), the father of the Hebrews, so called be-
cause they spoke his langiage, was born AM. 1723 (B.C. 2287) when
Sarah was 30 years old. He outlived all the patriarchs from and in-
clvding (10) Noah to Abraham who died A.M. 2183. He had two sons and
a number of da ghters, one son Joktan was the father of 13 sons as
named in I Chronicles 1:20-23. Eber died A.M. 2187 (B.C. 1817). He
attained a greater age than any other man born after the flood, having
1lived 464 years. He was 34 years old when his son Peleg was born. He
was the son of

Salah or Shelah b AM. 1693 (B.C. 2311) when his father was 35 years
0ld. He died aged 433 years AM. 2126 (B.C. 1878) 18 years after the
bi-th of Isaac. son of ?

Cairan, son of ?

Arphexad born AM. 1658 (B.C. 2345) when Shem was 100 years old, two
years after the Flood. He died A. M. 2096 (B.C. 1908) aged 438 years.
He was the son of

Shem ("reknown') was born A.M. 1558 (B.C. 2i4hk.) when Noah was 502 years
old and died A. M, 2158 (B.C. 1846) aged 500 years, ten years bvefore
the birth of Jacob. He lived long eno.gh to have seen his grandfatier
Lamech and his descerdant Isaac. fmong Shem's sons and da ghters Gen-
eslis 11:11 several are recorded in I Chro=nicles 1:17. son of

oah ("rest") born A. M. 1056 (B.C. 2948) _00 years tefore the Flocid
and when Lamech was 182 years old. Je died A. M. 2006 (B.C. 1998) two
years tefore the birth of Abraham ard 196 years after Babel. Noah
lived 950 years, the third longest life on earth, 20 years longer than
Adam, 19 less than Methuselsh. He lived before the Flood 200 years and
after the flood 350 years. The Flood came A.M. 1652 (B.C. 2348) after
120 years of warning, during which time the Ark was 120 years in tze
building. Noah's carpenters and hosts of other descendants cof Seth,
Atel and Cain, except 8 persons all perished in the flood. The rame of
Noah's wife is not recorded in the Scriptures. They were the pareuts of
three sons named in Genesis 5:32 to 6:10: (a) Shem, the oldest son was
torn when his father was 502 years old. Shem was aged 98, married a:d
childless at the time of the Flood; (b) Japeth, the second son, b
about A.M. 1560 (B.C. 2442, His descendants peopled Mesopotamia, Asia
Minor and lands to the north; (c¢) Eam, the youngest son was aged about
94 years at the time of the flood. Here ends the certainties of Scrip-
ture so far as any descendants of Japeth and Ham are concerned. Toah

" was the son of
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Lamech ("destroyer"), born A.M. 874 (B.C. 318C) when Methuselah was
187 years old 2nd died A.M. 1651 (B.C. 23.5) five years before the
flood, aged 77 years. He was the son of '

Methuselah ("man of a dart?") born A.M. 687 (B.C. 3317) when Enoch

was 65 years old. When, just before the Flood, Methuselah died A.M.
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1656 (B.C. 2343) at age 969, all his ancestors had left tais
earth including his grandfather Jared'and even he had been
dead for 234 years. He was the son of _

Enoch ("dedication") born A. M. 622 (B.C. 3382) and he has oo
died. At age 305 in the year AM. 987 (B.C. 3017) Enoch was
transplanted from Earth to Heaven. After the murder of Atel, o
death 1s recorded in Scripture for about 900 years. The first
natural death recorded being that of Adam in A.M. 930. He was
the son of .

Jared ("descent") born A.M. 460 (B.C. 354l) when Mahalaleel

was 65 years old, died AM. 1122 (B.C. 2582) aged 962 years,
having lived the second longest life on earth, only seven years
less than that of his grandson Methuselah. He had sons and
daughters and was 162 years old when his son Enoch was born.

He was the son of

Mahalaleel ("praise of God") born A.M. 395 (B.C.3609) wher
Cainan was 70 years old end died A.M. 1290 (B.C. 271L4), azed
895 years. soa of

Cainan ("acquisition") born A. M. 325 (B.C. 35679) w-en Eros
was 90 years old, died A.M. 1235 (B.C. 2749) son of

Enos ("mortal" was born A. M. 235 (B.C. 3769) when Seth was
105 years old. scn of

Seth ("appointed”) born Awus. 120 (b.C. 3874) soo0n aftisr the
murder of Abel. He lived contemporaneously with all “he “en
petriarchs except lloah. Aged 912 years ~e died A.M. 10:2 (3.C.
39:2) tefore the Flood 61k vears, before Noah's birth 14 jears
after the Translation of Eroch 55 years and after Adam's death
112 years. he was the son of

Adam ("man") who was created on the sixth day in <he -ear 1
(according to Usher B.C. 407:) and died Arno Mundi 930 /B.C.
3074). His wife Eve ("motker”) was formed also on the six-h day
from material already created. Genesis 2:22/ Adem walked and
talked with God in the cool of the evening. All the wonderiul
things that God told Adam in the Gardisn of Eden, Adam co 1ld
nave told Methuselah, who could have told Shem, who could rhave
told Levi, who could have told Amram who could have told t-ese
things tc Moses, tke writer of the Pertateuch and without i+

we would krnow nothing of our First Ancestors. Adam and Eve in
their centuries of married life would undoubtedly have a very
great many children born before as well as after Seth, some
would marry a brother or sister ani many a nephew or aiece.
Adam and Eve had first Cain, then Able, their first children.
Were they twins? Adam died Anno Mudi 930 (B.C. 307Lk) 726 years
before the Flood having lived 930 years. His was the fourth
longest life on earth ard he could have talked with each of his
descendants to the 9th gerera=ion, including Methuselah and his
Lamech. Many persons have been puzzled by such longevity and
have inquired if l.nar years were not meant, but if we count
about 13 lunar years to each Solar year what would that show?
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Supposing Lurar years ware meant. Adam would have teen only ston* Ten
(Solar) years old when his son Seth was born and by the same recko:i. g
Methuselah would have been only about five (solar) years old when Lam-
ech was born and Meihuselah's 969 years by Lirar count would have made
his remarkable age equivalent to only "k solar jears. We must tlere-
fore conclude that the usual Solar years are meant. Adam was 130 years
old when his son Seth was born.

Thus we have, in the best calculation now acceptible, the descent of mar-
xi~d as recordei in the Scriptures from Adem to Christ and to vld Testa-
me:t worthies, Patriarchs, Kings, and other men of faith.

\, (Continuing Chart 1.) »

Pepin d'Feristal, Mayor of the Palace 4 "kl, m Alpeis and had

Charles Martel "the Hammer", King of Fraace, 4 7+1 m Rotrude ard rad
Pepin le Bref (the short) d 768 m Bertha of Laor ard had sons Carl:c-
man and :

Charlemagne, King of France and Roman Fmperor of the VWest m Hildegze . le
of Suabia who was b 57 and d 20 April 732. They had

Touis I the Debonnaire, King of France who m 2nd cudith, dau of Guelph
III, Count of Andech and Bavaria and his wife Edith of Saxony was
father of Giselia, grandmothe: of Duke Burkhardt wio 4 911 from wion
Hugh Capet, Kirg of France and Amicia, wife of Ricrardi de Clare, =22
Surety are descended. Louis I by his first wife Z.omengarde wno 4 313,
dau of Ingrsm, Count of Hasbarnis, had

Iothaire, Zmperor of Zermany who m Ermengarie of Alsace arnd 24
Ermengarde wn> was wife of Gislebert and nad

Regnier I, Count of Zairault d 915 m Albreda ard nad

Gislebert, Duke >f Lorraine m Gerbergs and d 93C, ~ad

Alcreda of Lorraine m Renaud, Tount de Roucy who I 9732, had
Ermentrude Toucy, wife of Alberic IT, Count of Macon who d 977, ned
Beatrice Macon m Geoffrey I de Castinois and had

Geoffrey II de Gastinoils m Ermengarde of Arnjou ard had

Fulk IV, Count of Anjou b 1043 4 1109 m Bertrade Ze Montfort {57
above) and h=d

Fulk V, Count of Anjou b 1092 d 114 m Ermengarde du Maine who d 1126
and they had

Geoffrey "plantagenet" of Anjou b 1113 4 1151 m Matilda of Englard °
1103 4 116" a grea“ great great grand daughter of Richard I, Duke of
Normandy and ris wife Lady Gunnora (#63 above) descended es follows:
Richard I's soa Richard II, Duke of Normandy d 1025 having m Judi*h of
Bretagne who d 1018. Their son Robert of liormandy by Herleve (Arlo+*a)
de Falaise had William the Conqueror who married }aud of Flarders a:d
had Henry I, King of England who married Matilda dau of Malcolm IIT
Carmore, King of Scotland and had Matilda of England who m Geofrrey

" Plantagenet #74 above. Geoffrey Plantagenet and lMatilda had
Henry II, King of England who m Eleanor of Aquitalne and had
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John, King of England , Isabel de Taillefer and had

8. Henry III, King of England who m Eleanor of Provence and had
79. Edward I, King of England who m Eleanor of Castile, dau of
Ferdinand III, King of Castile and ther had
80. Joan Plantagenet of Acre who m 1st Gilvert, 9th Earl of
Clare and 2nd Ralf de Monthemrmer.
(cEarT 2) 4 ©
Generation: N
13. Eleanor Montagu married George Tyrrell of Thornton and
South Ockenden and Lord of ianor of Bruyn and Fobbing, Issex,
who died 15 May 157 1. She was tne davghter of
1%, 8ir Ed-ard Montagu, Lord Chlef Justice of Znglard married Felexn
Roper. He was son of
15. Thomas Montagu who married Agnes Dudley. e was sor »>f
15. Richard Montagu ~ho married Agres Knotting. FKe was son of
17, Willism Mon*tagu vwho ma - ied Mary Butline. He was son of
13. ' John Montagu who married Alice Falcot. He was son of
19. Thomas Montagu (or Montacute) m Christine Bassett. Son of
20. Sir Simon Montaci.e m Elizateth Boughton. Son of
21. Margaret Monthermer who m Sir John Montacute. §She was daughter of
22, Sir Thomas Mon-hermer, m Margaret, da: of Lord Tipoff. He was son of
23. Joan Plantagenet, dau of Edw. I of England by her secor ! marriage
to Ralf de Monthermer. (& 3 for desc=nt from her Ti.s%
husband, Gilbert de Clare.) She was daughter o

N 24. Edward Plantagenet, Edward I, King of England, born 1222 d 130°

Ny m Eleanor of Castile, da: of Ferdinand III of Castile. 3Zon of
(See Chart 8 for aatecedents of Eleanor of Castile)

\ 25. Henry Plantagenet, Henery III, King of England, born 1207, died
1272. Married Eleanor of Provence (See Ch S, dau of Reymori
Berenger IV, Count of Provence. Henry III was son of

» 26. John Plantagenet, King John of England b 1167 married Isabella
Taillefer b 1183 d 1246 (See Chart 10), dau cZ Aymer (or Amer-
icus) Taillefer, Count of Angouleme. John was son of

27. Henry Plantagenet, King Henry II of Englaud b 25 Mar 1133, d
~ 1189 m Eleanor of Aquitaire b 1122 4 120 . Son of

\, 28. Matilda , died 1167, married (2nd) Geoffret of Plantagenet or

13



Anjou, Son of Tulk V, Xing of Jerusalem (See Chart 11). She was dau of

—_—
~ 29. Edith Matilda, of Scotland m Henry I, King of Ergland. She was dau of
N\, 20. Margaret, Princess of England, m Malcolm III Carmore of Scotlan (See
Crart 12). She was dau of
v 31. E3ward the Exile, Kirg of England, died 1050, married Agatha, dau of
Eenry II, Emperor of "ermany. (3ee Chart 13. He was son of
32. Edmund Ironsides, King of England b 289, 4 1017 m Algitha. Son of
33. Etaelred II, King of England 978, borm 968 4 1016, m Elfied, dau of
Tarl Thoral in G84. {Ethelred m 2nd. 1002, FEmma *he "Flower of ilor-
mandy, sister of Richard Duke of Normandy and she was mother of
Edvard the Confessor.) Son of
3k, Edgar the Peaceful, King of England, born 943, died 8 July 975, King
959, m in 91L Flfrede, dau of Ordgar, Farl of Devon and Widow of
Ethelwold. Son of -
35. Eémund I Magnificus, King of England b 922, twelfth of his father's
13 chiliren, m Princess Elgiva who died 9 4. Son of
36. Ziward the Elder, King of England, m 3r3. Lady Zdgira, da of Sigil-
line, Earl of Meapham. Son of {secori son)
27. Alfred The Great, Kirg of Englaid b 8.9 4 201. © at Wantage in Zerk-
stire, king 871 at age 23, 4 22 Jct. 901; m in 229 Lady Alswithe, da.-
o Fthelred and Fdburga of the Royal Fouse of Mercia. She diei 904,
(See other charzs for descendants of other wives) Som of

28, IT+helwulf "Noole Wolf' Kirg of Inziand, 339-832, m (1) Osburza, au
cf Csliac and mother of Al7red <he Grea%, his fourih and yo ugest son
(%e m 2:1 855 Judith, da. Charles the Zald, K of France (Chap 29).

39. Egbert, b 773, Crowned Xing of West Jaxons in £02, Fing of —ent £29,
corsidered tae first WNing of all Zngland, m Lady Redburga, and 4iz21

Z°9, Son of,
4. salemund (Eaimund), King of Kent, son of
L1, Zafa, son of
+2. Zoppa, son of
43. 7Ingiid, youngest son, who died "18. Son of
Lo, Cenred, son of
-5. Ceolwald, son of
6. Cutha, second son of _
47. Cuthwine, King of West Sa:ons, slain 581, son of
48, Ceolin, King of West Sa:ons, died 593, son of
49, Cynric, King of Wessex, iied ScC, son of
50. Cedric, founder of the West Saxon Kingdom of Wessex, a patriarch who

landed in Hampshire in 495, Crowrned King of West Saxons in 520, died
in 534,
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\\ CHART 3
(continuing Chart 1)

Sir Thomas Tyrrel of Heron, SLeriff of Essex and Herts 1460,
Chamberlain of Exchequer, d 1470 m Ann (or Arna), dau of
John Marney of Layer Marney Essex. He was son of
Sir John Tyrrell of Heron, Sheriff of Essex 1+23, Treasurer of
Household of Henry VI. Present at Agincourt in retinue of Sir
Walter Hungerford. Speaker of House of Commons, 4 1437, m
Margaret (Alice?, Eleanor?), dau and heiress of Sir William
Coggeshall and his wife, Mary, dau and co-heiress of Sir
John Hawkwood, the celebrated soldier of fortune in the
time of Edward III. Son of
Sir Thomas Tyrrell of Heron, m 2nd. Elizateth, dau of John
Flemtert. (m lst Alice d'Adeleigh, no issue.) Son of
Sir Walter Tyrrell of Heron, = Ann, dau and heiress of Sir
Williem Swynford. He was son of
Sir James Tyrrell, knighted before Ardes 1380, m Margaret,
dau ard heiress of Sir Williem Heron of Heron Hall, Essex.
He was son of
Sir Hugh Tyrrell of Great Thornton, Essex, Governor of Car-
isbrook Castle during successful defense against the French
ir 1377, m Jane, dau and Heiress of Jemes Flambert., Son of
Sir Eimund (or Edward) Tyrreil m Jane, dau & heiress of 'm
Burgate. He was the son of
ir Gaifrid Tyrrell of Avon Tyrrell m . Son of
Sir Zdward Tyrrell of Avon Tyrrell, son o
Sir Zoger Tyrrell of Avon Tyrrell, Hants. Son of
Hugh ITyrrell, Lord of Poix, 1st Baron of Castleknock, Ireland
in 1173; with Strongbow in 1189; Governor of Trim 1133; at
Siege of Acre 1191; in third Crusade; Krown as the "Grecian
Knight"; one of "Delacey's Barons", died 1199, buried at
Selincourt, France, m lst Isabel de Vignacourt, no issie; m
2nd 1173 Marie de Senarpoint. Son of
Hugh Tirel, Prince of Poix, a Baron of Trance and Englard;
sold Laingaham prior to joining Crusade of 1146, died 1159, m
Ada, dau of Etienne de Champagne, Comte d'Aumale. Son of
Sir Velter Tirel, Lord of Folx, Laingahem, Knightswortihy and
Avon, a Baron of France and England, Castellen of Pontoise
1091; at Siege of Jerusalem 1096; reputed to have slain King
William Rufus 1100; died in Holy Land 1135; m Adelaide, dau
Richard Gifford, the son of Walter Gifford, 1lst Earl of
Buckingham. Adelaide was a cousin of William the Conqueror
and died 1138. Sir Walter Tirel founded the Priory of St.
enis 1116 and Morastary of Selincourt 1131. (See Trart ).
Son of D
Sir Walter Tirel, dled in lifetime of his father, m Ann de

Clare, dau cf Gilbert Crispin and Grand dauvghter of Geoffrey,
Count of Eu & Brionne. He was son of

15
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“alter de Tirel I, Lord of Poix, Castellan-of Pontolse, Viscount

of Amiens, a 3aron of France and England, Lord of Laingaham, Essex,
ard of Kingswortay and Avon, Zants; built castles of Poix and
Famechon in 1046; present at Hastings, 1066, (cormaried colimn), died
about 1080, m Clga, a Saxon lady (mother of Walter #30); m 2nd Lady
Alix of Fremontieres and Famezhon before 1046. He was son of

Fulke de Tirel, Siegneur of Guernanville, Dean of Evroux, endowed St.
Evrolt with church and lands i= Guerrnanville. TIn old age became a
monk of St. Evroult; m the "novle Lady”, Griselda. Son of

Ralf de Tirel {first to i'se the rame), Sire of Tirel and Poix,
Siegneur of Guernanville, Castellan of Pontoise, Viscount of Amiers,
married a da:-ghter of de Guernanville. He was son of

Walter I, Count of Amiens and the Vexin, living in 995, gave land

in Valois to Abbey of Soissons with consent of sons Walter and Ralf, m
Eve, dau & heiress of Landry, County of Dreux. Z2on of

Waleran, Chevalier, Count of trhe Vexin, Pontoise, Chaumont, Mantes and
Meulan, Hereditary Standard Bearer of Trance, d 955 m Eldegarde 4 939,
dau of Araulf l‘agnus, Count of Tlanders, a direct descendant o Tha:le-
magre and Alfred the Great (ss Charts "A & "B). sor of

Terric, too yo =g to bear arms at nis Tather's death, son of

llivelon II, Count of Auten, Auierre & the Vexin, d after 879, son of
Eccard, Count of Auten and the Teiin. Son of

Childebrand II, Count of Auten & the Verin, son of

Treodoret, Count of Auten, Macon & the Vexin, sorn of

ffivelon I, Count of Auten, Macon & the Vexin, son of

Childebrand I Cuke of Burgundy & -“ro of Charles slartel, and son of
Pepi n d'Heristal le Gros), Duke of Brabant, 4 714, Mayor of the
Palace, m lst Plectrude no issue, m 2-d Alpais and was the son of
Anchises d €¢z, Duke of Braban: in rignt of his wife, who was his
first cousir Regga, dau of Pepin de Landes, Duke of 3rabant and n's
wife Itta, who was the sister of St. Arnold. A:chises was son of

St. Arnolph, Bishop of Metz, fajor Domo o: Clotheire II, d 64l =

Lady Dodo of Saxonly and was son of

Arnould, Bishop of Metz, Marquis of Schelde 4 601 m Oda de Savoy. He
vas the son of

Blithildis 4 570 who married Ausbert of Moselle, daughter of

Clothaire I, King of the Frarks b 497 d 571 m Ingonde, was son of
Clovis the Great b L65 4 511, King of France, m St. Clotilde dau of
Chilperic, King of Burgundy and his wife Galeswin*ha. Son of
Childeric I, 436-481, King of FTrance m Basina of Thuringia, was son of
Merovee, King of the Franks 4 158 , Verica, was son of -

Clodio the Lcnghaired 4 455, King of the West Franks, m Basina, he was
the son of

Pharamond, Duke of the East Franks 425 m Argotta dau of Genebald,

Duke of the West Franks. son of

Marcomir 4 4OL, Duke of the East Franks, son of

King Clodius 4 389, son of

Dagobert II 4 379, son of

Genebald I d 358, Duke of the Zast Frarks, son of

Dagobert I 4 317, the son of
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Walter 4 306, King of the Franks, son of

Clodius III 4 298, King of the Franks, son of

King Bartherus 4 272, son of

King Hilderic 4 253, son of

King Sunno @ 213, son of

King Farabert @ 186, son of

Clodomir IV 4 166, King of the Franks, m Hasilda dau of the
King of the Rugi}. son of o

Athildis m Marcomir IV, King of Franconig who 4 149 (see
Chart 22) He was son of

Caol (Coilus) d 170, King of the Britona. familiarly known
as "0ld King Cold" who "was a merry old soul”, educated ia
Rome, built Colchester "Coelcastra) and was the son of
Meric (Marius the Great), King of the Britons m/dsughter of
Queen Boadicea (Victoria) d 62 A.D., widow of Prasutagus, Kirg
of Britain. She wes Queen of the Iceni, Britons oI Norfolk
and Suffolk. The nsme of this daughter is unknown. Meric ani
Boadicea's daughter also had a da:ghter Eurgen. Meric was son of
Arviragus, King of the Britons, second cousin of Carodoc m
Julia Venissa, dau of Emperor Titerias Claudius and his wife
Valeria Messalina. He was the 1l1ta son of

Cynvelin (Cymbelire), King of the Britons, son of

Tenuantius wro was the son of

Caswallon, King of the Britons at the time of Caesar's rirst
invasion. (Scme say he was the son of Lud, brother of Caswal-
lon). Lud ard Caswallon were the soas of

Ceri of Reli the Great, King of :ze Britons 140 3. C. , son of
Caid, who was tke soa of

Arch, the son of

Meirion, son of

Ceraint, son of

Greedeil, son of

Dingad, who was son of

Anyn, son of

Alafon, son of

Brywlais, son of

Ceraint Feddw, son of

Berwyn, the son of

Margan, the son of

Bleddyn who was the son of

Rhun, son of

Idwal, the son of

Llywarch, son of

Calchwynydd, soa of

Enir Fardd, son of

Ithel, the son of

Llarian, son of

Teuged, son of

Llyfeinydd, who was the son of

17
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96.
97.
98 L
99.
100.
101.
102.
103.
10k,

Peredur, the son of .
Cweyrydd, *“he son of .
Ithon, the son of
Cymryn, the son of
Briot, son of
Selys Hen, who was son of
Annyo Tro, son of
Brydain, who settled in the Island at an early date, son od
Aedd Mawr (Edward the Great), who appears to have lived about 1300
B. C., the time of Boaz and Ruth.
' FHE I IO RN
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CHART 4
(Continuing Chart 1. )

Ricrhard Fitzalan, 5th Farl of Arundel b 1313, Governor of Carnavon
Cassle 1339 4 2k Jan 1475/6 m lst Isabel, dau Hugh Despencer *he
Yourger and his wife Alianore Clare (Chap 6-Magna Charta). son of
Alice Warren d before 29 May 1338, m 1305 Edmund Fitzalan, Earl of
Arundel b 1 May 1285. They were married in Marlbtorough Castle. 3au =f
Joan Vere m %illiam de Warren, ssn of Js2n de Warren Farl o Sirrev
and Warren and his first wifz Alice le 3-un. dau of

Robert de Vere, Sth Fzrl of Oxford and 6tn Great Chamberlain~ d 1224,

m cefore 22 Feb 1252 Alice dau Gilbert de Saunford. son cf

fugn de Vere, -th Esrl of Oxford, Baron de Bolebec, Great Cramberlai=n
of England © 1210 4 1243 m 1223 Hawise lst day of Saire de Qui-cer ,
——=2 Surety. Tney had tesides Robert; Aubrey de Vere; Richard de Jers:
rargaret de Vere m Hugh 3e Cresse; aud vere; and Isabel Vere. sor >7
Bobert de Vere, the Surety, second sor 4 1221 m Isabel (d 3 feb 12.7°
day H gh 2nd Baron de Bolebec in Northumberland who 4 1261. so- o7
Aubrey de Vere b before 1120, 3rd Baron Kensington, Count of Gies:es,
m 2nd Lucia dau Heary de Essex. son of (eldest)

Alteric de Vere 4 11-0 m Adeliza (Alic2) dau Gilbert de Tonshr ge a:i
grand daughter of Hugh, Zount of Clermont and his wife Marguerits.

He was the son of

Alneric de Vere, Count Aubrey "Sangl‘er" m before 1039 Beatrix of Ghen
dau of Henry and his wife Sibylla. son of

Alphonse, Count of Ghesnes.
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cuar ba P .
(Continuing Chart 4)

William de Warren, killed in tournament at Croydon 12 Dec
1285 m Joan dau Robert de Vere (see chap 24--Magna Charta).
son of
John de Warren, Esrl of Warren and Surrey m lst in 1247 Alice,
dau Hugh le Brun, Count de la March 4 1304. son of

William Plantagenet de Warren, Earl of Surrey and Warren d 1240
m 2nd Maud, dsu William Marshall the Protector. son of

Williem de Warren 3rd Earl of Surrey went to Holy Land 1147

and was killed in battle. Married Adela dau William de Talvace,
a son of Robert of Belesme, Earl of Shrewsbury and had besides
Willism (25) a dau Isabel Marshall who m Hemeline Plantagenet.
son of

Williem de Warren, 2rd Earl of Warren and Surrey whose wife was
Isabel Vermandois (see Chap 29--Magna Charta) Their da. Ada m
Prince Henry, Earl of Huntingdor (Chap 30). son of

William de Warren, who came from Normandy ard called himself a
near kinsman of William the Conqueror; m Gu:dred, dau Willism
the Conqueror.

9 X 26 0

2 ~N CHART é ~
T (Continuing Chart 1)

Meud de Lacie m Richard de Clare, the Surety, 8th Earl of Clare
and 6th Earl of Hertford. deu of

_John de Lacle, the Surety, 7th Beron of Halton Hall and Heredi-

tary Cotistable of Chester; in 1232 made Earl of Lincoln and in
1240 Governor of Chester and Beeston Castles; d 22 July 1245 ard
buried in Cistercian abbey of Staniew in County Chester. He m
2nd Margaret, only dau ard heiress of Rotert de Quincey a Sellow
crusader who died in the Holy land. eldes: son of Sure-y Saire
de Quircey. John de Lacle had three children by Lady Margarst,
who survived him and married second Walter Marshall, Zarl of
Pembroke. Maud (above) was eldest, son of

Roger de Lacie, Constable of Chester d 1211 leaving his wife,
Maud dau of Richard de Clare, the Surety, and John above. son of
John de Lacle, Baron of Halton and Pontfract. Constable of
Chester m Alice, dau Geoffrey de Mandeville and 4 1190. son of
Albreda Lisours who became wife of Richard (or Robert) Fitz-
Eustace, feudal Baron of Halton Castle and Consta-le or Chester.
She inherited from her first cousin Robert de Lacie the Baroay

of Pontfract and all his other lands under pretense of a grant
fram Henry de Lacle, her uncle. Her son John FitzEustace be-

came heir to the sald Robert de Lacie, assuming that surrame

and becaming John de Lacie. dau of

Albreda (Albreye) Lacie m Robert (Eudo) son of Fulk de Lisours.
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dau of

Robert de Lacie de Pontfract. son of

Ilbert de Lacle (living at time of William the Conqueror) who King
Willlam presented with Castle and town of Brokenbridge, County York,
afterwards named Pontfract.

.

The Qe Lacie arms : or- a lion rampent purpure,
FHHHHHERERC EHEEEHEORRO0H

\ o 7 K

: (Continuing Chart 1)
Isabella Marshall, one of the five davghters of William Marshall the
Protector m Gilbert de Clare, the Surety. Her sisters were: Sibilla
Marshall (Chap 21) m Williem de Ferrers, Earl of Derby; Maud (Chap 3)
m $ugh Bigod, the Surety; Eve d 12ho m William 6th Baron Braos of
Breckrock Castle; Joan d 1247 m Warine, Lord of Montchensi, Earl of
Pembroke 1264. she was dau of
Willlam Marshall, Lord Pembroke, regent, b before 1153 d 14 May 1219,
n Aug 1189 Isabel, 2nd cousin of Richard de Clare the Surety and dau
of Richard de Clare, Earl of Pembroke called Strongbow. William Mar-
shall was also Constable of Chiches“er Castle and Sheriff of Gliuches-
tershire ard was the son of
John Marechal d 1164 m Sibilla dau of Walter d'Enreux and nis wi‘e
3ibilla Chaworth. son of
Gillbert le Marecnal who died about 1130.

CEART 6A
(Continuing CHART 6)
&
Margaret Quincey married the Surety, John de Quirrcey. dau of
Robert de Quincey died in ‘he Holy Iend having Married Hawise, the
da ghter of Hugh Keveliok, Earl of Chester. He was son of
Saire de Quincey, the Surety, born tefore 1154, created Earl of Win-
chester 2 Mar 1207, having been in 1203, Governor of Castle of Ruil
in Normandy. His wife Margaret was “he dauzhter of Robert de Bollo-
mont and his wife Petronella Granimesnil and was descended from the
Emperor Charlemagne. son of
Robert de Quincey, m (2nd) Grabilis. son of
Richard de Quincey.
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CHART 7A .

(Continuing CHART 1.)

Lady Amice (Amicia) Meullent, Countess of Gloucester d 1 Jan
122L/5 m Richard de Clere, The Surety, 6th Earl of Clare.
Daughter of .

Mabel Bellamont m William FitzRobert de Mellent » end Earl of
Gloucester, and his wife Hawise, daughter of Robert de Beau-
fort, Earl of Leicester. She was daughter of

Robert de Bellomont 4 1196, 3rd Earl of Leicester m Petronella ,
dau of Hugh de Grantmesnil. Son of

Robert de Bellomont, 2nd Earl of Leicester d 1168 m Amicla,
dau of Ralph de Waer, Earl of Norfolk, Suffolk and Cambridge.
Son of

Lady Isabel Vermandois (also known as Elizabeth) m (1)

Robert de Bellemont, Earl of Leicester and Meullent. (She m
2nd Williem de Warron, Earl of Surrey (Chapter 3 of Wurts).
daughter of

Hugh Magnus m Adelheid, dau of Herbert I, Count of Vermandois.
Son of

Henry I, King of France b 1005 4 1060, m 3rd, Anne of Russia,
dau of Jaroslaus. Son of

Robert the Pious b 971 4 1031 King of France 996, = Constance,
dau of Berenger, Count of Provence. Son of

Hugh Capet, King of France b 928 4 996 m Adele, Dau of Ot%to I.
Son of

Hedwige m Hugh, Duke of France who 4 956. Dau or

Henry I of Germany m Matilda (Mathilde) dau of Theoderich,
Duke of Westphalia 909. Son of

Otto "the Great", King of Germany 880-912 m Hedwige. Son of
Fedwige m Ludolph, Duke of Saxony who d 864. Dau of

Gisele m Eberhard, Count of Burgundy, son of Henrok, Duke of
Frioul, 4 911. She was dau of

Louis I the Debonnaire m 2nd Judith, dau of Guelph, Count of
Andech and Bavaria and his wife Edith of Saxony. Son of
Charlemagne, who m Xildegarde of Swabia. She was o 757 and @ 30
April, 782. Son of

Pepin "le Bref" the short d 768 m Bertha of Taon ard %ad Charle-
magne and Carloman. Son of

Charles Martel, "the Hammer", King of France, m Rotrude and 4
74l. He was the son of :

Pepin d'Herischal, Mayor of the Palace d T14 who m Alpais.
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CHART 7B. .
(Continuing CHART 74)

Adelheid (Adele, dau of Herbert, Count of Vermandois m Hugh Magnus,
son of Henry 1, XKing of France. Dau of

Herbert (Hubert) ith Count of Vermandois m lady Adelhelda de Valois.
He was son of

Princess Edgiva m Henry, 3rd Count of Vermandois. Dau of

Edward the Elder, King of England, m Edgiva, dau of Farl of Flarders
and wife Sigellire. Son of

Alfred the Great, King of Englend m Ethelbith, dau of <he Earl of
Ethelran.

\” CHART 7C
(Continuing CZART 7A)

Mathilde m Henry I of Germany "the Jowler". Holy Remas Fmperor b £737 4

93%4. She was <2 of (See CHART 18)

Theoderich, Margrave of VWestphalia 90+, Duke of Westphalia 909. Son of

Regirtern 85 & tvefore 872. Son of
Wwaltert 837 d87c. Son of

Wigvert 4 tefore 334. Son of
Witekend, Duke of Westphalia 777. King of the West Saxons, d 807-510.
Son of

Werniche, King of the West Saxons. Son of
Dobrogera m Bell:ung, King of Werden. Dau of
Dietric, son of

Sighard, son of

Berthold, soa of :

Bodicus, King of the Sa:ons. Son of
Heuderic, King of the Saxons, son of
Heathergate, King of the Saxons, son of
Har*woker, King of the Saxons, son of
Heingst, King of the Saxons A. D. u43k4.
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. CHART D
(Continuing CHART TA.)

Anne of Russia m King Henry 1 of France b 1005 d 1060, son
of Robert the Pious. She was dau of

Jaroslaus, Grand Duke of Russia, son of

Vlidemir (or Wolodamir, 1st Czar of Russia, m Anne, dau of
Romanus II Emperor of Eastern Romen Empire.

\'CHAH?R

(Continuing CHART 7D)

Anne m Vlidemir or Wolodomir, lst Czar of Russia. Dau of
Romanus II, Esestern Roman Emperor m Theophane. Son of
Constantinius VII, Eastern Roman Emperor 586-912 m Helena,
He was the son of

Leo VI the Philosopher, Eastern Roman Emperor m Zoe Carbon-
upsina. He was the son of

Basil T, Roman Emperor of the Fast b 812 4 886 m Eudocia
Ingerina

N CHART 8
(Continuing CHART 1)

Lady Adeliza de Clermont m Giltert de Tonebruge, 2nd Earl
of Clare. She was dau of

Lady Marguerita de Rouci m hugh de Clermont, 2nd Count of
Clermont in Beauvais. She was dau of

Adele, Countess of Rouci m Hildwin, Count of Mintidier, Lord
of Rouci and Ramore. Daughter of

Beatrice (Beatrix) m Eblo I, Count of Rouci and Rheims. Daughter

of

Hedwige, m Raginerus IV, 1lth Count of Hainault, living in 977.

She was daughter of
Hugh Capet, King of France and his wife Adele.
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CHART 84 .
(Continuing Chart 8.)

Elbo, Count of Rheims ard Rouci m Beatrix, dau of Raginerus IV, 1llth
Count of Hainault and his wife Hedwige. Son of

Gilbert, Count of Rheims. son of

Princess Albrede m Renaud, Count of Rheims. She was dau of

Louis IV, King of France, b 921 4 956, m Lady Gerberga de Saxe. Son of
Charles TII, King of France b 879 4 929 m Princess Edgiva, dau of
Alfed the Great, King of England. Son of

Louis II, King of France b 8.6 4 879 m Lady Adelreid. Son of

Charles II "the Bald"”, King of France b 823 4 877 m Ermentrude of
Orleans. Son of

Louis I, "the Debonnaire". King of France b 788 4 840 m 2nd Judith,
dau Guelph, Duke of Bavaria and his wife Edith of Saxony. Son of
Charlemagre and his wife Hildegarde of Savoy.

N CHART 8B
(Continuing CHART 1.)

Giselbert (Gilbert) Crispin, Court of Eu and Briorne, Son of

Geoffrey, Count of Eu and Brionne in Normandy ia 996, son of

Ricrnard I, "the Fearless”, 3rd Duke of Normandy m Lady Gunnora, dau

of HYarald Blaatand, King of Dermark who 4 981. Son of

Willlam the Longsword, 2ad Duke of Normandy m Adele, dau of Henry ide
Senslas. Son of

Lady Poppa who was the first wife of Rollo the Dane, 1lst Duke of Zor-
mandy. She was dau of

Pepin de Senlis de Valois, Count Berengariis of Bretagne living i-. C39.
He was the son of :
Pepin, son of

Berrnhard, King of Lombard;: d 818 m Cunegonde. Son of

Pepin b 776 d 8 July 810 m Bertha, dau of William, Count of Toulouse.
He was son of ..

Crarlemagne and his wife Hildegarde.




. 'Ijhei‘x: daughter, Margaret de Beaufort married Edmond Tudor. The
oldest portrait in the British Museum is that of Margaret de Beau-
fort, Countess of Richmond.

9th E.- Clare . '

Generation 16: Gilbert de Clare, Earl of Gloucester m Princess Joan

Plantagenet of England; He was son of

17: Richard de Clare, 8th Earl of Clare m Maud, dau. of John
Delacey, Earl of Lincoln; He was son of

18: Gilbert de Clare, th Earl of Clare m Isabel, dau. of Wm. le .
Marechal (19) (or Marshall) 3rd Earl of Pembroke and his wife
Isabel de Clare, the dau. of Richard Fitz-Gilbert (d1176)
(20) called "strongbow", 2nd Ealr of Pembroke and his wife, Eva,
dau of King of Leinster. Richard, 2nd Earl of Pembroke was son
son of Gilbert de Clare, (21) lst Earl of Pembroke (1138) Earl
of Pembroke and Stringul, 4 1148, who m Elizabeth (21) dau. of
Robert (22) 1st Earl of Leicester. Gilbert de Clare (21) and
his wife Elizabeth of Leicester were also parents of Isabel de
Clare who m Robert VII Bruce (1253-1304) and became the mother
of Robert the Bruce, Robert I, King of Scotland (1306) 4 1329).
Son of .

19: Richard de Clare, 6th Earl of Clare, m Amicia, dau of Earl of
Hertford end Earl of Gloucester. Son of

20: Roger de Clare m . Son of

21: Richard 3rd Farl of Clare, & Earl of Hertford d 1136 (brother
of Gilvert (21) above. Son of

22: Gilbert Fitz-gilbert 4 1090, lst Earl of Clare m Robias Gifford,
dau of Walter Giffore, lat Earl of Buckingham and his wife Agnes
Flaitell.

2k: Gilbert "Crispin" Earl of Eu m Herleva, sister of Earl of Brion.

25: Godfrey, Earl of Eu, natural son of

26: Richard I, Duke of No\lmandy.

A : GISFORD 4
(Continuing Direct Male Line Crart.) (

Generation :

22: Adelaide Gifford m Sir Walter Tyrrell III. She dau of

23: Richard Gifford who m Matilda de Mortimer. He son of

2k: ialter Gifford or Giffard, Count de Longueville and lst. Earl
of Buckingham d 1084, m Agnes Flaitell, dau. of Gilbert
Flaitell and sister of Robias Flaitell who m Richard Fitz-
gllbert de Clare :

25:

Reference generation 22: Adelaide Gifford was a cousin of William

"the Conqueror”, King of England, who commanded her marriage. The

Giffards came from Normandy and were granted title in England as

Earls and Marquises by William the Conqueror.
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(Contingix;g CEART 1)

Glayds m ILleuver MNawr (Lucius the Great) a great grarison of Caradoc
succeeded to throne of Britain 170 A.D. and’d 181. She was iau of
Eurgen, daughter of

. a daughter of (m Meric, #66 in chart 3)
Boadicea (Boudicca), named by the Samans, Victoria). d 62 A.D. s Queen
of the Iceni and Trinovantes (Britons of Essex and Sussex succeeding

to this position on the death of hker h: sband, the King, whose name was
Prasutagus. :

. CHART 11
(Continuing CHART 2)

Eleanor of Castile m Edward I, King of England, daughter of
Ferdinard III, King of Castile and Leon, b 1191 d 1252 m Joanra, dau
of Simon de Darmartin, Co:'nt d'Almale and his wife, ¥arie, Countess
of FPonthieu ard a descendant of Charleragne. He was sd1 of
Alphonso IX, King of Leon, b 1166 & 1229 m (2nd) 1150, 3erengaria,
dau of Alphonso IX, King of Castile and his wife Eleanor, sister of
Kirg John of England. Son of

Ferdirand II, King of Leon 1157-1188 m 1160 Urraca {(d 1175), dau of
Alphonso, King of Portugsl and :%s wife “aud of Savoy. Son of
Alphonso-Raimond VII, King of Leon and his wife Berenguela, who was the
dau of Raymund IV of Barcelona in 1124 and his wife Marile.
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\C?.A.RT 12’ .
(Continuing CHART 1) * '

Eleanor of Provence m Henry III, King of England. Daughter of
Raymond Berenger IV, King of Provence m Beatrix, da: of Thomas,
Count of Savoy. Son of

Alphonso II, King of Provence 1196 to 1209, son of

Raimond VII, King of Aragon m Richilda of Poland. Son of

Alfonso II, King of Aragon b 1151 d 1196 m Sanchia, his cousin, dau
of Alphonso. Son qf

Petronella, Queen of Aragon, d 1172, m R mon (Raymond) Berenguer IV.
Count of Barcelona 1131-1162, a descendant of Charlemagne. Dau of
Ramirez II, King of Aragon, d 1147 m Agnes, dau of Willfam IX, Duke
of Aquitaine. Son of -

Sancho Remirez, King of Aragon, d 108L m 1063 Felice, dau of Hildwin
Counce of Rouci. Son of

Ramirez I, King of Aragon 1035-1063 m Gisberge, dau of Count Bernard
Roger, Son of

Sancho III, King of Navarre 1000-1035 m Munia, dau of Sancho of Cas-
tile who 4@ 1017. Son of

Garcia V, King of Navarre d 999 m Ximena, dau of Consalo, Count of
Asturlas and his wife Teresa. 3on of

Sancho II Abarca who d 994 m Urraca Clara, dau of Fortuno Ximinea of
Navarre. Son of

Garcia III, King of Navarre 921 4 971 m Teresa Iniquez, dau of
Endrogeta Galindez of Wavarre. Son of

Sancho I, King of Navarre 905 m Toda Dau of Arzar Galindez, Count of
Aragon. Son or

Garcia II, King of Navarre m Urraca Cascony, dau of a cousin, Sancho
II. Son of

Inigo Arista, 1lst King of Navarre m Iniga Xiwrena. Son of

Ximeno, Duke of Gascony d 816, m Munia. Son of

Adelrico, Duke of Gascony d 812. Son of

Loup II, Duke of Gascony, 4 778. Son of

Waifar, Duke of Aquitaine, d.768 m Adele, dau of Loup I, Duke of
Gascony, the son of Hatton, the son of Eudes and Valtrude (47)
below. Son of

Hunold, Duke of Aquitaine, 4 7;4. Son of

Arnolph, Bishop of Metz m

Eudes, Duke of Aquitaine 735 m Valtrude, dau of Valtrude and her
husband, Walchigise, Count of Verdon. Son of

Boggis, Duke of Aquitaine 4 688 m Ste. Cda. Son of

Charibert II b 608 d 631 m Gisela, dau of Amaud of Gascony. Son of
Clothaire II b 584 4 628 m Bertrude d 618. Son of

Chilperic I b 523 4 584 m Fredegonde b 543 4 598. 3on of

Clothaire I b 497 4 581 m Ingolde. Son of

Clovis and Clotilde.
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\\‘ CHART 13 ¢
(Continuing CHART 2)

Isabella Taillefer b 1183 4 1246 m John, King of England, (m 2rd,

Hugh le Brur, Count of Marce. TCaughter of

Alice, m Aymer, Count of Angouleme (Aymer de Taillefer). Daughter of
Peter, Prince of France, Lord of Courtenay & Auxerre, m Elizabeth, dau
of Reginald, Lord of Courtenay. He was 5th son of

Louis VI, King of France, "the Fat", 1108-1137, b 1081 4 1 Aug 1137, m
1115 Alice, dau of Count Hubert II of Savoy. (Louis VI m 2nd 1128,
Matilda dau of Henry I, King of England) Son of

Philip I, King of France b 1052 4 July 1108 at Melun, King 1060-1108, m
1st 1071 Bertha, dau of Florent I, Count of Frisia (Holland). Son of
Henry I, King of France 1031-1060, b 1008 4 1060, m Lady Ann, da: of
Jaroslaus, Grand Duke of Russia. Son of

Robert the Picus, King of France 996-1031, b 970 4 1031, m 2~d 99 ., his
cousin Bertha of Burgundy (b962). Son of

Hugh Capet, King of France b 940 d 996, Duke of France 956-996, King
987-996. Son of

Hugh, Duke of France d 956 m 3rd Hedwiga, dau of Kenry I, the Fowler,
King of Germany. Son of

Robert II, Duke of France, son of

Robert I, Duke of France and Count of Paris, son of

Wittekind IIT, Count of Wetten, son of

Wittekind II, Count of Wetten, son of

Wittekind, King of Westphalia and of the West Saxcns, d 807 (line
continued in Chart 7c.)
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CHART 15
(Cortinuing CHART 2)

/ o
Geoffrey "Plantagent" of Anjou b 1113 4 1151 m Metilda of England b
1103 d 1167, a great great great granddaughter of Richard I, Duke of
Normardy and his wife lady Gunnora as follows: Richard I's son Richard
II, Duke of Notmandy d 1026 having married Judity de Bretagne who died
in 1018. Their son Robert of Normandy by Herleve de Falsise had Wil-
liam the Conqueror who married Maud of Flanders and had Henry I, King
of England who married Matilda, dau of Malcolm ITT Carmore of Scotland
and had Matilda, who married Ceoffrey Plantagenet. Son of
Fulk V, Count of Anjou b 1092, d 114 , m Ermengarda du Maine who died
ia 1126, Son of (He was Xing o2 Jerusalem also)
Fulk IV, Count of Anjou b 1043 d 1109 m 3ertrade de Montfort (#36
below). Son of
Ceoffrey II de Gastinois m Ermergardo of Anjou. Son of
Beatrice of Macon m Geoffrey I de Gastinois. Dau of
Ermertrude Roucil (Roucy) who m Alberic II, Count of Macon 4 9715, Dau-
ghter of
Albreda of Lorraize m P2naud, Coun:t de Joucy wno 4 972. Dau of
Giseltert, Cuke of Lorraine m Gerburga and d 930. Son of
Regnier I, Count of Haiceult 4 918 m Altreia. 3Soa of
Zrmengarde, m Giselbert Dau of
Lothaire, Mmperor of Germany m Erme:ugarie of Alsace. Son of
Louls I, "the Debonzaire” King of Franze b 788 4 80 m (1) Ermengerde
who d 818, da' of I:gram, Count of Yasta-‘a. Son of
Charlemegne and his wife Hildegarile of Savoy.

\' CHART 16
(Continuing CHART 2)

Henry I, King of Ergland m Edith Matilda, dau of Malcolm IIT Ganmore,
King of Scotland. FKe was son of
wWilliam the Conquersr, King of England 1056-1087, m Matilda, dau of
Baldwin V, Couxt of Flanders and his wife Adele, da of Robert, King
of France. Son of
Rotert, 6th Duke of ormandy 4 1035 wao had William by Herleve de
Falaise (also called Arlotta) dau of & taaner Fulbert de Falaise and
his wife Dodo. Herleve afterwards became the wife of Herlouin de
Conteville and i3 tae ancestress of Eleazor of Aqultaire, mother of
King John of Englard. Son of
Richard, Duke of Normandy 4 1026 m Judizh, da . of Coran I, Count of
Bretagne ard his wife Emengarde d'Anjou. Son of
Kickard "the Fearless", 3rd Duke of Hormaudy o 933 4 996 m Lady
Guznora of Dermark. Son of '
William "Longsword”, Duke of llorma:ly m a co.sin Espriota (Adele)
da.. of Hubert, Coust of Senlis. Soun of
Rollo, the Dane, 1st Duke of Normariy, zalled also Rolf the Walker,
nm Lady Poppa de Valois, dau of Cerengarius of Pareaux. Rollo lived
5£C-932, son of
Roymrald the Mighty who married Hilda.
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\\V CHART 16A
(Continuing CHART # 16)

Matilda m William the Conqueror, King of England. Daughter of
Baldwin V. Count of Flanders, m Adele, dau of Robert, King of France.
Son of

Baldwin IV, Count of Flanders, son of Amolph IT, Count of Flanders,
965-988, son of

Baldwin III, 4 962, son of

Adele, m Arnulph I, Count of Flanders, son of Baldwin II and grandson
of Baldwin I and his wife Judith, daughter of Charles II "the Bald",
King of France. She wasg daughter of

Herbtert II, Count of Vermandois and his wife Hildebrand._

\\N CHART 16B
(Continuing CEHART 16)

Judith de Bretagrne 4 1018 m Richard II Duke of Normandy who d 1035.
She was the da:ghter of

Ermengarde m Conan T, Count of Bretagne. Daughter of

£delaide de Chalons d 976 m Geof<rey, Count of Anjou who d 987.

She was the da ghter of

Rotert, Ccunt of Vermandois m Adeleide de Chalons. Son of

Yerbert I7, Tcunt of Vermandeis 4 9L3 m Hildebrand. Son of
Eerbert I, Count of Vermandois who m a sister of Robert I, King of
France. 3Son of

Fepin, son of

Bernhard, King of Lombardy d 818 m Cunegonde. Son of

Pepin b 776 4@ 810 m Bertha, dau of William Count of Toulouse. Soun of
Charleragne and his wife Hildegarde.
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"\ CHART 17
,(Continuing CHART 2)

Malcolm ITI Carmore, King of Scotland, b 102k d 1073 burled Icelmkill,
King 1057-1093, m 2nd, 1068 Margaret, dau of Edward the Exile, King of
England., Son of

‘Ducan, King of Scotland 1034-1040. Slain by MacBeth. Son of

Beatrice, m Crinan the Thane, Lay Abbot of Dunkeld. Dau of (eldest)
Malcolm II, King of Scotland 4 1040 having no sons. Of his daughters
the youngest Doda m Synel, Lord of Glammis and had a son Macbeth who
died in 1057. Son of i

Kenneth II, King of Scotland 970-994. Son of

Malcolm I, King of Scotland 942-954, d 958. Son of

Donald II, King of Scotland 889-900, d 903. Son of

Constantine I, King of Scotland 4 878. Son of

Kenneth I, King of Scotland, called Kenneth Macalpin, King 844-854, @
85%, son of

Alpin who 4 834, son of

Cochaidh Rinnamail, son of

Aodh (or Fugh) Fionn, son of

Donart, son of

Donald Breac, son of

Eochaidh Buidhe (from whose name the Boyd family is derived), son of
Edhan, son of

Gabhran, son of

Eochaidh, son of

Donart, son of

Fergus Mor Mac Earca, lived 498, grandson of Loarn, King of Dalrieda,
first King of Scotland. Son of ‘
Muredach, son of

Eoghan (or Owen), son of

Niall Mor, krown as Niall of the Nine Hostages, son of

Eochaidh Miugh Meadhoin, son of

Muredach Tireach, son of

Aiofe, a great grand daughter of Caol (0ld King Cole), #65 of Chart 3,
m Fiacha Strabhteine. Daughter of

Caol, Old King Cole, who d 170 A.D. (Continued in Chart 2.)

i
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\ CHART 18 .
(Continuing CHART 2)

31. Agatha m Edward the Exile, King of Englend 4 1050, son of Edmund
Ironsides, King of England and his wife Algitha. Deu of

32. Henry II "The Saint" b 973 d 102k, Duke of Bavaria 995-102%, Holy
Roman Emperor 1014, last of the Saxon Fmperors, son of

33. Henry II, Duke of Bavaria "the Wrangler” b 951 d 995, Duke 955-976
and 985-995, son of

34, Henry I, Duke of Bavaria 9.8-955, brother of Otto the Great, and
the son of ' :

35, Mathilde m Henry I, "the Fowler", b 876? 4 936, Holy Roman Emperor,
Duke of Saxony 912-936, King of Germeny 919-936, She was-the dau of

36. Theoderich, Margrave of Westpaalia 904, Duke of Wesipnalia 909, son of

37. Reglnbern b 855 d before 872, son of

38. Walbert 4 837 4 876, son of

39. Wigvert 4 after 83:, son of

40, Witekend, Duke of Westphalla 777 & about 807-810, King of the West
Saxons, son of

41. Wernicke, King of the West Saxons.

N CHART 19
(Continuing CZART 3)

29. Adelaide married Sir Walter Tyrrell TII. She was a cousin of Wil-
liam the Conqueror, who cammarded nher marrisge, and dau of

30. EKichard Gifford m Matilda de Mortimer. Son of

31. Walter Gifford, Count of Tongueville, lst Earl of Suckingham 4 128%,
m Agnes, dau of Gilbert Flaitell (who had another daz Robias who m
Gitzgilbert de Clare.)

\’ CHART 20
(Zontinuing CHART 3)

35. Edelgarde m Waleran, Court of Fontoise, Chaumont, antes and the
Vexin. She was dau of

26. Arnulf "Magnus", Count of Flanders m Alix, dau of Herbert of Ver-
mandois. Son of

37. Baldwin II, Count of Flanders, son of -

38. Judith m 3aldwin "the Hardy", Count of Flanders. Dau of

39. Charles the Bald, King o? France m Ermentrude of Orleans. Son of

40. ILouls I, King of France, son of

41, Charlemagne and Hildegarde of Savoy.
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\b CHART 21
(Continuing CHART 3)

Elithilda m Ausbert, son of Ferreolus, Duke of Moselle m Deutria, a
Roman Lady. Dau of ’ .

Clothaire I, King of the Franks 558-561, King of Austrasia and Neustria,
son of

Clovis I (Chlodovech), King of the Franks 481-511, born about 466 m
Clotilda (475-545) son of .

Chi%deric I, King of the Salian Franks 458-481, son of (1) (m Fredeg-
und

Merovse, Merovingian King 448-458 of the Salian Franks, son of (?)
Clodion, King of the Franks 425.-448, '

cHART 22
(Continuing CHART 3)

Mercomir IV, Kirg of Franconia d 149 m Athildis, dau of Caol (Coilus)
King of the Ermitons, known as "0ld King Cole". Son of

Odemir, son of

Richenor, A,D. 114, son of

Ratherius, A,D. 90, son of

Antenor IV, A,D. 69, son of

Clodomir ITI, A.D. 63, son of

Marcomir ITI, A.D. 50, son of

Clodius IT, A.D. 20, son of

Frankus, B,C. 9, King of the West Franks, son of

Antharius, son of ’

Cassander, B.C. Tk, son of

Meredscus, B.C. 95, son of

Clodomir IT, B.C. 125, scn of

Antenor IIT, B.C. 143, son of

Clodius I, B.C. 159, son of

Marcomir II, 3.C, 170, son of

Micanor B.C. 198, m dau of Elidure, King of the Britons, Son of
Clodomir I, B.C. 232, son of ' :
Bassanus Magnus, B.C. 250, King of Orcades, son of

Hellenus, B.C. 294, son of (Dicles)

Hellenus, B.C. 339, son of

Primaus, B.C. 358, son of

Antenor II, B.C. 384 m Cambra. Son of

Marcomir I, B,C. 412, son of

Antenor I, King of the Cimmerians, a people inhabiting the shores
of the Sea of Azof, now known as the Crimea, living 32.C. 443,
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\ TREE A. \ &

Charlemagne b 2 Apr 42 m 773 Fildegarde of Suabla. had

Fepin, King of Ttaly @ 810 m Bertha of Youlouse. He was b 776 and 4
8 July 810, 4kth crild of Charlemagne and Hildegarde. nad

Bernard King of Lombardy 4 818 m Cunegonde and had

Pepin, Count of Vermandois 4 840, had

Hervert I, Count of Vermandois 4 902 m dau of Robert le ¥ort and had
Beatrice of Vermandois m Nobert, King of France, 4 923, had

Fugh the Great, Duke of France m Hedwige (Hawise), dau of Henry I of
Cerxzany and had

Hugh Capet, King of France d 996 m Adela [Adelaide) had

Robert the Pious, King of France d 1031 m Constance and had

Henry I, King of France m 1051 Anne of Russia and had

Fhilip I, King of France m 1072 Bertha of Holland and had

Louis VI, King of France m 1115 Alice (Adelaide) of Maurienne and had

Zouis VII, King of France m 1160 Alice (Adelaide) of Champagne, had

Philip IZ, King of Srance m 1180 Isabella of Hainault and had

Ilouls VIIi, King of France m 12C0 Elanche of Castile and had

Rovert I, Co nt of Aricis m 1237 Maud of Brabant and had

Blanche of Artois m 1269 Henry I, King of lavarre and had

Jeanne of Navarre m 1284 Fhilip IV, King of France and nad

Isatella of France m 1308 Edward I, King of England and rad

Zdward IIT, King of Erglend.

LI g

PEDIGREE R.

~%
1-8 Pedigree A----Eugh Capet m Adels and tad

3.

10.
11.
12.
13.
1h,
15.
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Edith of France m Regrnier TV, Count of Kainault, 4 1012. thad
Bea“rice of Hairault m Ebles I, Count of Roucy ard had
Alice Roucy m Hildouin IV, Count of Montdidier and had
Andre de Roucy, Lcrd of Fameru m Alice? had
Aclele od Pareru m Gautnler IZ, Count of Brienne and had

Erard IT, Count of Briernne d 1189 m Agnes de Monitfaucon, had
Jean de Brileane, King of .Jerusalem d 1237 m Berengaria of Leon

{522 Tedigree U.) e
e —————
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\ PEDIGREE C. <
Sveide the Viking

follows a remarksble uniterrupted all male descent shared in common

by Surety Barons Richard and Gilbert de Clare, Roger and Hugh Biged,
Robert FitzWalter, Stronghow, and William the Conqueror,

1.
2.

3.
4,
3.

Qe

Te
'8-

9.
10.
N11.
." 1.2.

13.
1k,

15.
16.

1-k

9‘
10,
ll.

\- 13.
w 4o
- 15.
° 16.

Sveide the Viking, a Norse King A.D. 760 had

Halfdam the Old, died 800 had

Ivar, Earl of the Uplands m dau of Eystein Glumra and had

Eystien, Earl of More m Arseda of Jutland and had

Rognvald, Earl of More d 890 m Hilda and had

Rollo, Duke of Normandy b 846 & 931 m Lady Poppa (puppet or little
doll), sister of Bernard of St, Lig (Senlis) and had

Williem Longsword, d 942 m Espriota and had

Richard the Fearless b 933 d 996 m Gunnora Crepon and had

Geoffrey (Godfrey) Count of Eu and had

Gilbert, Covnt d'Eu 4 after 1040, had

Richerd FitzGilbert de Clare (Bainfaite) d 1090 m Rohese d Walter
Gifferd de Bolebec and had

Gilbert de Tonebruge de Clare m Adeliza dau of Hugh, Count of Cler-
mont, a descendant of Hugh Capet and Louis IV, K of France., had
Richard FitzGilbert de Clare m Adeliza dau Ranaulph de Meschires,
Earl of Chester (also a descendant of Sveide through Richard II the

“good (Pedtgzree G), whose wife Lucia Tailbols was a great grand-

daughter of Led; Godiva and also King Ethelbert (Pedigree R). had
Roger de Clare "the Good", Earl of Hertford 4 1173 m Maud, da: James
de St. Hilliary (whose ancestry has apparently not been preserved.)
Their daughter Mabel was the mother of William de Mowbray the Surety.
Their son was

Richard de Clare, the Surety m Amice (Amicia) whose mother Hawise
Beaumont was descended from Rulers of France and Russia. had :
Gilbert de Clare, the Surety, Tth Earl of Clare m Isabella Marshall,
dau of William Marshall the Protector and sister of William Marshall
the Surety. They had

IHINOEEE46 %
PEDIGREE D
Roger and Hugh Bigod

Sveide the Viking to

Rognvald m Hilda and had:

Hrollager m Emina and had:

Rollo (Thurstan) m Gerlotte and had:

Ansfred the Dane had:

Ansfred de Goz had:

Turstain de Goz m Judith Monterolier and had:

Robert Sigod who had -

Rogert Bigod who had:

Roger Bigod d 1107 m Adeliza, dau Hugh de Grantmesnil and had:

Hugh Bigod 4@ 1170 m Juliana, dau Alberic de Vere and his wife Adeliza.
Roger Bigod, the Surety, d 1211 m Isatel Plantagenet and had

Hugh Bigod, the Surety, m Maud, sister of William Marshall the Surety
and daughter of William Marshall the Protector. Her sister, Isabell

m Gilbert, 7th Earl of Clare {Pedigree C.)
IR IOEHERSRGE ’
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PEDIGREE E. , -
1-10 Sveide the Viking to

1l. Richart FitzGilbert de Clsre (Pedigree C) m Rohese and had

12. Robert FitzRichard de Tonebruge m Yaude St. Liz (Pedigree P) had
13. Walter Fitzrotert m Mgrgaret and had

14. Robert FitzWalter, the Surety.

P FHHEIHOREHNE )
) PECIGREE F. /i
1-11 Sveide the Viking to
12. Gilbert de Tonebruge de Clare m Adeliza Clermont and had
13. Gilbert de Clare, 1lst Earl of Pembroke 1100-1148 m (1) Elizabeth
(1sabel) Beaumont dau of Isabel Vermandois had .
14. Richard de Clare, called Strongbow, 2nd Earl of Pembroke and Clare
d 1176 m Eva (& 1177) descerded from King Cilleil (Pedigree Q) had
15. Isabel Cl re Countess of Pembroke b 1172 m 1189 Williem
L. Marstell the Protector, Earl of Pembroke in right of nis wife, had
\_16. Isabella who married Giltert, Tth Zarl of Clare (Pedigree C):
16. Sibilla m William de Ferrers:
_16. Meud m (1) Hugh Etgod, m (2nd) Williem de Warren: —
16. Eve m William Breos: , try
J. Joan m Warin, Lord of Montcrensi.

A SRR R RNAN R
PEDPIGREE G i /e

1.7 Sveide the Viking %o

8. Richard the Fearless who had

9. Richard the Good, m sudith of Brittany and had
10. Robert of Normandy by Herleve (Arletta) had
11. Willism the Conqueror. :

bz ad 2 e o X 3 r ot o I

FEDIGREE H N\ —é{\
8

1-11 Svelde the Viking to -

12, Gilbert de Clare m Adel’za Glermont and had

13. Adeliza Clare m Aliberic de Vere ard had

14. Adeliza Vere m Roger FitzRichard end had

15. Robert FitzRoger m Margaret, dau William de Chensy (Chesney) and had
16. Rovert FitzRobert, the Surety.

W IR NI I NN eI

o, %
FEDIGREE J < Q’z‘
1-12 Sveide the Viking to

13. Richard FitzGilbert de Clare m Adeliza Meschines and had

1k, Alice Clare m William de Percie ard rad

15. Agnes Fercle m Joscelin a brother-in-law of Henry I of England and had
16. PRichard de Percy, the Surety. :

A2 ez otk S22
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1-11 Sveide the Viking to
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18.
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20.
2l.
22.
23.
24,

Gilbert de Clare m Adeliza Clermont and had

Adeliza Clare who m Alberic de Vere and had

Audrey d€ Vere m fucia (Alice) of Essex, great grard-daughter of
Roger Bigod and his wife Adeliza Grantmesnil and had %
Robert de Vere, the Surety. .

A HIIIEOHHOHE

FPEDIGREE L

Clovis (hence Louis), son of Childeric (Pedigree V) m Clotilde of
Burgundy in 493, she was born 475 and died at Tours 545, "the girl

of the French vineyards" (afterwards Ste. Clothilie) they had
Clothaire I m Ingonde and had

Blithildis 4 576 m Ausbert and had

Arnould, Bishop of Metz 4 601 m 0da of Saxory and had

St. Arnould, d 641 m Lady Dodo of Saxony and had

Anchises 4 685 m Lady Pegga of Branbant who d €93 had

Pepin d'Heristal 4 Tlh m Alpeis and had

Charles Martel b 639 4@ 724 m Rotrude aud had

Pepin le bref (the short) b Tl4 m Bertna of Laon, < "83 had
Charlemagne, King of the Franks m Hildegarde of Swabia arnd nad

Louis I, King of France, "the Debonraire"” m (2rd) in 815 Juditn,

d 843, Had
Charles II, the Bald, King of France m Ermergarde of >rleans and rad
Judith of France b 844, widow of Ethelwulf, m (2nd) Zeldwin I, Co.nt
of Flaners and they had
Beldwin II, Count of Flanders m Elfrida, da. Alfrsd the Great, King of
Erngland and they had 2
Arnulph I, Count of Flarders m Alice (Adele) Vermandois and had \46\.(
Elstrude of Flanders m Sigfrid, Count of Guines and had 2,
Heloise Guines m Crispin de Bec and had
Gilbert Crispin m Guanore d‘Aunou, dau of Baldric the Teuton and hed
Elsie Crispin m Williem, Lord Malet, 4 1072 called grandson of Codiva ‘\QQ(

They had as their third son &0
Gilbert Malet wio had q-’
Robert Malet who had

William Malet who had
Gilbert Malet m Alice, dau Ralph Picot and ad
Williem Malet, the Surety.

HAEIOOHORRO0E

\, PEDIGREE M

Cerdic, King of Wessex d 534;
Creoda;
Cynric, King of Wessex d 560;
Cealwine (Ceolin, King of Wessex d 593;
Cuthwine;
Cuthwulf (Cutha);
Ceolweald;
' (cont.)
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18.
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Tedigree M (Cont.)

Cenred; o
Ingild, 4 718;

Eopra;

Eafa;

Eahlmund \Alemund )

Egbert, 1lst King of All Eritain, King of Enid, m Lady Redburga and had;
Ethelwulf, King of England, m Zady Osburga and had;

Alfred f‘ne Great m Tady Alswitha and had; '

Elfrida 4 929 m Baldwin -T, Count of Flanders and had;

Arnuiph I, Count cf Flanders d 963 m Maud of Saxony;

Arnulph II, Count of Flanders d 988 m Rosala of Italy, dau of Berenger.
King of Italy. had;

Baldwin IV, Count of Flanders d 1039 m Ctgiva of Luxembourg. and had;
Baldwin V, Covnt of Flarders d 1067 m Adele of France, dau of Robert
the Plous, King of France ard Constance his wife. had;

Baldwin Vi, Count of Flanders m Richiidis and had

Gllbert de Gant m Alice Montfort;

Agnes Gant m William ritzNigel de Halton and had;

Agnes Halton m Eustace Fiftziohn de Burgo 4@ 1157 and had;

Richard Fi1tzE stace alias Tacle m Albride Liscurs, heiress of lLacie
and assired the name to inherit. had;

John de ilacie m Alice, sister of William de Mandeville and had;

. Roger de Zacie m aud, da of Richard de Clare, the Surety ~Pedigree

2.7 and they hLad
<ohn de Tacie "arga*et. grand davgater of Suret , Szire de Quincey;
Maud Zacie m Richard, Bth Earl of Clare, son of Gilbert, the Surety.

HHEW PN RPN SR

PEDIGSEE N &g

1-24 Cedric {Pedigree M) to ,\,7‘«- 5
25. Richard FitzEustace allas Tacie m Albreda Tisours and had; s t Gﬂ
26. Roger FitzPichard m Adeliza Vere (Ted!gree H) and hsd; %iﬁ
27. Rcbtert FitzRoger m Margaret Cheney arnd had; \% 4
28. Jskn FitzRobert, the Surety. o %

N PECIGREE O 5&
1. Ruric of Xief 4 879;
2. Igor of Kief m Clga;
3. Sviatoslav m Debrima;
L. Vladimir of Kief d 1015 m Rognilds;
5. Jarcslav of Kief 4 1054 m Lngegard.e of Sweden;
6. Anne of Fussia @ 1075 m Henry I, King of France, son of Robert the

Fious, XKing of France. had;

T. Hugh Magnus m Adelhetd of Verxandcis;
8. 1Isabel Vermandcis m (2nd) William de Warren.
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1. Pharamond, Duke of the Fast Franks A.D. 404, King of West Franks 419,
d 430 (16th in descent from Boadicea) m Argotte and hed;

2. Adelbertus,,Duke of.-the Moasele, 4 491 and had;

3. Wembertus, Duke of the Moasele d 528 and had;

L. Ansebertus, Duke of the Mossele d 570, had;

5. Gertrudis d 655, wife of Richemeras, Duke in Francoina had;

6. Gerberga, wife.of Ega, Major Domo in France, d €46. had;

7. Erchembaldus, Major Domo 4 661, kad;

8. Lendifius, Major Domo d 680, had;

9. Adairicus, Duke of Alastia 4 741, had;

10. Adelbertus, Duke of Alsatia 4 Thl, had; .~

1l. Everhard, Duke of Alsatia had;

12, Warinus, Lord of Alterf in Swabia had;

13. Isenbart, father of the Quelphs, Lord of Altorf A.D, 780 m Ermentrude,
dau of Childebrand, Duke of Swabia and sister of Hildegarde, who m
Charlemagne. had;

1k. Guelph (Welf), Count of Andech b 787 d 818 m Edith of Saxony and had;

15. Conrad I of Burgundy b 800 d 863 m Adele, dau of Hugh Count of Tours;

16. Conrad II, Count of Tours b 820 d@ 881 m Ermentrude, dau of Liutfrid
IIT, Count of Upper Alsace, a descendant of Clovis the Great. Lad

17. Adelaide of Burgundy m Richard, Duke of Bourgegne died 921, had;

18. Alice of Burgundy m Regnier II, Count of Hainault d 932 had;

19. Regnier III, Count of Hainault d 973 m Adele and had;

20. Lambert I, Count of Louvaine d 1015 m GCerberga dau of Charles, Duke
of Lorraine who was the son of Louis IV, King of France. had;

21. Maud m Eustace I, Count of Boulogre and had;

22. Lambert, Count de Lens (Sens) d 1054 m (2nd) Adelaide, sister of
William the Congueror, and had;

23. Judith of Lens b 1054 m Waltheof II, Earl of Northampton, son of
Syward the Saxon. had; s

2k, Maud m Simon de St. Liz (Senlis) and had

25. Maud St. Liz m (lst) Robert FitzRichard de Tonebruge (Pedigree E),
father of; -

26. Walter FitzRobert m Margaret and had

27. Robert FitzWalter, the Surety.

FIEEEHHEREOOELEEE0E

PEDIGREE Q q{\

1. 0illoil, King of Leirster A.D., 460, 4 526, had; ‘Q‘;
2. Cormac, King of Leinster 4 567, had; X
3. Cairbre, King of Leinster d 546, had;
L. Colman Mor. King of Leinster, d 576, had;
5. Faolan, King of Leinster, d had;
6. Conal, King of Leinster d 663, m Huaisle of Meath and had;
7. Bran Mult, King of Leinster 4@ €89, had;
9. Murchad, King of Leinster d 726, had;
9. Muredac, King of Leinster 4 755, had;
10. Bran, King of Leinster d 795 m Eithne and had;
, (cont.)
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11.
12,
13.
1k,
15.
16.
18.
19.
20.
al.
22.

2;>' L]
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{Fedigree Q ccnt.) __ A @

Muredac, King of _einster d 818 and had; q41€~

Dunlaing, King of Leinster d 869 and had;

Cillecil, King of “eil ster d and had;

“gaire, King cf Leinster d 915, had;

Tuathal, whence C'Tocle, 4 956 and had;

Dundaing &'Toole, 4 10.4 had;

Doncuan J'Tocle d-1018 Lad;

Gillacomghall C'Tcole d 1041, had;

Giliacaemghin O'Toole 4 1056, had;

Concuan G'Tocle had; PP
Gillacomghall O'Tcole d 1219, had; -
Murcertac J'Toole m Inghin C'Byrne and had;

Yore T'Ioole m Termot MoMurrough, Xing of Zeinster b 1110 d 1191 had;
Eva of leinster 4 1177 m Richard de Clare called Strorgbow, descended
from Svelde the Vikirg (Fedigree F).

BN R RN RN IO
rEDICREE R

Godiva 4 1080, wife of Zecfric ITI, Earl of Mercla ani great grandson
of Alfred the Great, *ad;
Alfgar 777, Earl :f Mercla m [2nd) Elfgif', daughter of King Zthelred
IT cf Ingland and %is wife Elfleda. had;
Ealgith ‘Edith o7 Agatha) whe vas married first abo:t 1057 to Grif-
fith, Frince of l:rth ¥ales and had Nesta b 1058 who was married %o
Trahaern of Arwysile !son of Caradoc and grandson of Cynfyn ard
Queen Arnkaret {21 -f Pedigree X} and had ilyarch, Pri-ce of llorth
¥ales who married -y3dZ. and had Gladys who was marriei to Cwen Gwin-
edh {#2L of Pedigree W., grand parents of -lewellyn tize Great. Fal-
gith's seccnd husband was Harold IZ b 1022, Crowned Xing of England
6 Jar 1066, Amcng their children was
Cytha cf England who m Viadimir IT of Kief b 1053 4 1125, son of
Wesevcidus & 1092 who was son of .Jaroslaus d 1054 (#5 of Pedigr-= C)
and they had; _—
Harcid of Kief b 1077 d 1132 m Christina of Sweden and had;
Zsiaslav TX cf Kief 4 1i54 and had;
Felena (Euphrasyra) of Kief b 1130 4 1186. She became wife of Geza
iZ, Xing of Hungary and had;
Bela ITI of Hungary b 1148 d 1196 whose wife was Anne of Chatillon
ard they had;
Andreas IZ, King of Hungary 4 1235 m Gertrude of Meran and had;
Bela IV, King of Hungary b 1206 d 1273 m Marie, dau of Fmperor
Theod:ore Taccaris I and they hed;
Stephen V, King cf Fungary b 1240 4 1273 m Elizabeth and ha;
Trincess Malo of Hungary d 1313 m Charles IT, King of Naples b
1248 4 1309. Treir daughter

{cont.)



(Pedigree R cont.) .
13. Princess Margaret of Naples m Charles b 1270 d 1325, Count of
Velois, son of Philip III, King of France and they had;
14, Jeanne de Valois a 1352 m William the Good, Count of Hainault, had;
15. Philippas of Hainault b 1313 8 1369 m Edawrd III, King of England,
(Pedigrees S and T.) and they had a large family. :

IIEHIEEE IR EEEHEHE

-

PEDIGREE 8

1. Theodon I, Duke of Bavaria A.D, 500 had
2. Theodon II, Duke of Bavaria d 537, had
3. Theobald I, Duke of Bavaria d 567, had
4. Tessilo I, Duke of Bavaria d 609, had
5. Garibaldo, Duke of Bavaria m Gela, d 640 had
6. Theodon IIT d 630 m Regintrude gr-gr-gr- grand de ghter of Clovis, had
T. Tassilo, who had '
8. Grimaldo d@ 695 had
9. Theodon V 4 T17 had
10. Grimaldo IT m Viletrude and had
1l. Suanhilde m 725 Charles Martel "the Hammer", King of the Frarks, had
12. Landrade m Sigramine, Count of Hasbania and had
13. Gunderland, Count of Hasbania 4 778 and kad
14k, Ingram, Count of Hasbanie had
15. Emmengarde m Louis I the Debonraire, King of France had
16. Lothaire d 855 m Ermengarde of Alsace a=i had
17. Lothaire, King of Lorraine 4 869 m Valtrude and had
18. Berthas d 925 m Thibault of Arles and had
19. Bozo of Tuscany d 936 m Willa of Burgu:dy and had
20. Bertha m Raimond, Count of Toulouse d 950, had
2l. Guillsume II Count of Toulouse d 1037 m Exma of Provence and had
22. Pons, Count of Toulouse d 1060 m Adelmonde de la Marche and hsd
23. Guillaume, Count of Toulouse d 1093 m Fmma of Montaigne and had
2k, Maud of Toulouse m 1094 Guillaume IX, Duke of Aquitania and had
25. Guillaume X, Duke of Aquitania and d& 1135 m Eleanor of Chastellerant, had
26. Eleanor of Aquitaine m Henry IT, King of England and had
27. John, King of England m Isabella of Argouleme and had
) 28. Henry III, King of England m 1236 Elearor of Provence and had
@9. Edward I, King of England m 1254 Eleanor of Castile and besides Joan
of Acre, had
30. Edward IT m Isabel, dau of Philip II, King of France and had
<. 31. Edward ITI m Philippa of Hainault, dau William Count of Hainault, Zea-
land, Friesland and Holland. The mother of Edward III and Philippa
were cousins-germaine, had
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25,

26.
27

28.
29.
30.
31.

32-

33.
3)4'-

L2

R e A 2 s .
PECIGREE T

Winithar ("Jint.hemir) succeeded Hunimund as King of the Visigoths
A.T. 400 . had

'Wandalar, 4 459, had

Theodemer m Erchiva, 4 475 and had

Theoderic of Italy 4 52¢ m Erchiva and had

Theodora m Severinus, Count of Cartagena and had

Thecdosla (sister of St. Isidore} m Leovgild of Spain and had
Hermengild d 585 m Ingunda of France, dau of Sigibert, son of Clothaire,
son of Clovis (Pedigree T) and had

Anthanagild m Flavia Juliana and had

Ardebasto m Gode and had

Ervig!o of Spain m I:iubigotana, a descendant of Clovis arnd had
Fedro, Cuke of Jantabria e=d had

Fruela, Duke cf Cantabria 4 760, had

Redrigo Frolsz, Iord of Castile m Sanchia and hed

Dilego Rodriguez, Icrd of Castile m Paterna and had

rraca of Castile m Pamera> T of Zeon (son of #12) and had
Roderick, Count ¢f Castiie had

Tiego Rcdriguez m Asura and had

Su:lla Asura m Nun:z Nurez, “cunt of Amaya and had

Teresa Tainez m Ximenia Yunez had

Zain Fernandez had

Nuno “alnez m Ernzilona and had

“ain Nunez who ~ad

Dimgo lainez (Izstro) m Teresa Nunez de Amayo, da: of Nuno de Amaja
who was son of Alfonso % of Zeon who 4 1028, also descended from
12 above, They had

Roderigo Diaz, the <£1d, b 1040 d 1099 m 1074 Xime ila of Leon, da: of
Alfonss V of Leon who 4 2028, had

Elvira m Pamirc IT, Count af Mcncon and had

Garcia VII -f Wavarre d 1150 m Marguerite de 1'Aigle and had
Sazcho V of Navarre n 1190 and had

Thibavlt I of Navarre who had

Thibault I of Navarre m 1232 Marguerite de Bourbon and had

Henry I of Navarre m 1209 Blanche d'Artols, granddaughter of

Louis VIII of France and had

Jeanne of Navarre m 128L Philip IV King of France and had

Isabel f T"rance m 1308 Edward II, King of England and had

Edward 777 King of England m Philippa of Hainault




PEDIGREE U o’

1-26 (Pedigree T)

a7.
28.
29.

30.
3L.

32.
33.
34,

35.

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20,
21.
2.
23.
2k,
25.
26.

Garcia VII of Navarre d 1150 m Marguerite de 1l'Aigle andhad

Blanche of Navarre m Sancho IT of Castile d 1158, hed

Alfonso IX of Castile d 1214 m Eleanor, sister of King John and dau
of Henry II, King of England. had-

Berengaria of Castile m ilfonso IX, King of Leon and had

Berengaria of Navarre m Jean de Brienne, King of Jerusalem 1210 (b V7
1148 4 1237) and had \@’%(

Jean 4 1296 m Jeanne Chateandun and had .

Blanche Brienne m Williem de Fiennes living 1270, had

Margaret Fiennes m 1280 Edwund, Ist Lord Mortimer b 1261 d 1304, ‘{
great grandson of Llewellyn the Great. had

Roger Mortimer, lst Earl of March m Joanne Geneville .

FEHHINEOOHREOHE

PEDIGREE V
Queen Elizabeth II of England

Boadicea "Victoria", wife of Prasutagus, King of Englard, Queen of
England A.D. 62 whose dauvghter

(name unkrown) m Maric (Marius) son of Arvirag:s, Xing of
Britain and his wife Venlssa Julia, who was the daughter of Tiberias
Claudius, Emperor of Rome and son of Antcnia, the dau of Mark Anthony
b B.C, 83 and his wife Octavia. had
014 King Cole, Caol (Coilus) King of Britain 125 who had
Athildis who m Marcomir IV, king of Franconia and had
Clodomir IV 4 166 m Hasilda and had
King Farabert who had
King Sunno 4 213, had
King Hilderic 4 253, had
King Bartherus d 272 had
King Clodius IIT 4 298, had
King Walter 4 306, had
King Dagobert 4 317 had
Genebald I, Duke of East Franks 4 350, had
King Dagobert 4 379, had
King Clodius 4 389, had
King Marcamir & L4O4, had
Pharamond, King of Westphalia m Argotta and had
Clodio the Longhaired, K of Westphalla m Basina and had
Merovee, King of the Frarks d 458 m Verica and rad
Childeric I (436-48Bl) King of the Franks m Basira of Thuringia, had
Clovis the Great (456-511) King of France m St. Clotilde and N
Clothaire I (497-561) King of France m Ingonde and had
Blithildis who m Ausbert of Moselle d 570, had ‘7{3
Arnould, Bishop of Metz d 601 m Oda of Savoy and had 7
St. Arnould, Bishop of Metz d 641 m Lady Dodo of Saxony and had C
Anchises d 685 m Begga of Brabant d 696/8 and had
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27.
28.

30.

31.
32.
33.
34,
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
Lo.

L2,

Ly

(Fedigree V cont.) L

Fepin d'Heristal, Mayor of the Faiace @ 71k m Alpeis and had

Charles Martel (689-741) King of France m Rotrude d 724, had

Pepin le Bref (714-768), King of France m Bertha of Laond 783, had

Charlemagne { 742-81k) King of the Franks and Emperor of the West m
1ldegarde (757-782) and had

Pepin (776-810) King of Ttaly m Bertha of Toulouse and had

Bernhard, Kirg of iombardy d 810 m Curegonde and had

Fepin, & lay abbctt m 840 , -ad

Herbert I, Count of Vermandols d 202, had

Herbert II, Count of Vermandois 4 943 m Hildebrand and had

Robert, Count of Vermandois d 958 m Adelaide de Chalons and had

Adeialde, Countess of Chalons @ 976 m Geoffrey, Count of Anjou, had

13 iI7. Count of Anjou d 1040 m Hildegarde, had

Ermengarde d'Anjcu m Geoffrey IT of Gastirois and had

Fulk IV (1043-1109) Count of Anlou m Pertrade de Montfort and had

Fulk V {1092-114C) Count d Anjou m Ermesgarde du Maine d 1126, rad

Geoffrey of Flartegenet d'Anjou (1113-1151) m Matilia of England
{1103-1167) gr-daughter of Willlam the Corqueror, ..ad

fenry 17, Xing of England m Eleancr of Aquitaire ari had

rincess Eleanor m Alfonso IX, Xi=g of Castile 4 121k, had

cerengaria of “asiile d 1244 m Alfornsc TX {1186-1229) Xing of Leon, had

Terdirand IIT (1i91-1252) King cf Tasitile m 1237 Joan Ze Dammartin, nad

Zieancr of Castile d 1290 m 1254 Tdward T, King of &Ergland ard nad

Zdward IZ, King of Englend m Isabel of France and had

Edward IZI, King of England m Failippa of Ha: :ault {1313-1369), had

Zionel (1338-1368) Duke of Clareice m Elizabeth Burgh and had

“nilippe Plantagenet m Edmund de rortizer, Earl of March and had

Zlizabeth Mortimer m Henry de Fercy cziled "Hotspur” and had

Zenry de FTercy, Earl of Uorthimberlard m Eleanor Neville and had

Henry de Fercy, Earl of Northumbterlazd m Eleanor roynings and :ad

Margaret Percy = William Gasccigne, Lord of Bentley Manor arnd Lad

Elizateth Gascoigne m Gecrge de Tailboris, Lord of Kyme Manor a-d had

fnne Tailbois m Edward Iymoke, Lord of Screivelsby Manor, had

rrances Uymoke m Thomas Windebank, Lord of Manor of Eaines Hall, had

Mildred Windevank 1584-1630 m Rotert Reade 1600 of Linkenholt Pa:ish,

Herts 4 1626, nad

Col. George Reade b 25 Tct 1608 came o America 1637 d 1674 m Eliz-

abeth Martiau, a Huguenot, had

11ldred Reade (great grandmother of George Washington) m Col. Augus-

tus Warner 1643-1681 and had '

Mary Warner m 1680 Col. John Smith of Purton and had

Mildred Smith b 1682 m 1700 Robert Forteus of Newbottle, Va. (1697~ -

1758) and had

Rev. Robert Forteus 1705-1754 m 1736 Judith Cockayne 1702-1789 and had
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13.
1k.

15.
16.

17.
18.
19.
20.
2l.
22‘

23.
2k,

25.

26.
aT.

PEDIGREE W .‘

Cynedda Weledig a Roman officer, half Welsh, King of the Welsh about
400 A.D, had

Einlon the Impetuous, King of Gwynedd who had

Caswallon the Longhanded, Prince of North Wales d 517, had

Maelgwn the Tall, King of Gwynedd 4 547, had

Rhun, King of Gwynedd 4 586, had :

Beli, King of Gwynedd and Prince of North Wales d 599, had

Tego, King of Gwynedd, 4 613, had

Cadfan, reigned about 630, had

Caswallon, King of Gwynedd & Prince of North Wales 4 634, had
Cadwalader d 664, had .

Edwal, Prince of North Wales ruled over Anglesey, 4 712, had

Roderic Malwinrnoe, Prince of North Wales d 754 m Margaret dau of
Duptory, King of Ireland, had ' '
Cynan, King of Wales 755 d 811 m Matilda, dau of Earl of Flint, had
Eisyllt, Queen of Wales m Gwaird Prince of Dehubarth, King of Manaw
(Tth in descent from Uther Pendragon, father of King Arthur) hed
Merfyn Frych (Merwin the Freckled) m Nesta, Queen of Powys, had
Rhodu Mawr (Roderick the Great) b 844 d 878, King of all Wales m
Ankaret, Queen of South Wales (13th in descent from Cynedda (1 above)
Anarawd, Prince of North Wales d 916, had

Idwal, Prince of North Wales d 942 m his cousin Avendreg of Powys, had
Meyric, Prince of North Wales d 986, hed

Idwal, Prince of North Wales d 996, had

Iago, Prince of North Wales 4 1039 m Avendrug, had

Cynan, Prince of North Wales m Raignalt, great granddaughter of
Brian Boru, King of Ireland, hed

Griffith, Prince of North Wales m Ankaret of Teagaingl and had

Cwen Gwinedh, Prince of North Wales m Gladys, descended fram lady
Godiva (Pedigree R) and had

Torwerth, Prince of North Wales m Maret, dau of Madoc, son of Meri-
dith son of #22 Bladdyn and Haer (Pedigree X) and had

Llewellyn the great b 1173 m Tangwysl of Rhos of ancient lineage, had
four children:

a). Helen, eldest daughter married Robert de Quincey;

b). Gladys Dhu (dark eyed) m 1230 Ralph de Mortimer, great grand-
father of Roger Mortimer b 1287 husband of Joane Geneville
(Pedigree 0);

¢). Gryffydd (Griffith) Prince of North Wales d 1242 m Seneca, had
Llewellyn ab Gruffydd, Prince of North Wales 1246 m Eleanor, dau
Simon de Montfort, Lord Leicester and his wire Eleanor, dau of
King John of England;

d). Margaret of Wales dau of his second wife Joan d 1237 dau of King

John of England and his wife Agatha Ferrers. Margaret m lst John
de Braos and 2nd Walter Clifford.
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FEDIGREE 1 .

From Magna Charta by Wurts, Chapter 27, p 158.

i.

14,
16.

18.

‘.9.
20.

-
i

22.
23,
24,
25,
26,
27.

29.

Lé

Aedd Mawr (Edward the Great) King of the Britons who sppears to have
lived about 1300 B.C., the time of Ruth and Boaz. Had son
Brydain, who settled in the island at an early date. Had son
Ar~nys Tro was father of
Selys Hen; \
Brist; '
Comryn;
Ithcn;
Gweyrydd;
Peredur;
Llyfeinydd;
Teuged;
~larian;
I<hel;
Enir Fardd;
Calchwynydd;
Llywarch;
Tdwal;
Fhun;
Bleddyn;
largan;
Zerwynm;
Zeraint Feddu;
Erywlals;
Alafcn;
Anym;
Lingad;
reedisl;
Ceraint;
Melricn;
Arch;
Caid;
Ceri or Beli the Greast, King of Britain 140 B, C.,
Caswallon, King at the time of first invasion by Caesar. Had a brother
ramed Tud; Caswallon was father cf
Ilyr ‘Xing Lear) educated in Rome by Augustus Caesar; married Perardim,
dau of Heli and sister of Mary, the mother of Jesus. Father of
Bran, King of Siluril, Commander of the British fleet. In the year 36

- AJDe he resigned the crown to his son Carodoc and spent seven years

12 Fome and beceme the first Royal Convert to Christianity and was
taptised by the Apostle Paul, as was his son Carodoc and the latter's
two sons Cyilinus and Cynon. Bran was son of



36.

37.
38.

390

3k,

35.
36.

31.
32.

33.
34,

35.
36.

36.
37.

(Pedigree 1 cont.) o

Carodoc (Caractacus), King of Siluria (Mormouthshire, etc.), where he
died; b Trevan, Llanilid in Glamorganshire. Had three sons Cyllin
(Cylitnus); Lleyn (Iinus); and Cynon; and two daughters Eurgain and
Gladys. While in Rame his daughter Gladys was adopted by Emperor Clau-
dius between 52 and 59 A.D. and became Claudia Brittanica. In her
seventeenth year (A.D. 53) she married Rufus Pudens a Raman Senator.
She died A.D. 97. Carodoc was the son of

St. Cyllin, King of Siluria and first Bishop of Rome, son of

Prince Coel, living A.D. 120 son of _

King Lleuver Mawr, the second Blessed Sovereign, known as Lucius

the Great. -

Caswallon, great grandfather of Carodoc had, besides King Lear who
married Penardim, another son -_—
Tenuantius, father of

Cynvelin (Cymbeline), King of Britain whose eleventh son was
Arviresgus, King of Britain, second cousin of Carodoc and married
Julie Venissa, davghter of Tiberies Claudius, Rcman Emperor and sister
of the Roman Prince Britianicus who was descend=d ss follows:

Julia, sister of Julius Caesar, mother of

Atla who married Gaius Octavius and had

Octavia who married Mark Anthony (as his second wife) and had

Antonia the younger who m arried Drusus the son of Livia Drucilla {the
second wife of Emperor Tiberias Caesar) by her first marriage. had
Claudius, Roman Emperor known as Tiberias Claudius who married Valeria
Messalina end had

Julia Venissa who married Arviragus above.

Arviragus and Julia Venissa had

Meric (Marius the Great). King of Britain who married a daughter of
King Prasutagus and Queen Boadicea cf 3ritain, name i.uknown. They had
these two children: 38. Eurgen of whom more below; and a son Caol
(Coilus) who became King of Britain in 125 A.,D., familiarly known as
"014 King Cole" who "was a merry old soul", educated in Rome and
bullt Colchester "Coel-castra” and died 170 A.D. (Chapter 30 Magna
Charta) For the Frankish Kings descended from King Cole see Magna
Charta. Eurgen was the mother of 39. Gladys who became the wife

of Lleuver Mawr (ﬁ}ga’m\ve).
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39\ King Lleuver Mewr (Tucius the Great, a great grandson of Carodoc, suc-

l"O.‘

hl L4

!"'20

L3,

L8

eeded to the throne of Britain 170 A.D. as the first Christian King in
the World; died 181 A.D., married Gladys, daughter of Eurgen (#38
above; left an only recorded child, a daughter

Gladys who married Cadyan of Cambria and had

Strada "the fair" who married Coel, a later King of Colchester living
A.De 232, whose parentage is not sitated and had

Helen "of the cross". The ams of Colchester were a "cross with three
crowns", She was born 238 and dted 328, became wife of Constantius I
afterwards Empercr of Rome ard, in right of his wife, King of Britain
as Ccnstantine I. He was born 242 and died 306. They were parents of
Constantine the Great b 265 and 4 336. He married Fausta and had three
sons: Constantine IZ, Constantius II and Constans I. His eldest son,
Ccnstentine IT was father of Uther Pendragon, rather the ancestor of
Uther Ferndragen, King cf Britain 498, whese son, King Arthur of the
Round Table, Succeeded his father as King in 516 at the age of 15,
repulsed the Saxons and died 21 May S542. In a sumptuous tombd a* Glas-
tonbury he rests with his wife Guinevere. The second son of Helen and
Constantine the Great was

Constantius I who married Fausta and died 360 A.D. Their son
Constantius III m Placida and died 421. T™eir son was

Valentinian IIT 4 LS55, had

dilderic, King of the Vardals in 525, had

Hilda, wife of “rode VIT who d 548, nad

Talfdan, King of Teamark, ~ho had

Ivan Vidfadma, King of Dermark and Sweden in 660; had

Foric Siirgetard, King :f Tercark and Sweden in 700, had

Hareld Hille*rari, ¥Zrg ¢f Temrrark and Sweden 725, had

Sigard Fing, living 753, rad

Payner _.ibrok, ¥ing of lemark and Sweden 4 794 m Aslenya, had
Sigird Sncdiye, Kirg of lexzark and Sveler 4 830, hed

Horda Knut, King cf Dexmavk 4 850, had

Frotho, Xiang of Zermark 2 75, had

Gorm Erske, ¥ing of Cermark 4 890, m Sida, tad

Harald Parcus, King of lenmark who married Elgiva, daughter of Fthelred
I, King of Engiand and brother of Alfred the Great, had

Gorm del Gawmel, King of Temmark d 913, m Thyra and had

Harald Blas*and, King of Cermark 4 981, had

laly Gunnora (repcz, who married Richard I, 3rd Duke of Normandy b 933
d 966, They had bealde thelr gson Fichard =T, Duke of Normandy, a son
Robert 4'Evereux, the Arct:ishop d 10€7, had

‘Flchard, Count of Evereux who 4 1087 and had

Agres Everewx, who te:ame wife of Siron T de Montfort and had
Bertra:d Montfort, wife of Fulk IV, Count of Anjou b 1043 4 1109 and
who was descended from Caswallon (#33 above) as follows:



ha.

52.

1.
2.

3o

Caswallon; o

Tenantius;

Cynvelin;

Arviragus;

Meric (Marius the Great)

Caol (Coilus) "0ld King Cole, King of Britain in 125, had

Athildis who became wife of Marcomir IV King of Franconia who died
149 A. D., and had o

Clodomir IV, King of the Franks & 166 m Hasilda, dau of the King of
the Rugij and had

King Farabert d 186, had

King Sunno 4 213, had

King Hilderic 4 253, had .

King Bartherus 4 272, had

King Clodius IIT 4 298, had

King Walter 4@ 306, had

King Dagobert 4 317, had

Cenebald I, Duke of the East Franks d 350, had

King Clodius IV 4 389, had

King Marcomir, 4 404, had

King Pharamond m Argotta, dau of Genebald, had

King Clodio who m Basina de Thuringia d 455, had

Sigermerus I who m a dau of Ferreolus Tonantius a:d had

Ferreolus who m Deuteria a Roman lady and had

Ausbert 4 570 having married Blithildis dau of Clotrhaire I, Xing of
France (and his wife Ingonde) and grand daughter of Clovis the Great
Burgundy, "the girl of the French vineyards", had

Arnould, Bishop of Metz & 60L m Oda de Savoy and had

St. Arnolph, Bishop of Metz d €41 m Lady Dodo a:d had

Anchises who m Begga of Brabant (d 698) and had

\ PEDIGREE 3 A -
Henry III, King of England m Eleanor of Provence, had

Edward I, King of England m (1) Eleanor of Castile, had
Princess Elizabeth m Humphrey de Bohun, descended as follows:

A e

Henry de Bohun, the Surety, Earl of Hereford m Maud Fitz Geoffrey.

He was Sth in descnet from Malcolm III Carmore of Scotland. They had
Humphrey de Bohun m Maud dau Raoul, Count of Eu and hed

Humphrey de Bohun m lst Allianore Braos and had

Humphrey de Bohun d 1298 m Maud Fiennes and had

Humphrey de Bohun as above m Princess Elizabeth and they had

Eleanor Bohun m James Butler lst Barl of Ormonde and had

Petronella Butler m Gilbert 3rd Baron Talbot d 1387 and had

Richard, Baron Talbot of Blackmere m Ankaret le Strange descended
fram Suretys Robert de Vere and Saire de Quincey.
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Humphrey de Bohun as above m Maud dau Raoul Countx of Eu and also had
Alice Bohun m Kalph de Toni and had -
Constance Tonl m Fulk Fitswarin, 4th Earl of Whisington, Shropshire
d 1264, and they had
Fulk Fitzuarin, 5th B of Whitington b 1251 4 1351 m 1276 Margaret, dau
-Griffith de la Pole, Frince of Upper Powys and his wife Hawise Strangze
and they had -
Eugenla Fitzwarin m Williem de Mauduit and had
Warren de Mauduit m Elizabeth Iigle and had
Thonas de Maudui- m Eleancr Knoville and had
Sir Jchn de Mauduit m Julianna Brockland and had
Sir Thomas de Mauduit m Joan Basaingbourne and had .
Vaud (Matilda) Mauduit m Sir Henry de Greene of Greeres Norton beheaded
2 €ept. 1399 by Crder of Henry IV and who was descended (see below) from
Saire de Quincey: ‘

Richard de Quincey had

Rctert de Quincey m 2nd Crabilis and had

Saire de Quincey, the Surety, d 3 Wov. 1219 m Margare: dau Rotert de
Eciliowant and his wife Ferrpnella dau of Zugh Grarimesnil and had
tesldes Fiobtert wno m Helen, eldes: dau of lewellym the Creat and whose
cau Jcanne m Eumprrey de Bohun the Younger, arotler son

Rcger de @uincey, Zarl cf Winchester i235 m in same year m Helen !'sc-
tcnel, dau Aiar 'acTorei, Iard of Gailovay ard nls wife dau of Prince
~avid, a grandscr of King Lavid of S:ctland (Thap 30 Magna Charta) lne
of their three daugh-ers was o
Zia \Elera} Quincey 4 1296 m Alan la Zcucre, who was a son of Roger,
descended fr-m the Earls -f Erittany, nad

Eudz la Zouche living in 1273 m Milicent, dau Williem de Cantllupe a-d
his wife Eva Bracs., had

Lucy Zouche m Thoimas de Greene of Greens Norton, TLord of Boughtox 'aror
anrd trey rad : ‘

fenry de Greene 4 1369, Zord Thief Justice in 1353 m Catherire Drayson
deu William Iraytsn and of Royal descent, had

Henry de Greene, 2nd son, Iord of Lrayton, Northants, who m (as atove)
“aud dau Thuaraes de Mauduit, Iord of Hdarmliaster, Wilts ard they had
besides John de Sreene 2nd son, Lord of Drayson whose dau Isabella
married Richard de Vere, Iord of Adington Magna, a son

Thomas de Greene who had

, who had

Jonn de Greene b 1450 who had

Robert Greene of Rowridge Hall had

Rickard Greene who had

Plchard Greene b 1585 m Mary Hooker and had

"Surgeon”" John Greene, emigrant to America 1635 in the Ship "James" , nad
bty first wife Jcanna Tattershall

-emes Greere who x 2nd Elizabeth Anthony and had




™~
18,
19.

Jabex Greene b 17 May 1673 m 1lst Mary Barton and they had
Nathanael Greene b 4 Nov. 1707 m lst Phoebe Greene and 2nd Mary
Mott 18 April 1739 by whom he had Gen. Nathaniel Greene. - o
Revolutionary soldier who married Catherine Littlefield,

’

FHHHHOEHEHOR
PEDIGREE 3AA

Constantine the Great (Flavius Valerius Aurelius Conatantius) born

265 4 337 son of Constantius I, Roman Emperor of The East, m Fausts, had
Constantinus II @ 360 m Eusebia the Elder, had
Eusebia the Younger m Brycan, had

Cynan, King of Britain A. D. 385, had

Grallon, who had

Solamon of Britteny in France, had
Constantine, King of Britain 4 443, had

Uther Pendragon, King of Britain 498 m Ygerne (Igerna) and they had
King Arthur of the Round Table and his sister,

Anna (Margswse) who m 2nd Gwyar, Prince of Dehenbarth, grandson of
Llyarch the Aged, and they had

Tegid, Prince of Dehenbarth, South Wales and had

Algyn, who had

Sandde, Prince of Dehentarth living in 650, had

Elydyr, Prince of Dehenbarth who had

Owiard, King of Manaw, m Eisyllt, Queen of Gwynedd, North Wales,
descended from Cunedda (Cynedda, Pedigree W), and had

Merfyn Frych who m Nesta, Queen of Powys, and had

Rhodri Mawr (Roderick the Great) b 84l4 and m Ankeret (Pedigree 3B)

FOEEHEERPEERLE

PEDIGREE 3B

Aedd Mawr (Edward the Great b 1300 B. C., had
Brydain, who had '
Cyrdon, who had

Kwxyd B. B. 1200, who had

Enid, who had

Dodion, who had

Dyfnwald who had

Bell, who had

Gwrgen, who had

Cyhelyn B. C., 1000, who had

Seissilt, who had

Dan, who had

Murydd, who had

Elidr, who had

Ceraint B. C. 800, who had

Cadell, who had
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(Pedigree 3B Cont.)

17. Coel, who had

18. Perrax, father cf .

19. Xeren!, who rad

20. Arndrev B, C, 600, who had
21. UYrien who had

2, Zthel, whc had .

23, (lydawe, who nad

24, Elydne, who had

25. Gwrgust, who had

26. Meric. B. C. 40O, who had
27, Eleuddyd, who had

28. Crasche, who had

29, Twen, who had

30. Sei:=silt, who had

3L, Artrafel, whe had

32. =idce, wao had

33. FEvden B, 7, 200. who kad
34, zyvwrerch, whc had

35, Zawl, whe had

%. 7T, wko tad
37, Cag:ir (¥axcr. whe rad

38. ‘arcgan -lagra Trarta. wzs had
39, Zell lYawr, wr: had

+0. Affech E, ., 50, whe rad
Li, Affallsch, frad

bz, Cwen A, T, 1 *raed

43, Ture, rad

4L, Crwedde. hag

k5. Amwreid, had

48, Gerddufu, had

7. Tufu, wke rad

48. Cwr:ksil, wre had

L. Zol:i. A. T. 200

0. Gwrgain:

1. Tain;

2. (Cenedave;

53. Tagz, father of

54, Tegid;

55. Fadarn;

56. Zdeirn A. D. L0O;

57. Cunedda the Great (Magra Charta)
58. Ceredig;

39. Uffa;

5. Seirwell;

6l. Zrothan;

62. Arncthen;

63. Arthcles;

6. Clydawe;
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(Pedigree 3B Cont.) o

65. Siessyl (Cecil);
66. Arthen;
6T. Dufnwal;
68. Meuric;
69. Ankaret who m Rhodri Mawr (above).

)

FENHHHEHOHE

-

As to the place in England from which William and Richmond Terrell
came, there is much Obscurity, owing to the abscence of documentary
evidence on that point, and to the long period that has elapsed, nearly
two hundred and fifty years, since they came to the colony. One tradition
is that they came directly fram Ricimond, England; and that is samewhat
significant in this connection, as the residence of Sir Timothy Tyrrell
I, while he was an official member of the household of king Charles, must
have been in the neighborhood of Richmond, as the residence of the Stuart
Kings was at Hampton Court, nearby. It has been insisted by same that the
first Terrells in Virginia came fram England via the West Indies. The
Civil Wars in England caused the immigration of many of the old Cavalier
families, especially trhe younger sors, who could not inherit under the
laws of primogeniture, to the Colony of Virginia. The Tyrrells had
largely taken the losing side in the conflict and same of the more
adventurous spirits among the younger m=mbers of the family desired to
shake the dust of England from their feat and seek their fortunes in the
nev world. Therefore, being members of a family which had been loyal to
King Charles I in his great conflict with Parliament, they may have ob=-
tzined under the restoration of King Charles II, same authoritative position

with reference to the Crown Lands or royal hunting grounds in the Colory
of Virginia.

The wife of Willism Terrell was Susannah Water; and the tradition is
that Susannah came from England to meet and marry her husband, William,
accompanied by a retinue of servants, and escorted by her husband's
brother, Richmond. There is even a ramantic story connected with their
marriage. It is said that the family of William in England was Catholic,
but that while he was a student in England at the University of Oxford,
he became a Protestant, thus deeply argering his family; that he had courted
Susannah, who was also of a Catholic family, many of the old English families
being adherents of the faith at that time. Williem went to the Virginis
Colony this somewhat under his family's displeasure; he was followed later
on by Susannah, escorted, as above stated, by his brother, and the marriage
took place in Virginia. Of course, this i1s all traedition, and it cannot
be siad to have any very solid foundation. .

The eldest son of Willism and Susannah Terrell was Timothy, and the
descendants of this son, Timothy, are quite numerous today in Indiana,
Missouri and Colorado. William Terrell, the ancestor, lived in St. Paul's
Parish, Hanover Co., Va., and he and his wife were both members of the

d

53



established church (Episccpal.) This fact may Iend same color of truth to the
story cf their both having recanted from the Catholic faith in England. There
is a deed on record in Virginia from William and Susanzah Terrell to their son
Henry Terrell, dated March 16, 1725, for a tract of LOO acres of land situated
in King Williem County. William Terrell, the ancestor in Virginia, died at a
very advanced age, in 1727.

Tre descendants of this cld Essex county family thus transplanted to
Virginia soll some two hundred and fifty years ago, have worthily maintained
in America the sturdy and patriotic qualities characteristic of their stock
in the mother country. As Govenors, Senators, Judges, and other praminent
cfficers in the civil administration of their state and nation, they have taken
their full share cf honors and credit. In the wars on the border of Virginia
in Colonial days; at Talladega; at Guilford Court House, King's Mountian and
Yorktown in the Revolution; at the Horse Shce Rend and Yew Orleans under the
indamitable Jackscn; At Shiloh, Perryville, Cedar Creek, Cold Harbor ard on
many cotrer desperate cccasions and tattlefields of the late civil war, btoth
in ghe Federal and Confederate armies, the American descendents of the old
lierzan-French family of Tyrel de Poix have robly sustaired with their courage
end blccd the chivalric record established by their knightly forefa*thers at
the sliege of Acre in the Crusades, and at Crecy, Poiters and Agincourt.”

Tt ic not tre complier's purpcse to follow out the Terrells, which have
been 55 well written up, but to give the Terrell line of the descendents of
Atigail (Terrell; Rush (1760-1835) ss far as kncwn.

A histcry written Judge John Detney Ierrell, born 1775, son of Major
Henry Terrell and Ann Dabney, says that John Terrell of Granville Co., N. C.,
was & son of William and Susannah. Judge Jchn Labney Terr=ll was a great
"reprew of Sihn and James Terrell, arnd a grardson of Joel and his wife,
Elizaberth Axfrrd., An extract fram thils manuscript history of Joan Dabney
Terrell f2.2ows:

A HZSTCRY CF TIE TERKRELT: AND TABNEY FAMILIES
ty Jokn [abney Terrell,
to John Zavis Terrell, of Tuscalocsa, Alabama,

" Today T eilt down 5o write from chaoa. The reminiscences of men and
things s8¢0 long gone must in some things be the work of chaice. Sametime in
the latter part cf the sixteenth century, William Terrell must have emigrated
from England to America. Ke settled, lived and died in Hanover Co., Va., on
Pamunka, a smali river passing between Richmond and Fredericksburg into the
Rappahannock. The penisula formed by the stream and the Potomac forms the
Northern Neck of Virginia, the Fotomac dividing Virginia from Maryland.

Having no family register, I cannot know whom he married or whether he
came to the then Colonies a married or a single man. He was a tall, long,
hungry, ccarse man, with ox-line tones vastly wanting in flesh, black hair
and eyes, brows like two conjugal owls, mouth like the poorman’s louse, an
a nose like and elephant's probecscis, cne whole foot long. His voice was hard,
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keen, loud, and bursted like the very elements with an unearthly sepulchral
tone; and when irritated to its tip, little mean and crippled devils might
tremble.

I have seen old Sam compress his gaunt frame and mock his shivering
voice. Was it a misty dark night when the ghrill voice struck you, one's
flesh would weld to the bones like dried beef, or make one feel runnish
all over. Than him the very house of mourning could not beat him; the
shambles was not much power for his bed was a cowhide on the ground under
a mulberry, sheltered by the broad Heavens. There and thus he and his
wife dug the ground, made tobacco, bought Africans very low and became
independent. He was honest and respectable, but his command came to his
square, and so did others, or all dealings broke. -

Of his daughters I remember nothing. His sons, of whom I have heard,
were James, John, Joel and Timothy. John lived in Grenvile, Co., N. C.,
as did Timothy in Chatham, then whom perhaps the world never produced a
more finished highland devil. He was rich and honest, but drank freely
and all sorts of master devilment filled the measure of his utmost
capacity and his glory. He married a }artin, a king of folks many of whom
tormented with the blue devils, and many other sorts, and by this blood
Tim cast poison into his descendants. Those Tugaloe Terrells were his
children and old Molly Phil Martin was another; drink, fight, lie, swear
and maybe some stole a little.....Joel was the father of Harry, also called
Henry. With whom he intermarried, I have no recollection, unless it was
Elizabeth Axford, after whom, I think, ry sister Elizabeth was named.”

IO K%

SUPPOSED TERRELL IZSCENT

2: William Terrell of Hanover County, Va., (John m Eliz . 6 ch?
m Susannah Waters and had eight children: (Henry m Chiles & Woodson, 10 Ch
(David m Chiles, 9 ch,

// | (Ann m Lewis.
/ (Hannah m Bledsoe,
John Terrell lived in Granville County, (John m Douglas,
North Carolina. Marrled twice, apparently. (Agnes m Robert Washington
Six (?) children: (Jeptha m Hockaday,
‘Hezekiah m Phoebe Martin,

/ (Ann m William Martin.
Hezekiah Terrell married Phoebe Martin, (Timothy b 1762
daughter of John and Rachel Martin. 3 ch: (Halcot b 1768 m Cook

(Abigil b 1760 m Wm. Rush
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/ : (Benj. ‘Rush m Harris, 9 ch
(Sarah Rush m Cheairs, 11 ch,
(Mollie Rush m Beird, 5 ch,
(Grigsby Rush m Marris, 10 ch,
Abigail Terrell born 1760.married 1775 (Rebecca Rush m Frizzle, 10 ch,
Williem Rush and they had ten children: (Terrell Rush, d.s.p.,
(wil1liam Rush, d.s.p.,
// {Martin Rush m Bell & Christian,
. . (Nancy Rush m Sedberry, 10 ch,
// (Alice Rush m Arthur Harris.

/ : {Elizateth Rush m Priest, 11 ch,
/ (Fancy m Gilbert, 7T-ch,
/ _ {Abigail m French, 11 ch,
(wm. Terrell m Campbell, 11 ch,
Grigsby Eush (1784-1845) xarried {Tane m Gilbert, L ch,
Priscilla Harris amd they had ten (Saxlie M Campbell, ll ch,
children: /Martin m Arnold & Morrow, 8 ch,
/ (Emelire m Harris, 5 ch,
(Benjamin died in infancy
(Miranda C. m Cagoe, 5 ch.

/ { razes Grigsby Priest, d.s.p.,
/ (Ag:illas R, m Crigler, 3 ch,
/ ég}r scilla F. m iyres, 2 ci,
.2artin Rush m I:rley, 2 ch,
Elizabeth Kush married Gecrge Ziutble- ywizvanda E. m Griistead, il ch,
f2eld Friest and they had 1l children: ( Rarziiia E. m Richardsoa, 3 ch,
(3ee Rusk Chart) {Gesrge Tidymus, d.s.p.,
{"n, W. M. m Ezonimus, 7 ch,

(Zavinia Virgi~ia, d.s.p.,
{Victcrene A. m Hedger, 4 ch,
(Eugene L. m Adams, 4 ch.

John Terrell, ancestor ¢f the compiler, was born in Virginia about
1700-1710, and died in Franklin c., N. C., after 3ept. 1779, and before

~ -0

March 1789, as shown by the Franklin County Records.

According to the Virginia Magazirs Vol. 16: p 192, he received a grant
of land on the ncrth side of the Rapidan, in 3Spotsylvania Co., Va. in 1730,
as a resident of Caroline Co., Va.

He applled for land in Edgecomb Zo., N. J., 25 July 1743, 500 acres (N.
C. Records, p 635.) This land was later in Franklin County, but due to the
changes in county lines, we find him: .

in 1Th3 in Edgecomb Co. (supra) .
Zn 1755, on Crcoked Creek, in Granville Co.,
In 1761, on Sandy Creek, in Granville Cc.,
Zn 1755, in Bute “ounty,

In 1779-89, in Franklin Co.
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His son, Hezekiah, through Hezekiah's ‘daughter Abigail, who married
William Rush, was the ancestor of the Rush-Terrell descendants listed in
these genealogies by the compiler, Nellie F. Ayres.

As previously stated, Miss Kelly has done much original research in
North Carolina and Virginia on her lirnes, and has freely given of her notes
to the campiler. In 1940, she sent the following notes on the Terrell
Femily: '

COMMENTS ON THE TYRRELL TEHRELL NOTES BY MAUD MCLURE KELLY.

RICHMOND TERRELL

The Vestry Book of St. Peter's Parish, New Kent Co., Va., as published
lists a "Richmond Terrell” as signing the list of Grievances dated 2 April
1677, but the photograph of the signatures shows the sigrature as "Richmond
Terrell Jr." (Page XLVII.) The Junior, however, seems amitted in 1689,
(p19), which suggests that Richard Sr. was living in 1677, but was dead
by 1689. That he was living there i8 corroborated by the will of Robert
Tyrrell dated 20 Oct 1677. (Va. Mag. p 190-192).

WILLIAM TERRELL

Willlam Terrell, son of Robert Tyrrell, of Reading and brother of
Richmond Terrell, had probably removed to Virginia previously to 1670, sirce
he was mentioned on April 26, 1670 in a deed made by Richmond Terrell of
land in New Kent Co., Va., in which the exception is made of "100 acres for-
merly given unto my brother, Willfam Terrill and since so0ld by him to Francis
Waring." (Wm. & Mary 23 p 263.) As the word desceamsed was not used, it
suggests that Williem was then living and as no residence is named, it
suggests that he was then living in New Kent County, Va., also: destruction
of the records of that section of Virginia prevent a complete unravelling
of the story of these lines.

As no land grants to William Terrell have been found, he evidently

bought his land from same one who had received grants, unless he was living
after 1700.

Although he 1is not named in the will of his brother Robert in 1677,
the fact that his two children are named as his and that the word "Deceased”
is agein amitted, suggests that he himgelf was then living; it also suggests
that he was not in a poverty stricken condition, and that he was not live
ing near the testator. It is noted that but two children were mentioned,
and that the daughter's name 18 left blank, as if the testator did not

knovw her name, this being the only instance in the will where the full
Christlian name and relationship to the testator are not given.

Various Terrell land grants after 1700 are listed in Virginia Magazine
16, p 190-192. By re-arranging them in chronological order, and analyzing
them, the William Terrells seem to group themselves intoc three individuvals;

Williem Senior of New Kent County, Willism of King William County, with
son William of the same County.
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1714, June 16---William 300 acres on side Pokecat Swamp, King William;
1715, Mar 22----William 100 acres on Pamunkey River;

1716, Oct 3l----William 400 acres on Fork of Polecat Swamp;

1717, Apr l-----William and Robert Chandler, 300 acres ditto;

1718, Jan 22--4-William Sr., New Kent County, 200 acres ditto;

1718, Jan 22-~--Williem Sr., New Kent County, LOO acres ditto;

1718, Mar 18----William and his son William, 400 acres ditto;

1718, July 12---William Junior, 174 acres, ditto;

1724, Feb 22----William of King Williem Co., 237 acres ditto.

One can but worder if this William Terrell Sr., of New Kent County,
who received a grant of land in 1718, was the son of Robert of Reading.
If so, he was 89 years oid.

The residence of William Terrell in 1657 is definitely known as Thames
Street 1in the Parish of All Hallcws, Lordon, where he was a grocer, as
shown by an item in Water's Gleanings in England, in Wm. & Mary' Quarterly
22, p 53.

WIILZAM TERKRELL AND WIFE SUSANNAH

That there was a Willlem Terrell whose wife vias act:ally Susannsh,

as the tradition goes, is prcved by the fact that in 1725 they made a
will to thkeir son, FRenry. Trat this Willfam Terrell was of a later gen-
eration than the William Terrell who was vaptised in 1629 a: Reading, is
proved by the fact that all cf his children, known or traditionsl, were
‘born shcrtiy bvefore or shortly after 1700, whereas the earlisr Willlsm
had at least two children born tefore 1677, and from the fact that re

was keeping house in 1657, he was then married, and no doubt zad chilidren.

ince neither the date of death nor settlement of estate of either William
has been found, the grouping cf the children of each orne has to be made
by other proof. 8o, the children cf William and Susannah seem to be
David, Hdenry, Jaces, Joel, John and Timothy and William and a daughter
Anne or Anna. These wiil ncw be considered separately as to their re-
lationship to William and Susannah.,

CAVID

David 1is listed only in "Cur Quaker Friends", being omitted in "The Lewis
Family", and in John Debney Terrell's manuscript history. That there

was a son David 18 indicated by the fact that William and Susannah gave

a power of attorney to their son Henry to convey to David. (Miss Dickens.)
His date of birth is unknown, and the only date of his children's birth is
David Jr. born 1759, in Caroline or Hanover Co., Va., probably the former.

HENRY .

He was the recipient of a deed fram Williem and Susarnsh in which he was
called their son, and the minutes of the Henrico Co. Meeting of Quakers
at the time of his second marriage in 1744 calls him son of William
Terrell deceased, of Hancver County. In his will, he names as executor
Herry Terrell, son of Jcel, his brother. His son, Henry Terrell Jr. had
a Bible which bore the inscription on the flyleaf that he was the son of
Herry Terrell, son of Willfam Terrell, planter, of Hanover County.
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JAMES o

James is the only one whom all authorities mentioned above agree was a

son of William and Susannah, yet he 1ia probably .the least known per-
sorally of any of them. "Qur Quaker Friend" calls him "of North Carolina",
and he is listed both in "The Lewis Family" and in John Dabney Terrell's
manuscript history. In the North Carolina Records, we find a James Ter-
rell received a land grant in 1761, which he sold in 1764, of land on vhich
Loylsburg, the seat of Franklin County, 1s said to have been built. Tradi-
tionally he moved to South Carolina so far as known.

JOHN

John 1s listed in both "The Lewis Family” and John Dabney Terrell,

both of which should be excellent authorities about the relationship of
Terrells in North Carolina, since the author of the former lived in North
Carolina, and the author of the latter was reared in North Carolina, having
been born in 1775 in Bedford Co., Va., the son of the MaJjor Harry Terrell
who was executor of his Uricle Henry's will, and himself married and the
father of at least one child when Henry Terrell died. It is interesting to
note that he lists as sons of William and Susannsh Terrell, those who lived
in North Carolina plus his grandfather Joel, who died in Henover County, Va.
The fact that John Terrell lived in the same ccunty (Caroline), as Henry
Terrell, and was of age before 1730, ard removed to North Carolina in 1743,
and died there between 1779 and 1789, suggests tnat not only did the two
meke no mistake in listing his as their great incle, b t that they had
reason to know abo: t him.

JOEL

Henry Terrell 4in his will named as his executors Joel's son Henry,

which corroborates John Dabney Terrell's statement that his srandfather,
Joel Tarrell, was a son of William Terrell of Zanover County.

TIMOTHY .

That Timothy was also a son of William and Susannah rests only upon the
statement of John Debney Terrell, and tradition. He has been confused

with an earlier Timothy Terrell of New Kent County, Va., but there seems

ro room for questioning the accuracy of John Dabney Terrell's statement

as to the relationship of at least Timothy and John to his grandfather Joel,
since these two great uncles lived not very far away from where John Dabney
Terrell himself wes reared and lived for much of his life, until after his
marriage it seems. And after his removal from North Carolina, he himself
was closely associated in South Carolina and Georgla with the sons and
grandsons of Timothy Terrell.

WILLIAM

A"The Lewis Femily" is the only one of the three sources /which seem

most authoritative), which lists Williem as & son of William, yet it
would be strange if there had not been a son named Willfam. He may have
been the William Jr. of the land grants in 1718, and a son of the William

of King Willilem County. In the land grant of that same year there was
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also listed a "Willism Senior” of New Kent Coundy. But bBetween the confusion
incident to the identity of "Willfam Terrell”, and to the destruction of
the records in that section of Virginia, nothing more i1s definitely known
about him. One of the name had children Martha and William, born 1756 and
1758 respectively, in St: Peter's Parish, New Kent County, Va., and was
living there in 175k, He was probably a different man from the "William
Terril's Quarter" with two tithables in Constable James Pickett's district
of Crange To., iIn 1739, and from tne Williiam Terrell who had wife Martha and
some small children.-he remcoved from Fredericksburg Twp., 8. C., in 1762,
according to Quaker reccrds, and they were probably also different fram

‘he William Terrill who lived near Joel Terrell in King William Co., in
1728, though they may have been .this Wm.

In addition to these remain several other early Terrells whose connec-
tions with each other is yet to be solved. Among these are Timothy, whose
children were baptised in New Kent County 1697, 1598 and 1699; a Robert
Terrell who received a land grant in New Kent Ccunty in 1632 and in Middle-
sex County in 17Cl; and a Fotert Terreil who wmuat have been another man who
was a con‘empcrary of Jchn and Timothy in North Carclina in 1740-17T71, and
in the same section of the state, but about whom nothing later is xnown; and
Edward, Ri{zhard, Arthur, .Tames and Jare Terrell and Thcmas, who seem to have
been headrights cf different perscns te+ween 1637 and 1664 in Virginia. Any
effcrts - p.ace trew is p.re 2onjerture on the basis of kncwn facts now at
hand.

SOMMENTS Y URN TEFRELL T N ¥IW TAPCTTNA,

Acecerding +5 John Tabrey Terrell. Willlam Terrell of Hanover County,
Va. was bcrn in Englsrd, care & Virginia ir ‘the latter part of the "six-
teenth zern*.ry", an? set*ied, lilved arnd died >n -he Pamucnkey River, all of
which is ccrrobora*ted by the reccords sc Zar fzund. He says: "His sons, of
whom T have heard, were ‘ames, Joel, Timcthy. Tchn lived in Granville Co.,-
N. C., a8 did Timothy in (tatrvam.”

John Terrell 1s €irst Jdefinetely found in Carcline Co., Va., where he
received a land grart in 1730, 5° land in Spctsylvania Co., Va., (Va. Mag.
163 190-2.) John Ierrell came o North Zarclira about 1743, for om 25 July
1743, he applied for two warranta of land in Edgescomb Ccunty, totaling 500
acres. (N. Ce Tolonial Records 4 p 535.)

That Willism Terrell and his wife, Susannah had a son named John seems
to have bteen unguesticned in the long ago, certailnly by those descendants of
this couple who lived in North Carolina. The "Lewis Family" names him as a
brother of Anna Terrell, along with William and James. The manuscript history
of John Dabney Terrell (b 1775), lists kim as a brother of his grandfather,
Jcel, and further states that he lived in Granville, Co., N. C. Since John
Dabney Terrellfs father, Major Heary Terrell, was executor of the will of
Henry Terrell, and since Henry Terrell 1s definetely proved by deed and power
of attorney from William and Susannah to have teen their son, there seems no
roan fcr now questioning John'’s relaticnship to William and Susannah,



Little 1s now known of the life of John Terrell, He seems to have been
one of the youngest children of the fanily, probably born after 1700, but
bardly before 1710. In 1730 he received a grant of land on the north side
of the Rapidan River, in Spotsylvania County, Va., "as of Caroline Co.,"
The destruction of the Caroline County records during the War Between the
States, except the order books, will prevent a camplete recomstruction of
this period of his life. I have photostats of scme pages of these Order
books, showing his marital troubles with his wife, Sarah, and indicating
that he hmd moved to North Carolina, but I have not examined campletely
these order books, Miss Emma Dicken, of Meriden, Miss., who is preparing
Terrell data for publication, says she has unearthed same interesting data

on John Terrell, and has the proof that he removed fram Granville Co., N.C.
to Caroline County, Va. :

On July 25, 1743 s he petitioned the Council for warrants for 300 acres
and 200 acres in Edgecamb County, and his petitiorns were granted. In 1755
he was granted 165 acres in Crooked Creek in Granville County, and one of
660 acres on Sandy Creek in Granville, County, 17T, and one of 692 acres
at the headwaters of M1ll Run. In 1758 he is mentioned in the report of
the cammittee appointed to investigate the abuses rmenticned in the petition
by the "inhabitants" of Granville's Eigth, in which he appears to have bought
805 acres in 1753. Later records of Bute and Tranklin Counties also mention
alm as & resident of these counties.

A Deed In Franklin Co., records "from John Terrell of Prarklin Co."
dated T Sept. 1779, conveys land on Sandy Creek with the s‘atement "being
part of a tract on land granted said Terrell by Gab'l Johnston.” As
Gabriel Johnston was Governor only from 1734 until 1752 » tals was evidently
the land applied for in 1743 in Edgecamb County,. On 19 March 1789, a sale
was made by the Sherriff of Franklin County under the will of John Terrell,
Dec'd, for distribution among the legatees of the wili, of 700 acres of
land in Franklin County, with the statement “aat the land was granted to
James Terrell in 176l by Lord Granville, and sold to John Terrell 1ia 1764
by Jemes Terrell, and he was the same John Terrell " of Graomville Co."
mentloned by Jonn Debney Terrell, (supra). Howaver, he did not necessarily
live in more than one locality, but was identified with the four different
counties through the changes in the county lines. Granville County was
formed from Edgecomb, Bute was formed from Granville and then Bute was cut
into two parts, one named Warren and the other Franklin.

In 1743, the year John Terrell applied for land in Edgecomb county,
the line was run to define Lord CGranville's one-eighth, which extended
fram the Virginia line to 35 - 34' South, across the continent. Edgecomb
county then comprised the part of North Carolina on the Western Frontier.
Granville Co. was created in 1746, which explains why John Terrell then
is found in Granville county. At the same time tkat Granville county was
formed, part of Edgecomb County was cut off to form Johnston county, part
of which later was cut off, in 1770, for Wake county., In 1775 Bute Co.
was formed and existed until 1779, when it was divided into Franklin and
Warren caunties. Therefore, we £ind John Terrell applying for land in
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North Carolina in 1743 when Gabriel Johnston was Governor, the land being
in Edgeccmb county, and in 1779 we find him selling land on Sandy Creek
in Franklin county, as granted ‘o him by Gov. Gabriel Johnston, which
identifies him as the same man.

All existing records cf Bute County, on file in the North Carolina
Historical Commission have been thoroughly searched and most of the records
at Loulsburg, the county seat of Franklin County. There are a few records
of Franklin County with the Commission which have nct been searched, notably,
the first Book of Minutes of the County Court.

From the Fragmentary records examined, we glean a very few facts:

The Court Docket of 1766 and 1767 of Bute Co., the only one found,
John Terrell was suing Reauront Sutton in one suilt, Joseph Martin in another,
Ken'd Westtrcok in yet ancther, and was being sued by John Tabb. These
names also suggest Caroline “Zounty, Virgirisa.

In the Minutes and Miscellanecus (ourt Fapers of Bute Co., we find
that a bridge was built in 1765 over the Tar River at Terrell's Ford, by
him, and his criginal bond, bearing his signature, was cn file. This land
would seem to be the grant tc James Terrell in 1761, bought by him in
1764, and which is now owned by descendants cof Joel Terrell.

In the list <f taxables for 1771, he is listed as having twelve tax-
ables, and Joel Terrell, the cnly other Terrell listed, as having two.

in Feb. 2, 1762, he made a deed to Fcbert Washington, which was wit-
nessed by Charles Terrell. Frances Strcuder and Rrowning Williams.

Cr. Feb 12, 1757, in Granville Co. (since before the creation of Bute)
he made a deed to Hezekish, his son, born of Elizabeth his wife, witnessed
by John Terrell and Willlam Thcmas.

on July 7, 1764, he made a deed to his "reputed children" (?), Hannah
Bledsce, Jeptha Terrell, John Terrell, Ann Martin and Agnes Washington. From
the fact that they are all married, we know that they are all grown. Be-
cause scns and daughters are not separated, but named in that order, we
presume that they were named in the order of their ages, which is corroborated
by the obituaries of Hannah and Jeptha published in the Raleigh Star,
from which we learn that Fannah was born about 1730, and Jeptha about 1733.
Agnes Terrell married in 1761, after Hannah had several children, so Agnes
was no doubt the youngest. These children were therefore born in Virginia,
and went to North Carolina where they were recognized by John Terrell as
his children, and bore his name and intermarried into leading families of
that section. ‘

For some years it has been regarded that the only proved son, definitely,
of John Terreli‘s was his son Hezekish, but that John had some "reputed child-
ren”, tc whom he made a bill cf sac.e, cr gift, of some slaves. A re-examination



of this conveyance, as rezorded, ani a cguparison of the form and the
handwriting with others indicates tkat he was probably using a form, used
elsewhere at the time, in which he called his children "respected." T
feel that we have done these "respected" children a great injustice, to
have called them "reputed" during these many years! I found one instance
where the same form was used, but with a less ancient style of handwriting,
with the word clearly "respected.” These definitely known children weres
Hezekiah, "born of Elizabeth, my wife,” I Hannah, or perhaps "SoZannah",
but definitely not "Hannah", as we have been calling her, wife of Jacob
Bledsoe, Jeptha, John, Ann, wiTe of Willlam Martin, and Agnes, wife of
Robert Washington, whom she marriei in 176l. From obituary notices
published in the Raleigh Star, we know that "Hannah" was aged about
eighty when she died in 1819, and .Teptha was asged TT when he died the seme
year in Granville Co. As John Terrell's wife Sarah seems to have had no
children, these must have beeun by Elizabeth. From the will of Jacob
Bledsoe, Sr., we know that he gvrvived his wife.

The deed 1n question is as roilows: "I, John Terrell, of the County
of Bute, in the Province of North Carolira, do give and present to my
reputed (?) respected (7) chilidren with those slaves hereinafter mentioned,
that 1s to say, to my respected (?) daughter Hannah, wife of Jacob Bledsoe,
I have given and present her cne slave ramed Ned; and to my respected (?)
son named Jeptha Terrell, I rave glven and present him with one slave
named Ben, and to my respeciad s.wu John Werrell, T have given and present
him with one slave ramed Juda, snd to my daughter Ann, wife of Wm. Martin,
I have given and present her with cme slave named Hannah, her increase
for and during the natural term of rer life, and from and immediately
after her after her decease, T give the 321d slave Hannah and her increase
to be equally divided among all such children as the said Ann shall have
living at her decease that were horn of her body; and to my respected
daughter Agnes, the wife of Roharth Washington, T have given and present
her with one slave ramed "T2de" wnd rer increase for and during the term
of her natural life, and from and immediately after her decease, I give
the said slave "Lade" and her increase to be egually divided among all
such children as the saild Agnes shall have living after her decease that
were born of her body.

In Witness whereof I have herennto set my seal and hand thﬁs, the Tth
day of July, 176Lk. /s/ John Terrell.
Signed and delivered. Rute (0., Ne 0., August Court, 176k.

John Terrell acknowledges this deed to be his act and deed and on
motion it was ordered to be recordedi. Test: ©. C. McCullough, C. C.
Recorded, Bute Coc., N. C., Wiils and Inventories, 1760-1800, Part 3, P6h.

A few comments on the children of John Terrell nay ndt be amiss.

Jeptha Terrell was born about 1733, according to his obituary. In
1754 he was in the Granville Countyv Milltia. In L1760 he and his wife
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Obediance made a deed as of Johnston Ccunty, North Carolina, and in 1761 he
recelved & land grant there, the land being later in Wake County. In 1767 he
was made a patroller of Johnston County, up to the Bute County line. Both he
and his brother-in-law, Jacob Bledsoe were found later in the part of Wake
County which had been cut off from Johnston, but Jeptha Terrell drops out of
the Wake County reccrds socn after or about 1790, when he is listed there by
the census, and when he died in 1810, he was a resident of Granville Co. He
seems to have been the ancestor of the various Terrells of Wake County.

John Terrell Jr. seems to have lived in that part of Granville County
which retained its name. He warried Susanna Douglas, marriage bond dated 17
April 1760, Granville County. In 1779 he received a grant of land in Gran-
vliiie County. He was no doubt ancestor of some of the Wake County Terrells,
but untii the children of Jeptha and John Jr. are known, this cannot be def-
Initely established.

Eannah {Terrell)! Bledsse was the mother of Barnabas, John, Lewls, Jacob,
Richmend, and Hezekiah T. Bledsce, Anne (Bledsce) Jlements, and Agnes (Bledsoe)
Gore. Note that Barmabas is the only name not characteristic of the Terrell
family.

0f Anme (Terrell} Mar*in nothing more is known, and of Agnes (Terrell)
Washington only that her husband, Robert Wasnington, died befcre August 10,
LT74, leaving a widow and children surviving him.

From I77., the only chther Merrell fcurnd in Bute County, other than
John Terrell, 3r., was <cel Terrelli. After Bute County was divided into
Franklin counhty until HRaluch Terrell and jcel Terrell’s sons grew upe. After
John Senior®s death, and after Halect Terrell moved awsy, Joel Terrell remained
and died there abcu* 1815, and all cf the Terrell nemes found in that county
for many years were Joel.’s descendants. Yet the connection between John Sr.
and Joel 1s unknecwr. Joel apparently Interited the hame place of John Senior,
under his will, since Jcel lived and died there, and his son, Tolliver Terrell
bought out the interests of t other heirs and lived there until he built
a new hcuse about half mile swa¥y on the same land, and when one of hils daughters
married Rober% Hun*, ke conveyed to his son-in-law the "old John Terrell Place"
witheut reference to deed cr will, but nc deed to Joel Terrell is of record,
and the place apparently passed under that lcst will of John Terrell Senior.

The will of John Terrell Senior has not been found, nor has any reference
to 1t been found in any Court Minutes. The Bute County wills, up to the
creation of Franklin County, and the organization of the Franklin County Courts
fail to show such a will. The early wills of Franklin County before 1785 seem
to have been lost. The Franklin County mirutes now in existence begin with
the December Term, 1785. The Warren County records continue in the same books
where the Bute County records stopped. Therefore, since the Franklin County
deed records show that John Terrell was 1living in Franklin County in September
1779, we must presume that he died in Frarklin County after 1779 and before
1785, whern the records now in existence began.



John Terrell appears also in the Petition of the Inhabitants of
Granville's One-Eighth for the redress agalnst Lord Granville's agents
and 1s shown to have paid for 805 acres of land on April 30, 1755, which
had been entered "some years before."

There i1s a John Terrell listed as taking the oath of a juror in
1776 in Granville Co., but this was probably his son, John Terrell,
sametimes called "Junior." ‘

There are some incemplete minutes of Bute co. but complete Deed
and Will records. The early records seem to have confused Ferrell with
Terrell, and both with Farrell. The confusion is increased by the fact
that one Dr. Williem Verrell appears sometimes as Terrell.

Recently a Bible record has come to my notice of a Timothy Terrell
who was born June 22, 1739, married Elizabeth Craig (?), who was born
Feb. 24, 1753, and had Willtem born April 25, 1TT73, Obadlah, born Sept.
3, 177&, Anne born Aug. 10, 1776, Sarsh, born Nov. 5, 1779, and Lucy,
born Sept. 12, 1780, and traditionally this Timothy Terrell was killed
by the Indians in Georgls or Tennessee, after which the widow married
one Jemes Coxe, of Grayson County, Va., May 15, 1782. This Bible also
contains the record, " Terrill Mays, born Sept. 10, 1803." Hannah (
(Terrell) Bledsce's son, Capt. Lewis EBledsoe, was cousin to one Williasm
Mays, according to the Pension Office records, which suggests that this
Timothy Terrell may have been related to John Terrell. This was evidently
the Timothy Terrell mentioned in Remsey's Annals of Tennessee as massacred
by the Indians in Tennessee in the "fall of 1781.", rather that Hezekish's
son Timothy, whose death on July 31, 1781, is recorded in Abigail (Terrell)
Rush'*s Bible. This massacre is also probably the basis of the tradition
extant among some of Joel Terrell's descendants that Joel's son, James
Terrell, who moved to middle Tennessee after 1803, was killed by the
Indians, since the histories of Tennessee agree that no white person was
massacred by Indians in that State after 1799.

It 1s not known when Joel Terrell was born. He was on the tax list
of 1TTl, the only one of Bute Co. lists found, so he was then 21, or born
'by 1750. Traditionally he married when he was 18. Elizabeth Rush, then
16. As her brother, William Rush, born 1755, married Abigail Terrell, b
born 1760, and as Elizabeth Rush's mokher was traditionally a Grigsby,

- and her father Benjamin Rush, as as Willfams's parents, Ben amin Rush
married Alice Grigsby 174k, and had a daughter Alice, said to have been
born in 1745, then Joel Terrell could have been the son of John's latter
years, or the son of an early son. One branch of the family has a tradi-
tion that Joel's father was Richmond Terrell. There is, however, nothing
to indicate a Richmond Terrell found in North Carolina until after the
‘Revolution was the Richmond Terrell of the Revolution who. was captured by
the British 1n 1780, then aged 21 years. It may be significant that all
of Joel and Elizabeth (Rush) Terrell's children bore Terrell names except
Toliver (spelled Taliaferro in Caroline Co., Va.) Jane, Malinds and Sidney,
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of which only “sne is found in Elizabeth Bush®s’family. It is also significant,
1t seem, trat Jcel Terrell ramed ncre of his six sons Richmond or Robert or
Charies or Jeptha, or any cf the names characteristic of the Jeptha Terrell
descendants, but names them James, John, Joel, Hezekiah, Timothy and Toliver,
and his daughters Anne, Agnes, Elizabeth, Malinda, Jane and Sidney. Their
order of birth cr ages (except Toliver born 1780), and Malinda, born 178k,
are unknown. .For a lis% cf the descendants ¢f Joel and El:zabeth (Rush)
Terrell, see the Rush genealogy, by this ccmpiier.)

Joel Terrell traditionally served in the Revolution, and there is a pay
voucher cn record in Faleigh to Joel Terrell during the Revolution, which does
not state what it i{s for, and to Joseph Terrell for military services. He 1is
listed in the first census as a resident of Franklin County as Joseph Terrell
and there are cof record deeds in which he is {a} "Zce", or (b) Joseph and
Jeel in the same insirument, and alsc family dccuments in other branches of
the Temily, in which he is called "Joseph." But being the cnly Terrell who
coiuld have been intended, his identity is indisputable., His antecedents re-
main, however, unprcved, with the probatilities growing that he may have been
a son cf Jchn's cld age. His grand-daughter, aniza Terrell Allen, who was
borr. in 1835, the daughter of Toliver Terrell, wrcte under date cf Dec. 29,
1911, "My father had s gres* many relstives in Wake Ccunty and about Raleigh.
Z never saw any <f them. His name was Willlam Terrell and he had a dsugh%er
Petra (I don®t kacw Low *o spell i+" and a son nazed €~lamsn, and other child-
ren, bui don®t know their names.” Since *the names Zclomon Terrell and Jeptha
Terrell are usually foucd together, this alsc suggests a relationship to Joan
Sr., but since the names typical c¢f this branch are nct found among Joel's,
one can but wender if the relaticnship was wore remcte.”

The fore goiug remarks concerning the descendants of the Terrells in
America are by Miss Maud M:zluare Kelly, of Firmingham, Ala., & Terrell-Rush-
Bledsce descendan®; who has done much research on these lines.

HezekZah Terrell, the cne son of Jchn Terreil Sr., "born cf Elizabeth my
wife", first appears in a deed from his father in 1757. He was in the Militia
in 1759. His daughter Abigall was bcrm Jan. &, 1760, died Dec. 29, 1835,
Montgomery Jcunby, No J., married William Push. His son Timothy born Oct. i7,
. 1762, dled July 3L, 17Ei. O May 31, 1765, Hezekiah Terrell made a deed to
these two children. Lezekiah Terrell died between April and July 1767, ac-
cording to Miss Kelly. in Eute Jo., since a suit against him by Benjamin Rush
was discontinued at the latter date. His wife was Phoebe Martin. Abigail
Terrell was reared in the house of James Martin, her guardian, who also was
the surety con the marriage bond in 1775. James Martin was first avpolnted her
guardian on Nov. 14, 1770, and if Hezekiah, her father, died by 17¢T, one
wonders why a guardian was nct appointed for Abigail sooner. A Sheriff's deed
in 1769 tc land of Hezekiah Terrell's and the appointment of a guardian for
Abigail in 1T7J seems tc indicate that Hezekiah Terrell died about 1769.

The name and date of birth of Halcot Terrell is recorded in the Bible of

Abigail \Rush) Terrell. He was bern Jan. 10, 1768, in Bute County and died
jan. 9, 1839y 1n hapides Parish, la. As Halcot Terrell had no surviving sons,
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there are no descendants bearing the Terrell name. Timothy died In ;y-o.n,,hl
"t Haleott Terrell seems to have been & man of some standing, despitea
his background, for he was not the son of Hezekiah Terrell, It will be
noted from the Tyrrell-Terrell charts that a Tyrrell married a Mlss Aliy
Haleot generations ago in England. We do not know who Halcot's father
vas, but he was the son of Pehoebe (Martin) Terrells It becomes neccessnyp

o Rt R

q

in the interest of accuracy, to TELL ALL concerning Phoebe., It 1s & nots. f

worthy fact that the name Phoebe 1s found nowhere among her descendants,
‘while the name "Martin” is used throughout every branch for generations.
Presumably Abigail named her children and grandchildren "Martin" mostly
for her uncle James, her guardian. It might be interesting here to re-
mind the reader of the sentence in John Dabney Terrell's sonorous
menuscript history, of the poison which was cast into the Terrell blood
by marrying a Martin!{ However John Terrell Sr., seems to have been in a
good deal of trouble from time to time. Halcut. was born in 1768, after
Hezekish died, or was it? Anyway, they signed a deed together on April
22, 1765. Whether they were living together then we do not know, but
the deed to Abigaeil and Timothy of slaves, was on the 3lst of May 1765,
and Abigail was but five years old at that time. The only Terrelis
listed on tax records in Bute County, were John and Joel, in 17T7l. In
February 1773, the County Court "Ordered that Halcot Hawkins Terrell be
bound to Thomas Pullen until he attained the age of 21 years, the said
child being now of the age of five years, last January, the said master
to learn him to read and write and the planter's business. He was
described as "a base born child, born on the body of Phoebe Terrell”.

In the spirited three-way correspondence by Miss Kelly, the compiler
and Mrs. Whitfield was discussed this scardalous dlscovery on the records.
Upon the writer's reporting it to Mrs. Whitfield, she wrote under date of
Feb. 5, 1940: "I must say that I do not agree with Miss Kelly that
Phoebe was Abigaill's mother, for this reason: If you will read John's deed
to slaves to his children dated July 7, 1764, you will see that he uses
the word "Reputed" often. I think that more probably Phoebe was John's
wife, and John's deed does not mention Hezekiah, though I do not believe,
as Miss Kelly states, that Hezekiah seems to have died about 1765¢0essl
don't believe that Phoebe was Abigail's mother. In the first place, I
don't want to believe it, and in the second case I belleve that Miss Kelly
has jJumped at her conclusions. She may be right, but I'll have to have
proof before I accept.” The compiler does not want to believe it, elther,
but Miss Kelly seems to have the proof. She says under date of March L,
19463 "I do not see how Mrs. Whitfield, or anyone else could question t
that Hezekiah Terrell's wife was Phoebe Martin and was Abigail‘’s mother.
Else why was James Martin her guardian. He was definetely the brother
of Phoebe, and he definitely took Abigall over into his house as well as
being her guardian, and he only charged enough to her estate to offset the
interest, but even gave her dancing lessons, &and never claims any re-
payment for what he spent on her, Just put down items which were clearly
not all that he had spent, and nelver took a judgement against her estate
for the excess. Yet he had seven children of his own, so 1t was not the
fancy of a childless couple. FPhoebe was still living when Halcot Terrell
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was appfenticed, at the age of flve years, whereas Abigail had already been
1iving with James Martin for a year when he made his settlement as her guar-
dien in 1771. Had he taken full pay from estate there might be some question,
but none since he spent so much more on her than he ever got back, and he with
a houseful of children. Fezekish was over 18, in lTSh, since that was militia
age. Ablgail was born 1760 and Timothy in 1762. Hezekieh died in 1767, and
Halcot was born in 17A8. Eezekiah was living in April and dead by 1767. Yet
there were no children born to Hezekiah and Phoebe after 1762, according to
Ablgail's BRible. Were they separated? Probably. Ablgail named no child
Hezeklah or Phoebe, but she named one Martin and one Sarah, and we know that
she was the daughter of Hezekiah, and theat Hezekiah’s wife was Phoebe Martin.
There 1s nothing to sugges®t a prior wife. It appears that, distasteful as it
is, Mrs. Whitfleld and thls compiler will have to accept the fact that Phoebe
was their ancestress. Mlss Kelly 1s not descended from Phoebe and Hezekiah.
It does seem significart that Abigail was so willing to let her parents go
"unwept, urkonered and unsung"” s> far as naming her children for them is con-
cerned. It 1s likely that being so young at the time, she did not know that
her mother wasn’t all that she should be., It z.so seems significant that the
name "™Martin" persists among Abigail's descendants t> this day, and in every
branch. There is even a tradition, the origin of which this writer does not
remember, that there must always be a Martin in the family. Perhaps it was
her gratitude to her Tn:le James for being sc gceod to her! Anyway, Ablgail,
herself wss above reprcach. “n splie cf being an orrhan, or worse. At the
age cf 73 we find her writing o her children, "7 want you all to live close
t0 God, and pray thaw we may all meet in Heaven." Perhaps she had the fear
that the polscon that the Martints cast into the ancestral stream might in-
terfere,

John Martin, father of Phoebe {Martin® Terrell, died 1769, and Rachel
Martin, her mcther, died 1771. TIn the settlement of thelr estates, no mention
is made of Fhoebe cr of her children. ‘

The records show that Haloct Terrell was married in Warren County, N. C.,
on Oct. 23, 1811, to Mar*ha cok cr Tccke. He died cn Jan. 9, 1839, in
Rapides Parish, Ia. The children cf Halcot and Martha Cook or Cooke Terrell
weres

Henderson, born Cct. 23, 1812, died March 9, 1828;

Harriett, born July 9. 1835, m Austin Willls Burgess;

Emily Mary, born Aug. 18, 1817, m Cesear Archinard;

Elizabeth;

Amands. Louise, born June 20, 1820, m (lst) James Crawford and (2nd) John

Hickman Ransdell.

Halcot Terrell, dled young.

A few of the noctes coliected and transmitted by Miss Kelly concerning
Halcott Terrell are given belows

Franklin County, N. . Minutes, 1794-180C. March Court 1795. Halcot

Terrell appointed Constable; bond for & >0CC, with John Willlams and Robert
McLemore as sureties, approved.
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March Court 1796, Halcot Terrell allowed 32 shillings for L days
attendance as Constable on Grand Jury.

June Court 1796. Halcott Terrell renewed Constable's bond. John
Williems and John Foster security.

Sept. Court, 1796. Halcot Terrell allowed 24 shillings for 3 days
attendance on Grand Jury as Constable.

Dec. Court, 1796. Halcot Terrell came into Court and resigned
his office of Constable.

Franklin County Deeds at Louisburg, Vol. 6, p 47, Haleut (x)
Terrell, witnessed deed, Dec. 5, 1786, Wm. Fawn of Warren County to
Williem Rush of Franklin County.

The deed which proves that Abigail was the daughter of Hezekiah
Terrell 1s copled belows

This indenture made this 3lst day of May, 1765, Hezeklah Terrell of
Bute County, and Province of North Carolina of the one part and his daughter
Abigail Terrell of the same county and Province of the other part,
Witnesseth: that the said Hezekiah Terrell for and in consideration of the
Homor, Love and affection he bears to his daughter, hath given, granted
and confirmed and by these presents doth give, grant and confirm unto
the said Abigail Terrell, her heirs and asslgng forever, ONE CERTATN NEGRO
GIRL, named Pat, and her increase, if any, to be equally divided between
ny said daughter, Abigail Terrell and my son Timothy at each of thelr
arriving at the age of 21 years, and that I, Hezekiah Terrell, do for
myself, my executors, my heirs and commissioners, further agree to and
with my aforesaid daughter Abigail Terrell, her heirs and assigns, to
warrant and forever defend the title of sald negro girl and the half of
her increase as aforesaid to my szid daughter Abigail Terrell, her helrs
and assigns forever, against the claims and demands of any person or
persons whomsoever.

In WITNESS whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and seal with the
delivery of one half-crown cash.

Tn the name of the Lord this day and Year above mentioned.

/s/ Hezekiah Terrell, L. 8.

Sealed and delivered in the presence of
George Martin
James Martin
Bute Co., N. C. October Court, 1765.
This deed was proved by the ocath of James Martin, one of the subscribing
witnesses thereto, and on motion it was ordered to be recorded.
Test: Ben McCullough, C.C.

Recorded, Bute Co. Wills and Inventories, 1760-1800 part 3, p T3. ( To
be found in the North Carolina Historical Commission, Raleigh.)
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Abigall Terrell was married in Bute County, N. C., in 1775, at the age
of 15, to Williem Rush. She was but five years old at the date of the deed
from her father, Hezeklah, and her brother Timothy was three. Hezeklah her
father must have dled gbout 1769-1770, as evidenced by the following bond
glven for Abligail's inheritance, as orphan of Hezekiah Terrell, deceased. Her
uncle, James Martin, was appointed her guardian in 1770, but Miss Kelly states
that he died in 1767, and her reason for thinking this is that the sult brought
against Hezekiah Terrell by BenJamin Rush and continued from time to time, was
dropped in 1767.

KNOW ALL, MEN BY THESE PRESENTS. That we, James Martin, Theophilus Goodwin,
John Pinnell and Christopher Foster of Bute County are held and firmly bound
to William Johnson, John Hawkins and Matthew Thamas Esqr's, Justices of the
Court of Bute County now sitting, in the sum of three hundren pounds prov
money, to the payment whereof well and truly to be made we bind ourselves

and each of us and each of our heirs, executors and administrators, Jointly
and severally, firmly by these presents. Sealed with ocur seals this fourteenth
day of November in the year of our Lord 1770, ard in the XIth year of the
reigh of our Sovereign Iord, King George the Third.

The conditlon of this obligatlon is such that 1f the sbove Jemes Martin
his executors and Administrators, shall well and truly pay and deliver or ca
cause to be pald and delivered unto Abigail Terrell, orphan of Hezeklah Ter-
rell, deceased, all such estate and or estates, as rnow 1s, or are, and here-
after shall appear to be dwue to the siad orphan when and as socn as she shall
attain to lawful age or when thereto required ty the Justices of the Court of
the said County, as also keep harmless the above names Justlices thelr and
every of thelr heirs, Ex'rs and Adm®rs. from all trouble and damages that shall
or may arise about the sald Estate, then the above obligatlion =o be vold, other
Wise to remain in full force and virtues

James Martin (Seal)
Theophilus Goodwin (Seal
John Pinnell (Seal)
, Christopher Foster (Seal)
Sealed and delivered in the presence of Thos. Machen. Bute Co., Ns C. November
Court, 1T70. This bond was goknowledged in opeh court, and ordered to be
recorded

o

The marriage bond of Abigail Terrell to William Rush 1s copied below.
She was born Jan. 8, 1760, married Feb. 9, 1775, and died Dec. 29, 1835.
Willlam Rush was borm Feb. l, 1755, and dled Jan. 25, 1827. They had ten
children, whose names, with thelr descendants so far as known, are shown in
the Rush Genealogy. '

James Martin, her uncle, signed the marrisge bond of Abigail Perrell, and

so did Thomas Martin, but we do not know who he was. Josigh Martin, nsmed in
the bond, was the last Royal Govenor of the Province of North Carolina.
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Marriage Bond of Abigall Terrell and Willism Rush, found in the North
Carolina Historical Commission, a photostat copy of which is in the pos-
session of the compiler:

BUTE COUNTY MARRTAGE BONDS. KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we,
Willism Rugh, and James Martin, both of the County of Bute, in the
Provice of North Carolina, are held and firmly bound unto His
Excellency, Joslah Martin, both of the County of Bute, and to his suc-
cessors, In the sum of twenty pounds, lawful money to be paid to the
g8lad Josieh Martin and his successors. We bind ourselves, our heirs,
ete. £firmly by the presents.

Sealed with our seals and dated this 6th day of February, 17Tk

The condition of the above obligation is such that, whereas there is
a marriage shortly to be solemnized and had between the above mentioned
and bound Williem Rush and Abigail Terrell, both of the said county: if,
therefore, there is no lawful cause to obstruet the sald marrisge, then
the above obligatlon to be void, otherwise to remain 1in full forece and
power and virtue.

(Sigred) W1illiam Rush (Seal)
Jemes Martin (Seal)
Signed and sealed in the presence of
Thomas Machen.

The following notes on various Terrells, mostly on John and Hezekish
Terrell, have been assembled from several sources, but Miss Maud McLure
Kelly has sent most of thems

A Simon Terrell sold lands in Chatham Co., Ne Co, which had been
willed to him by his father, Timothy Terrell, and which Timothy had
recelived frem the Earl of CGranville.

The will of Jeptha Terrell, Wake Co., N« Cs, Bk 2, p 112, mentions
‘wife Nancy, Polly Jackson Terrell, youngest child, not yet of age, four
children, Harriett Terrell, Emily Terrell, Polly Moriah Terrell, and
Polly. Wife and brother, John Terrell, execs. Witneases, John Green
and Pztrick Terrell. Dated Nov. 7, 181k. Jeptha Terrell was granted land
in 1761« '

In Granvillie Co., N. C. we find the marriage bond of John Terrell and
Susanna Douglas, April 17, 1760, and of Jeptha Terrell and Nancy Hockaday
1T21. A John Terrell was a Pvt. in Donshoe's Co. 10th Reg. 1781. At =
Council held at Edenton, N. C., July 25, 1743, (Col. Rec. N. C. Vol. IV,)
John Terrell petitioned for 200 acres of land in Edgecombe County.

In State Records of North Carolina, Vol. 22, p 171, we £ind the oath
of alleglance of John Terrell, in 1778, to the State of North Carolins,
against George III.



There was a Hezekfah Terrell in Franklin Co., N. C. in 1826. In State
Rec., of N. C. Vol. 22, p 377, we find that Hezekiah Terrell was in Capt.
Sugar Jones' Co., under command of Col. Wm. Eaton, under muster roll of Gran-
ville Co., N. C., Oct. 8, 1754. A Sugar Jones signed the marriage bond of
John Terrell and Susannsh Douglas.

From North Carolina Colonial Records: 4:635: "At Council at Edenton, July 25,
1743, petitions for warrants granteds :

John Terrell, 20C acres, Edgecombe Co.

John Terrell, 300 acres, Edgecombe Co.

5:1088: Friday, 22 December 1758. The report of the camittee appointed to
inquire into the matter alleged in & petition of sundry in habltants of that
One Eighth Part of the Carolinas belonging to the Right Honorable, The Earl
of Granville, etc.

Your committee, previcus to the exsmination of the matters contained in
the said petitlon, gave notice +to the Agents of the Right Honorable, the
Earl of Granville, and others concerned, of the Time and Place at which they
would meet for that purpose, and required their attendance. Mr. Corbin and
Mr, Bodley, the present Agents, several others who had bteen employed by them,
appeared before your committee. Acccrdingly, and having examined into the
Cause of the Complaint, ceme to the follouwing conclusions, to-wit:

Resclved, that 1- is the opinion of this committee, that the manner of
issuing grants by the Agentes, and the fees taken thereon, was agreeable *0 %
the Earl of Granville®s instructions, which as to fees, has been varied se
several times, and that the Fees taken had always been agreeable thereto, and
such Instructions as convinced your committee that they had always acted
agreeable to the said instructions in the above Particulars, with respect to
the Terms cf Leeds by them executed; nor does 1t appear to your committee that
they have taken higher Fees themselves than directed by the said instructions,
unless where the same Price (Plece?) of land has been entered by more than one
person, as has sometimes happened. In which case the Entry Fee has not teen
refunded to either of them; but that some persons employed by Mr. Corbin to
recelve Entrlies, and others to make Surveys, have received sums from several
persons who have applied for lands not warranted by the sald instructions.

Resolved, that 1t appears also to your committee, that Nicholas Baucum,
who had made an entry with Col. Moseley, and had it surveyed, not having had
his deed In Mr. Moseley's lifetime, sent the Plan of the survey by one Terrel
to Mr. Corbin after his coming into the Agency and paid for the entry; that
the Surveyor came afterwards, but surveyed it in a different place than where
the entry was made, and at the sald time surveyed the land which Baucum had
entered for one Anderson; but that Baucum applied to Mr. Corbin and acquainted
him with these transactions, and was directed to sent Terrel with the Plans
to the mext Supreme Court and promised that he would have Justice; that Baucum
attended afterwards, according to the Directions with Terrell at John Hatwood's
and acquainted Mr. Corbin Terrel was there; that John Haywood being then



present told Baucum that Terrel was a great Rogue and not a fil person

to swear there; and being answered by Baucim that there was as great
Rogues in the Province as he, Haywood, in Corbin's presence, took him

by the Collar and turned him out of doors; that he could not -have op-
portunity of sneaking again on the Buslness, and never has had redress.--

Resolved, that it appears to this commitiee, that John Terrell paid
to Mr. Corbin on the 30th of April 1753, six pounds ten shillings and ten
pence for elght hundred and five aseres of land granted the same day, but
entered the office some years before.

9-70-Tl. Petition of Philemon Hawkins, Dec., 19, 1T77l, for removal of
William Tabb, Thomas Bell and Henry Hill as Justices of the Peace of Bute
Cou—

"Henry Hill frequently issues warrants in cases of slander and in
particular one Joseph Martin was on his, Sald H1ll's warrant brought be-
fore Mr, Bell for speaking Defamatory words of one Tyrrel, and on Martin's
not being able to justify to Mr. Bell's satisfaction, he was committed
by him to prison.”

223172: Jurors who took oath to State, 1778, Cranville Co. John Terrell.

Wheeler's North Carolina I, p 47,: Gov. Arthur Dobbs, 1754-65. "The
people were much oppressed by Lord Granville's Agents. They seized Corbin
his agent, who lived below Edenton, and brought him to Enfield, where he
was campelled to glve bond and security, to produce his books, and dis-
gorge his 1llegal fees."

Bute Co. Misc, Court Papers, 1T64-1779: A paper endorsed: Nov. 1760

a list of Orders and Vouchers to be filed and entered in a book to pre-
vent any mistake in shewing them again'-

Dr. Bute Co, to Julius Nichols--

To ditto (an order) in favor of John Terreill & 8. 10, O.

The 18th Jan'y 1765. In obedience to an order of the worshipful Court of
Bute Co., we the Subscribers being by the said Court appointed, after
duly advertising did let the building of a bridge over Sandy Creek near
John Forster's to John Terrell for the summ of eight pounds ten shillings
proc money to be bullt according to ILaw and kept in Lawful Repalr during
the term of seven years from the day the said bridge shall be received.
Certified by us John McGlomre (?), Joseph Borden, John Norwood.

Bute Co. Ref, Te & Action Docket 1766-67.
Jan Court 1766: John Terrell vs Jasa. Martin, April Court 1T766;

July Court 1766: 22 Terrell vs Sutton Cont.

T3« John Terrell vs Jos. Martin case returned not executed
Capias, etc.
Octa Court 1766. 28. John Terrell vs Bemumont Sutton;



17. New Actisns. Jchn Terrell vs Jenr Westbrook;

18. Wm. Tabt vs John Terrell;
Minutes Co. Court, 1757-76. p 7i. Elizabeth Terrell made oath to her account
for attendance as a wi +rvess f2r Sarsh Harris against Henry Westbrook smounting
to & 0.T.3. May 1789, {Wo%e: the wife of John Terrell Sr., was nemed Elig-
abeth, a..ald so was the wife of Joel Terrell. It is not known which one this
one was. -

P. 293. TFrom Executors of Rchert Washington, Dec'd, to Thomas Person, proved
by Thomas Bell, Aug. 10, 1774. No. 265, Hsalzubt Hawkins Terrell, child of
Phoebe Terrill, beund to Thos, Fuller.

Pute Co, Misz. Court Paperso Iist of Orders and Vouchers Nov. 1760, John

Terrell & 8.10-0, ness certificste of Ellizabeth Terrell in case of
Sarey Harris vs Henuyv Tr_ves‘:br:::c. Tated 10, May 1769, stsws attendance and

nire miles travel +r Toury Tuly & Dab, 4'.’5'7 Fetoy, May, Aug. & Nov. 1768,
May 1769 signed by "ELtzateth er’*u.L_'Lg

Franklin Jo. Deeds Vol. I p 28~ Jokm Terrell +c Peter Tatum, both of Franklin
To. Deed 7 Sept. 1779, ccuvevs 6 acres on 3ardy “reek- "being part of the
tract of land granted *he said Terreil by Gat., Tohmston.”

DNeeds 13- Bo I1ll, Teptha Terrell o€ Wuke i, 7. T:sish Eley cf Pranklin Zo.
deed 9 Nov. 1793, couveys T2 arreaz 1 Naorth side »,f.‘ +he Tar River a.nci on
beth sides of the Miil ram- Mas ag’reeab;ze t> the original grant'.- "granted
to Tames Terrell ty Iord Zranville in 1761, and :=onveyed to John Terrell by
deed bearing date 1764 and =014 sgreeable *c rig will ard according to law
and ccnveyed %o Jepthas Terrell by s deed bearizng date 1759 from Benl. Seswmll
Esq.; late Sheriff of Frankl:in So,

p,

Deeds 9:32: Iord Granviile ts James Terrell of Jranville Co., Ne Co, land .
grant 700 acres in Granville Jo.;, cn beth sides of the MA1L run 29 July 1761.

Deeds 6..p 192: Renjamin Seawall; as Sheriff of Franklin Co. to Jeptha Terrell
of Wake Co., deed, 19 Mar. 1789. "By order of the Worshipful Court of Franklin
County and agreeable to the last will and testament of John Terrell, deceased,
he, the sd Benlamin Semwsll as Sheriff as was authorized to sell a certain
tract of parcel of land in the sd Co. of Franklin hereinafter to be mentioned,
as also other property left by the decemsed in order that a Division might be
made among the legatees agreeable to the Order of the Court afsd and after
giving due notice'-- conveys TCO acres of land on both sides of the mill run
granted to James Terrell by Lord Granville 1761, conveyed to John Terrell 176k,
and bounded as follows: Sheffield's line, Crutchfield's line, Person's line,
Elie'’s line, "Witnesses, Thos. Person, Francis Taylor, L LTO.

Weke County Records. Minutes. p. 322 (1817)
" Division of the estate of Solcmon Terrell as follows:
Lot No. 1. to Madison Terrell;
2« to Jefferscn Terrell;
3 t2 James F. Powell, scn of his mother, R. Powell;



Lk, to Henry Cook in right of his wife, Luck Cook;

5. %to Wm. Ps. Terrell;

6. to Benjamin Marriott in right of his wife, Aley Marriott;
Ts to Amells Marriott, a widow;

8. to Solomon Terrell;

9, to John Terrell;

10. %o Eliznbeth Terrell;

11. to Jeptha Terrell;

12. to Harrison Terrell.

Wake Co. Records: 18 p 346: Will of Willlam Terrell Senior, dated 28 Sept.
1823, prov. Feb. term 1824, "0Of Wake Co."

Children: James, Solomon, Willfam &and Thamas Terrell, and my daughters
Rebecca Massey, Gilly Singleton, Cary Ann Terrell, Susannsh Nichols, and
Sarsh Atkins. Exec. Ewell Watts, 1f he dles or refuses to qualify, then
son James. Witts: F. Royeroft; Thos. Brasfield.

Remsey®s Annals of Tennessee p 596. May 2, 1769, Abrsham Bledsoe, Otadish
Terrell (and others) came to Tennessee and South Kentucky, scme from
Virginia and some from North Carolina.

Copy of Notes made by Miss Maud Mclure Xelly:

Mrs. We Po Welch, 1230 West Grand Rlver Ave., East Lansing, Mich., Jdescends
frome: Jas. Coxe, of Grayson Co., Va., born 2L Feb, 1763 at Pt. Chiswell;
n May 15, 1782, Mrs. Elizabeth Terrell, killed by Indians, ‘
Her Bible record shows:
Timothy Terrell, born 22 June, 173G;
Obadiah Terrell b Sept. 3, 1774. (Called "Ki".) To Ky. with Jas. Coxe.
Armie Terrell b Aug. 10, 1T776;
Sarsh Terrell born Nov. 5, 1T779;
Lucy Terrell b Sept. 12, 1780. (Also called Elizabeth.)

James Coxe and Ellzabeth (Craig?) Terrills children were:
John Coxe, b Mar. 4, 1784;

Susannsh;:

Joshua; (Also 1in Biblesz)

Betsy; Matthew Fidley b March 10, 1805

Mary; Terrell Mays b Sept. 10, 1803
Catherine;

Hirem Hannah Terrell Bledsoe's son Lewis was
Solomon; cousin of Wm. Mays, as per Pension
James Robertson; records. (See also Cruger.)

Cynthisa;

Margery;

Grayson Co. Records: William and Nancy Terrell of Grayson Co., Va., to
Samel Coxe of Ashe Co., N. C., deed dated Feb. 1814 to 273 acres on
Crab Creek and New River, in Grayson Co., Vae.
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NoTES MADE RY MISS MAUD MIIYFE RELILY TN JAROLINE C0s VAe RECORDS.
as she sgys., "hastily doue and in spots.”

Order Bocks 1732-1740. ¢ 6i. Apr. 12, 1733. The action of the case brought
by John Terrell pli agst Fobht., Willfs deft. 1s contfd.

Pe 53 Feb. 8, 1732-3. The acticn on the case brought by John Wilson plt agst
Jzhe Terrell, deft. is dismissed, 1%t being agreed. '

Pe S0s Foadas.Pcle Jat Swamp above William Terrell'’s

1741-46. p 49, L7h1l. Timo*hy Terrell acknowledges his deed of settlement with
livery of seizin endorsed thereon to Jnc, Terrell-- order recorded.

T 424 Apr. 10, 17k, <z omostiscn of Sarmh Terrell, wife of John Terrell of
this county (diverce astizn by her pgnding, in chancery, prays that he will
be required %o give bcrd ne exirent. ) (Xot %o leave the Province.) Motion
granted,

P» 3. Feccrd of John Terrell's bond. Miss Kelly says she has photostat.
P. 5%, June 12, 1TLI. Jchn Merzer vs es, of john Terrell- Terrellls VIO~
terty attached for fear he'd rtake i% out of Virginia before suls determined.

Pe 58-3. July IC, 174l. Sarsh Terrell vs John Terrell. Case settlad, Fe
sett.ed certaln proper®y on her, Jehn Maudiir, Trustes, for 1ife, or until
she returned to her hurkand.

(9. May 13, 1743, Jchn Terrelli's deed, lease and release, to Joseph Wool-
folk, proved by Jihn Hudsin, Wma. frrer and William Scuthworth. Sarah Terrell,
wife of eaid Joho Terrell re_eased dover.

2b4, Dee. 17h3. Jche Newpert vs John Terrell, property attached.

p. 298. Aug. 10, 174, case cont'd.
p. 323. Nov. 10, 1744, © "

P. 342, Jarn, 11, 17hk5, "
p. 460, Apr. 12, 17hks, " " At Plaintiff's cost
pP. 467. May 18, 1743, " '

p. 486, June 14, 1Th5, Plaintiff to pay George Martin & 150 of tobacco,
itress fee. Case tried and provisional Judgement
rendered of & 29.4.16 if the law be for Pltf. Case
‘ continued.
Pe 520. Auge. 9, 1T7h5. Case Argued
P. 539. Nov. 8, L745. Cn moticn of John Terrell, the depositions of Edward
Jones and Fhilemon Hawkins cf North Carclina be taken before a Justice there
to be admitted as evidence in the suit between Jno. Newport and Jno. Terrell.
Ps 548, Dec, 13, 17i5. Jmse continued.
P. 369. Feb. 15, 174546 Menoah Chiles vs John Terrell and Jno. Scott, Cont'd.
P. 5T6. June 17, 1746, Ccnt'de

.
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proc. money, tract on the waters of Tar Creek on the west side on ba&
of Crooked Creek containing by estimation 160 acres, Witts: James/tkf
(Jurat), Wm, Fish. Proved May Court 1768.

Lodwick Alford to John Ferrell, Gent., both of Bute, deed, 6 Feh
1769, k 5 Virginia money, 10 acres on: Crooked Creek., Witts: James A
Wm. (X) Sanders, Jr.

Thomas {T) Hill of Halifax Co. to Henry Westbrook of Bute Co., 4.
9 Sept. 1766, land swap, "LO2 acres lying both sides of Sandy Creek, )
at a red oak on the north side of Sandy Creek, thence 21 35 west to g
oak corner in Allen Mountjoy's line, thence alﬁng Mountjoy's line to g°
oak corner thence to a red oak corner in John Reignwater's line, thencg
along Reignwater's line to a white oak, corner, thence John Terrell'g ‘
line across the creek, thence up the creek to a red oak corner, thenc.
Hezekiah Terrell's line to a white oak corner, thence the sd Terrell'..
line to a red oak 35 Et 180 Pole to a red oak then Wt 55 Et to the Cr @&k
thence down the creek and across the creex to the first station, bein:
part of the three tracts of land orne ¢ Faersal's, one of Jzoan _ﬂr*bl1{g~ e
and Mountjoy's." Witts: Ben Hill, Bernamirn Tucier. B

James Terrell to John Terrell Sr., toth of Bwue Co,, deed, 23 Ju,
1764 & 100 proc money, 700 acres in Bute Co, "on bsth sides of the Mil: '
stone, beginning at a pine running along cones' _«ne, nortn 80 We 11L& polaﬂio
to a white oak, thence his line W 18A psle =o a white oak, thence Eas: M
136 pole to a red oak thence Crutehfieli's line, S° 13C pole to a pine,
thence his line 133 pole to a white cak, tliznce Sc 32 pole to a pine,
thence east 132 pole to a red oak, thence south o0 pole to the first
station.” Witts: Christopher Sutton, Eidnder (X) Guin (Jurat). Frovod
Jan. Court, 1765.

John Ferrell, Planter, to Frances Jones, son of Samuel Jones, ne.ro
man of the same county, deed 11 Oct 1766, L 12,10 proc. money, 160 acrea
of land on Crooked Creek "being part of a tract or parcel of land granr‘.
by Thomas Child, Chief Agent of the Honorable John Lord Carteret, Ear!
of Granville, to the Said John Ferrell, his heirs and assigns for 64l
acres, bearing date the 2Tth of July." Witts: John Alford, Joseph (\)
Wright.

List of Justices and Militia Officers, 1782-1806. G. 0. 14E-1800-
1810, Granville Co., N. C., 1807, John Terrell.

Granville Co, Tax Lists. 1755. John Terrell. Negroes Sam, Cupid,
Mingo, Frank, George, Judy and Sall. T black, 1 white poll. Hezekiah
Terrel and Negro Frank, 1 wkite poll, 1 blk poll.




177l. (L.P. 11. 1) Terrel, Jno. 2 taxables. , -
Bible records, of Solomon Terrell:

Born Nov. 27, 1755 4 Dec. 28, 1816, Wake Co., N. C. Married 1st Amelia Robertson,
bond dated 9-29-1778, Wake County, cohn Rice, Sec. She was b 2-5-1755 and d
8-20-1778. 1Issue:

Rebecca born July 20, 1779, d before father m Powell;

Lucy " June 30, 1781, m Henry Cooke;

Jane May 24, 1783, died young, unm;

Henry b July 17, 1785, & Jan. 30, 1830 m Elizabeth Fort;

Alice b Oct. 19, 1787 d Jan. 28, 1824, m Benjamin Marriott;
Harrison b July 28, 1789 m Martha Fowler;

Amelia b March 26, 1791, m (1lst) Sam'l Marriott, (2nd) Lemuel Cook;
Solomon b June 3, 1794%, m Mary A. Cook;

Wm. P. b April 21, 1796, m Lucy Jeifries.

Married (2nd) Nancy Wall, bond dated Aug. 25, 1801, Wake Co. She
25, 1867. She married second Joseph Horn. He iied Feb. 21, 1839,
May 20, 1820, Wake Co., N. C. Issue:

Jeptha, born died 1819, Wake Co., umm; .

John Lewis b Mar. 17, 1807, 4 Jan. 26, 1886, Rolesville, N.C., married
Sarah :

Elizabeth b Dec. 1, 1810, d May 13, 1841 = Crenshaw;

Thos. Jefferson bt Aug. 28, 1813 4 Dec. 5, 1881, m lst Olivia Roles,
second, Mary B. Johnson;

James Madison, b .

Dates from Mill Elizabéth Terrell, 18 West Peace St., Raleigh, N. C.
Mrs. Mary Terrell Scholar, 140OT Colonial Ave., Norfolk, Va.
Mrs. Lillian Young Weathers, Wake Forest, N, C. (Has old Bible.)

Quoted from a letter from Miss Maud Kelly dated Feb. 13, 1941s

"Ttye just returned from a flying trip to Washington, where I got a few
census records and returned via Richmond with two hours in the State Library,
where I got some photostats of Caroline Co. Order Books, showing John Terrell's
separation from second wife, Sarah, and his using North Carolina depositions
in a lawsuit, and next time I hope to read every word and get still more. It

clearly proves: (1) John Terrell was born before 1Tll. (2) He married Sarsh
(Maudlin?) before 1741, for she brought suit before April 17hl. (3)
She was still his wife in 1743 when she released dower in a deed of his. (L)
He went to Worth Carolina about that time and he had to give bond in 1741 not
to remove his property from Virginia to the prejudice of Sarah's alimony, and
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that was finally settled. Now, if Joel was his son, it was in John's old
age; if his grandson, then by a son older than Hezekiah."

Deeds 3, p 245: Joel Terrell from Benjamin Rush, deed, 21 Dec. 1800, con-
sideration, "my promises to Joel Terrell” (details not given), "together
with other motives me thereunto moving” conveys two acres described: Be-
ginning on the 01d Glebe Mill dam in my line thence along said line south
23% hickory stump thence north 87 east 20 poles to a white oak on the said
creek, thence up the said run to the bteginning. Wits: Wm. Verrell, (Jurat)
Gear ge Brogden.

Dec. , p 32. Joel Terrell, witness, 19 July 1783, deed of gift, Benjamin
Rush to William Rush his son, 60 acres Flat Rock Creek, ac’'cining Terrell,
Peyton, Flat Rock Creek, lowgrounds.

6 p. 90. Joel Terrell from Robert Peyton, deed 5 Jan. 178, L 50, 120 acres
on the north side of Lyons Creek and on flat rock creek, runs to Terrells
line and Glebe line. Wits: Benjamin Rush and John Thomas.

T p ki, Joel Terrell witnesses deed 20 July 1739, JTames Srev tc Beni. Push

=T - i
Jan. Court 17€6. No. 11, John Williazms ve Herelizh Terrell, atazhment
returned executed Judgement cont‘'d.
July Court, 1766. No, 10. John Williams Jr. vs Hezekish Terrell, jury sworn
(?) we find for the petitioner & 310 Judgt.
No. 43, New Actions Oct. Court. Ben:. Fush vz Hezekiah Terrell attachrent
returned executed in hands of John Ferrell, and Smith garnizlment sworn
hath als attacnment.

98. Rush vs Terrell (Not copied in full) con*'d.
106. Benjamin Rush vs Hezekiah Terrell garnishment sworn has nothing Ai att
N 3 att. July Court, 1767. No. 90 Rush vs Terrell, discontinued.

Marriage Bonds :
Alexander Frazier to Sarah Terrell, 19 Jw.e 1778, Jas. Meorney, Sec.
Wiliiam Rush to Abigail Terrell, 6 Feb. 1775, Jas. Martin, Sec.

P. 336. Henry Westbrook to John Foster, deed 14 April 1767, B 100. 420
acres "on both sides of Sandy Creek being a parsale of land formerly the
property of Hezekiah Terrell and deeded by the sd Terrell to Thomas Hill
and the sd Thomas Hill to me, etc.

p. 245, Osborn Jeffries, Sheriff of Bute Co. to Benjamin Ward, Sheriff's
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deed, 14 Feb. 1769. Fi Fa Inferior Court of Pleasg and Quarter sessions of
Bute Co., dated Jan. 27, 1767, in John Butler vs Benjamin Rush in Bute CO....
to a line between the said Rush and Hezekiah Terrell former line and thence by
the original line to the first station it being northermost end and the one-
half of six hundred and twenty acres of land taken up the sd Hezekiah Terrell
etc. and made over to the sd Rush by Hezekiah Terrell, by a deed bearing the
date the 11th day of Sept. 1762, etc.

Ref. Trial and New Action Docket 1766-67, New Actions, Oct. Court 1766. # L3.
Benjamin Rush vs Hezekiah Terrell. July Court # 90. Rush vs Hez. Terrell,
discontinued.

Bute County Deeds. In Warrenton Court House:

"A2 p 53. Hezekiah Ferrell to Thomas Hill of Halifax, deed, 24 Oct. 1764, &
100, 512 acres in Bute Co., on both sides of Sandy Creek and Flat Rock Creek,
adjoining Thomas Hill, Theophilus Goodwin, John Martin, William Hoite, Browning
Williams, John Ferrell...it being the remainder of the tract of land that John
Martin sold to Browning Williams. Wits: Thos. Hill, Jr., Beaumont Sutton.
Proved Nov. Court 1764, by Thomas Hill, Jr.

Ibid p 60. Hezecaiah Terrell to Joshua Pinnell, zo*h o7 Bute, deed datel =€
Net. 176h, L 200 proc. money, 300 acres zcdjoining zinnell in 2inicas SwaTD...
to an oak on Sandy Creek. Wits: Theophilus Goclwin, Joan lainwazer (Jurat).

Proved November Court 176L.

Ibid, p 61. Allen (x) Mountjoy to Hezekiah Terrel™, toti of Bute, deed 2 Tsp4.
1764, 145 acres on the north side of Sandy Creex zijoining Rainwater, 1t being
a tract of land granted to the said Allen Mountjcy vy 3 deed of zrant rom
Thomas Child Esq. dated 15 March 1760. Wits: Henry {x) Brewer, John Nerwood
(Jurat). Proved Nov. Court 1764k.

Ibid, p 116. Hezekiah Terrell to Edward Carlisle, both of Bute, deed 3 Aurc.
1764, L 20 current money, 80 acres in Bute, adjc’.:ing Tutnem, Crocker, Lawson.
Wits: James Petty, John Meglarm, Joseph Borden, Jeremiah Wooten.

Ibid, p 178. Hezekiah Terrell of Bute to Thomas Hill of Halifax Co., deed 25
Oct. 1764, L 15, proc. money, 422 acres on both sides of Sandy Creek, adjoining
Allen Mountjoy, John Raindakers?, John Terrell, Hezekiah Terr=ll, part of three
tracts of land, one of Foesel's (?), one of Juln Terrell, and one of Mountjoy's.
Wits: Thomas Hill, Jr. (Jurat), Beaumont Sutton.

p 211. Hezekiah Terrell to Samuel Freeman, both of Bute, deed 22 Apr. 1765,
L 40 proc. money, 200 acres "on the South side of Shocco (Shock's?) Creek,
being part of a tract of land conveyed to Hezekiah Terrell by my Lord Gran-
ville's Agents, deeds dated the 3rd day of Dec. 1760, it being the place
wvhere Reuben Lawson formerly kept tavern at the forks of the roads....to Hol-
combs corner. Signed Hezekiah Terrell, Phebe Terrell.
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Witnesses: Jesse Hunter, Joshua Savidge.,
Proved April Court 1765 by Jesse Hunter.

Deeds I. 1766-67, p 125. Allen Mountjoy to Elias Stallions, deed 23 Mar.

1765, 300 acres adjoining Davey Walker, Samuel Fowler, Hezekiah Terrell's
to Sandy Creek.

pP. 156. Arthur Williams to Samuel Freeman, both of Bute, deed 5 July 1765,
E 15 current money of Virginia, 170 acres on the sough side of Shocco Creek
being part of a tract conveyed to Hezekiah Terrell by ry Lord Granville's
agents, deeds dated the 3rd day of Dec. 1760, and afterwards conveyed to
Richard Holcomb by a deed from the said Terrell and from Holcomb to the said
Arthur Williams (ete, by metes and bounds)...head of Peter Hill's branch...
Roundtree's corner. Wits: Matthew Thomas, Stephen Cupton, Mich'l Collins,

BUTE COUNTY MISCELLANEQUS COQURT PAFERS 1T76L-1779.

1772 Abigail Terrell to James Martin, Dr. Proc.
to Sundrys paid to Mr. Park L 3. L. L,
o Sundrys paid to Mr. 3ell .03, 2.
to Mr. Blalock for the dance cne vear = 21 2
to Gurdon for one year's ccheoling 1 3 2
to her board and room one vear = ° 0

i “‘vl
1‘ E

Contra (On cpposite side)
1772 By hire of negro Patt one year E 13 6 8B
By Mr. Cupples for hire of Pa:t L3

Bute Co. Feb. Court 1773.

-~ This account was exhibited in court Yy James Martin, the guardian, to
which he made oath and the same being examined and approved of the court zod
ordered to be recorded.

Test. Z2en McCullough, C. C.

177T1. Abigail Terrell, Dr. to James Martin, Guardlan
To boarding w1th me one year k S
To boarding two small negroes 3
To money paid Dr. Hopkins for cur-
ing her negro woman of the venereal

disease T 6 0
L 16 6 G

To balance due proc. 12 13 L
3 13 7

& 16 Guardian
Exrrors Excepted
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Contra o -

By Dr. Cupples E 2 13 7 :
By Jas. Gray for hire of negro :
woman 10

12 13 7

Bute County Feb. Court 1772. -

This account was exhibited in court by ‘James Martin, the Guardian, to
which he made ocath, and the same being examined and approved of by the Court
is ordered to be recorded.

Test: Ben McCullough C.C.

Original bond of James Martin as Guardian Abigail Terrell, orphan of
Hezekiah Terrile, E 300, 14 Nov. 1770, Sureties Theophilus Goodwin, John
Acknowledges in open Court Nov. Court 1770.

Bute Co. Court Misc. Papers. 1765-1779. (Supra.)

Deed, Benjamin Sims, of “raven Co. to James Martin of Bute Co. 16 March 1768.
"Natril love and E 10, conveys all "our" intzrest "parvonal" in estate of John
Martin, deceased, of Granville Co. Wits: Fail Martin, Jr., Fhebe Terrell.
Proved at May Court, 176G.

Bute Co. Guardians Accts. 1770-1773.

P. 3 Settlement of James Martin as guardien of Abigail Terrell, 1771, (as abcve)
P 5 same for 1772 (as above).

Notes from the Terrell Genealogy by E. Dicken:

Page 261-~John Terrell, born in New Kent Co., Va., probably between 1705-10,
son of William and Susannah Terrell, died in North Carolina about 1785. He
first established his home in Caroline County, where his brothers William,
David, Henry and James lived. In the Land Patent Books of the State Land
Office at Richmond, Va., there is a patent to John Terrell of Caroline Co.,

for 800 acres of land in Spotsylvania County, Va., dated Sept. 28, 1730 given
in two tracts of 400 acres each in the first fork of the Rapidan River in

St. Georges! Parish. Book 14 pp 38-Ll. John Terrell was married twice while
living in Caroline County, Va. The first wife Rlizabeth was no doubt the mother
of his children. The second marriage to Sarah seems to have been of short dur-
ation, as 10th April, 17hl, she was suing him for divorce. While this case was
‘pending in chancery, they came to an agreement regarding alimony, and in April
17k2, it was stated that he had conveyed to her a certain amount of property
with John Mouldin acting as her trustee. No children were named in the suit.
It appears that he left scmeone to represent him in business matters and went
on to North Carolina about 1743 or 17hlk. This move was probably made soon
after the death of his father, William Terrell.....The exact time of John )
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Terrell's death is not known, but occured after 1780 and before 1789, when

on the latter date a tract of land, part of his estate, was sold by his will
and was bought by his son, Jeptha Terrell. The will of John Terrell has

been lost and the exact date is unknown. John Terrell and his wife (1lst wife)
Elizabeth, had the following children, (all born in Caroline County, Va.,):

l. Lohamar (Lo-Hannah?), b about 1730, died 1810, married Jacob Bledsoe;
2. Hezekiah, b about 1732, d about 1767, married Phoebe Martin;

3. Jeptha, b about 1733, 4 1810, married twice;

L, John b about 1735 married Susannah Douglas;

S5 Ann, b about 1737 married William Martin;

6. Agnes, b about 1739 married Robert Washington;

The dates of the above are approximate and not to be taken as actual facts,
except Lohamar and Jeptha. E

Page 264: Hezekiah Terrell, son of John and Elizabeth Terrell, married
about 1758 or 1759, Phoebe Martin, daughter of John and Rachel Martin.
The children of Hezekiah and Phoebe Terrell were: (1) Abigail Terrell,
born according to her family Bible 6 Jan. 1760, 4 29 Dec, 1835: (2)
Timothy, born 17 Oct. 1762, 4 31 July 17231; (3) ¥alec*t, b 10 Jan 1743,
Hezekiah and Phoebe both signed a deed 22 Feb., 1755, Zezexiah Terrell was
a private in Nerth Carolina Militia, 3C April 1744, Capt. Suger Jones Co.
as shown by the muster roll. Land records show that Hezexian was granted
three tracts of land in then Granville County, later Bute County, N. C.
One tract of 550 scres granted 11 Mar. 1760, was on both sides of New
Light Creek. Another tract, granted 3 Dec. 1760 for £26 acres, was on
both sides of Sandy Creek. (Bk. 14, pp 75-6-7.) He sold 512 acres on 24
Oct. 1764 for 100 1lbs. described as on both siles of Sandy Creek, and
Flat Rock Creek, joining John Martin, John Terrell, Browrning Williams, and
three others named, it being the remainder of a trasct that John Martin had
sold to Browning Willlams. Proved Nov. Court 176k. It is believed that
Hezekish's death occured in the latter part of 17€7. At Nov. Court 1770,
James Martin was appointed guardian of Abigall Terrell, orphan of Heze-
kiah Terrell, Dec'd. (Book of minutes, Bute Co., N. C. Court p 149. Tt
is not known when Phoebe Terrell died. Her son, Halcot Hawkins Terrell,
was serving as constable in Franklin County in 1796."

A FEW NOTES ON MARTIN'S IN NORTH CAROLINA

A James Martin was married to Sally Lyles on May 12, 1773, a Joseph
Mertin to Sarah Smith on Feb. T, 1775, a Charneck Rush or Rush to Mary
Stone on March 15, 1820, a James Terrell to Polly House on Nov. 23, 1802,
a Richmond Terrell to Sarah Martin May 22, 1786, (surety William Rush.),
all in Bute Co., N. C.

John Terrell's will mentions his daughter Ann, wife of William Martin.
July T, 176k.
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Nov. 9, 17Tk, Deed from Vm. Martin and wife Ann to James Martin.

John Martin. Inventory by Rachel Martin, Bute Co., N. C. Adm'r granted Rachel
Martin May 1769.

Bute Co. Wills and Deeds. p. 63. Rachel Martin's bond as Adm'x of estate of
John Martin, deceased, late of Bute Co., dated 9 May 1769.

p. 89. Sale in estate of John Martin.... all to Rachel and James.

p. 98. Accounts of Rachel Martin, admx of estate of John Martin, dec'd, signed
by mark. "Clear estate that is to be divided between the widow and seven sons."
To Zacharish, the eldest son.

Jos. Martin

William Martin,

George Martin,

Roger Martin,

Jemes Martin, 1/7 EACH of balance

Philemon Martin,

"To my 1/3 of the clear estate'....Nov. Court, 1749,

Wills, Warren Co. Court House. Bk, 2 p 130, Rachel Martin's Will, Co-. 20,
1771,

Will of Gibson Martin, 19 Feb. 17Th. Feb. Court 1775. WiZe Ann, son John,
son Thomas.

Minute Book Bute Co. 1767-1T76. p. 311. Deed from ¥william Martin and wite Ann
to James Martin proved Nov. §, 177k.

Extract from letter from Miss Kelly dated July 1%, 1939: "In May 1776, Rachel
Martin, widow, appeared and said that her son James had fraudulently obtained
a deed from her and asked that it not be registered without a hearing. Her
will was probated 13 May 1777, and son James qualified as executor. She had
returned an inventory of the estate of John Martin on 30 Oct. 1775, who nad
had sons Roger and James apparently. In 177l the Martins on the tax list were:
George, 1 tithable; John, 1 tithable; and James 6 tithables; so that John who
died 1775 may have been guardian James Martin's brother, and no dqubt was.

Bute Co., N. C. Misc. Court Papers 1765-1T7T79. Deed, BenJamin Sims of Craven
Co. to James Martin of Bute Co. 16 March 1768. "Natril love and & 10",
conveys all "our" interest "parvonal" estate of John Martin, dec'd, of Gran-
ville Co.” Wits: Phil Martin, Jr., Phebe Martin Terrell. Proved at May Court
1769,



Bute County Deed, Warrenton: R
pP. 28, Joseph Martin, William Martin, George Martin and James Martin, all
of Bute Co., bill of sale, 23 Oct. 1767, " the love and natural love we bear
our younger brother".."all and each of our interests, shares and portions
and claims in law and equity of and unto the rersonal estate of our deceased
father, John Martin, late of Granville Co. Dec'd." Wits: George Broggen
(Jurats Wm. (x) Brogden. Proved May Court 1768.

P. 158. George Martin to Philemon Hawkins, both of Granville Co., deed 7
Aug. 1761, L 300 current money of Virginia, 1042 acres in Cranville Co. on
Sandy Creek and the waters of the same: first tract, 200 acres on north side
of sd Creek being the land that John Martin bought of Edward Jones and con-
veyed to me by deed of gift; second tract, 30 acres on east side of Owen
Pounders branch, being the land that John Martin purchased of Fras,., Strothers
by deed of sale dated 2nd day of Jan. 1758 and conveyed to me, the sd

George Martin by a deed of gift dated the third day of Oct. 1759 whereon he
lives; 3rd tract, 350 acres on the north side of sd crick on both sides of
Owen Pounder's branch..to..Strother's line..being the land that George
Martin obtained a deed for from Fari Grasriille's agents datel the Oth day of
August 1759; Lth tract, 200 acres btegirns at a voplar east al:ng Bledsoe's to
a poplar, then north....to John Martin®s lire ard along niz _Ire t5 the be-
ginning, belng the same land that was bequeathed to me by e last will and
testament of my father, John Martin, dec'd; 5th tract, 650 acres on the
north side of Sandy Creek..runs elong Terrell's line, Vard's line..Cook's
line..Iyle's line...Terrell's lire..Strother's line..Martin's line.ieneases
original grant from Farl Granville's Agents 16 lMar. 1751; &4h tract, 314
acres on both sides of Sandy Creek..Cwens line...it being *he land I pur-
chased from Robert Jones, Jr. Esq., and the above being ali the land that

I, George Martin was possessed of that lies on Sandy Cree and the waters
thereof. Wits: Mourning x Roberts, John x Stroud (Jurat). Nov. Court, 176l.
Ack. 11 Oct. 1763. Proved Bute Co. Court July Term, 1765

P. 85. Joseph Martin witnessed deed from Thomas and Sarah Bell,

p. 140. Zachariah Martin to Philemon Hawkins, deed, May 23, 1766, 190 acres,
part of the land formerly belonging to John Martin, dec‘'d.

P. 250, Sheriff's deed to Jos. Montford, 18th Oct. 1769, recites suit of
Jose Montford Esq., of Halifax Co. as executor of David Rogers, dec'd vs
George Martin...conveys 1420 ascres on north side of Sandy Creek and 1400
on both sides of Sandy Creek.

P. 252. Jos. Martin (and Jno. Terrell) witnessed deed 31 Aug. 1764 John
Odom to Dennis Bradley.

Hist. Collections of Ga. D.A.R., Vol I, p. 268: Nancy Martin to John Martin
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of Union Co., S. C., power of attorney dated Nov. 2, 1807 to recover certain
property glven by her mother, Sarah Martin, (relics of James Martin), who after-
wards married Richmond Terrell who sold the property to Moses Guiton of Union
Co., Se C., before the sd Sarah Martin became of full age.

p. 191. Nancy Martin to James Ash, marriage bond Oct. 27, 1814. see also census
of 1790, Union Dist. S. C.

Wills, Warren Co., N. C. Court House:
2 p 130. Rachel Martin Will, Oct. 30, 17T1.

L, p 104, Sarsh Martin's deed of gift to her children, Alexander, John, Gabriel,
Nancey, Fanney and Sally Martin, dated 22 July 1785, love, 6 negroes.

1. formerly "A"., Zachariah x Martin, of Craven Co., S. C., to Rachel Martin
of Bute Co., N. C., bill of sale dated 11 Aug. 1768 love and affection and &
20 proe. money, conveys "all my rit and portion and shears of the estate of
John Martin, dec'd, late of Granville Co. containing live stock, household
goods and negroes". Witness: Benjamin Martin Friday, James Martin. Proved
Oct. Court, 1767 by Jemes Martin.

Zacharish x Martin, '"late of Orange Co., Province of North Carolina, beirg then
moving, did on the 20th day of Dec. 1763 assign, ordain...my “rue friend Thomas
Bell of Granville Co.,.my true and lawful attorne) to sell...a certain piece

or parcel of land situate or lying on the north side of Sandy Creek adjoining
William Martin’s line, Christopher Foster and Th.cs. Terrell's line, quantity
190 acres more or less also the said Thomas Bell I constitute administrator or
to eppoint administrators for me and in my name in and upon the estate of my
deceased father that shall appear to be my property or part at the time of
division of the sd estate", etc. revocation of power of attorney. Dated 18 Nov.
1766. Witnesses, George x Pain, Jemes Martin (Jurat), Matt Hubbard. Proved
Oct. Court, 1767.

p. 24. George Martin to Philemon Hawkins, both of the county of Bute, bill of
sale, 10 Feb, 1768, k 20, "all my interest, share, property and claim of and
unto the personal estate of my father, John Martin, late of the county and
Province afsd.”" Witnesses: Len, Henley Bullocik, Phill Hawkins, Jr., Proved
Feb. Court 1768.

noted "two shillings and sixpence Virgd currency delivd in nesme of the above,
etec. '

Warren Co., N. C. -In Warrenton. Wills 4 p 125: James Martin's will, 1785.
July Court, 1785. Wife Sarah, all my lands in S. C. on Gilkes Creek, 12 negroes,
etc., forever. Eldest son Alexander Martin, son John Martin, youngest son Gabriel
Martin, eldest daughter Nancy Martin, dau. Fanny Martin, youngest daughter Sarah
Martin. Executrix, wife, Sarah Martin. Wits: Daniel Barrow, John Barrow, Samuel
Devis, Aasron Tyssell.

A
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NEW INDEX TO
TERRELL FAMILY by NellieF. Ayres

Created by Dan Brinson 02/02/2002

This is not a complete index. The front of this volume is consumed by 30 list type pedigree charts that are numbered and cross
referenced to each other. Indexing these would have meant almost copying the book. Furthermore, documentation cannot be found
to link the TERRELLS of Virginiato the Euorpean royalty -- much lessto Adam & Eve. Thiswork should be adequate for research
needs. This volume may be read with WORD 97 or newer. The .tif images can be read with PAINT, but may not print out. The
.PDD pages require Adobe Acrobat viewer. If your printer is not a postcript printer, these pages may not print, but can be read.

The page numbers here refer to the original book page numbers. To find a page in the image document using " go to page#', it is
necessary to ADD 4 to the page number (i.e., for page 1 "go to page 5). To find a .tif image for the page, ADD 2 (for page 1, open
007_03.tif).

THIS INDEX IS SOUNDEX SORTED. IT ISNOT IN STRICT ALPHABETICAL ORDER. PREFIXES ARE IGNORED AND
NAME IS LISTED BY ROOT NAME, for example MC DONALD islisted in D not M. Names beginning DE and other prefixes
are treated similarly. The electronic .doc version of this index can be searched with the EDIT "FIND" feature. Text cannot be cut
and pasted from the images.

FORMAT: Soundex, SURNAME, First Name Middle name Nick/MAIDEN name; title; page No(s).

2, Pat; slave; 69; 81 B163 DE BEAUFORT, Robert; Earl;
SECTION ONE ?, Pl_a%idig; Lady; 6 6
SURNAMES OTHER THAN ? , Richard; King; 5 B250 BAUCUM, ; Mr.; 72; 73
TERREL L ? ,Richard I of Normandy; Duke; 6 B340 BODLEY, ; Mr.; 72
? , Sall; dave; 77 B340 BODLEY, Elizabeth; Miss; 5
? , Sam; dave; 77 B340 BODLEY, Thomas, Mr.; 5
NO SURNAME LISTED ?  Theodosius, 6 B346 BUTLER, John; Mr.; 80
? , Adam; 11 _ 2, Vaentinian III; 6 B400 BELL, ; Miss; 56; 81
? , Alfred the Grest; King; 6 B400 BELL, Thomas, Mr.; 73; 74;
? , Arthur; King; 6 A 86
? , Athenias; 6 B420 BULLOCK, Henley; Mr.; 86
3 ,gﬁw;lsla}vs;_ 63 o A200 ASH, James. Mr.: 86 B420 BULLOCK, Len; 86
¢, Char eS._ Ing; A200 ASH, Nancy MARTIN; Mrs;; B423 BLASTAND, Gunnora; Miss;
? , Constantius |1; Emperor; 6 86 6
? , Cupid, S@Ve_; 77. A216 AXFORD, Elizabeth: Miss; B423 BLASTAND, Harald; King; 6
? ,Edward I; ng,_5 54: 55 B432 BLEDSOE, Abraham; Mr.; 75
3 'E'ﬁf;“%fd ‘I’_f }S"ﬁ'_'g Queen; 5 A260 ACRE, Joan of; Princess; 5 B432 BLEDSOE, Agnes; Miss; 64
2, Ethélrod |; King; A325 ATKINS, Sarsh TERREKK; B432 BLEDSOE, Anne, Miss, 64
? , Eudoxig Lady; 6 Mrs.: 75 B432 BLEDSOE, Barnabas, Mr.; 64
? -Eve- 1_1L " A416 ALFORD, James; Mr.; 77 B432 BLEDSOE, Hanneh
’.) s Fausta, La:ly, 6 A416 ALFORD, John, Mr.; 77 TERRELL, Mrs; 55, 62, 63,
: 'Fa“SIt(C_"S' fﬂY-?? A416 ALFORD, Lodwick; Mr.; 77 64, 65, 83 _
2, Hank; save; A450 ALLEN, Caniza TERRELL; B432 BLEDSOE, Hezekiah T; Mr.;
? ,FrodeVII; 6 Mrs.: 66 64
Z , (FBrotPfo; Klgg; 6 . A536 AND'ERSON, “Mr.: 72 B432 BLEDSOE, Jacob; Mr.; 63; 64;
: ,Geo re_yé OL_‘”?t-? A620 AYRES, ManliusA; Mr.; 4 83
7 -Gmfge-lllf""}f; - AB20 AYRES, Nellie F; Miss; 4; 57 B432 BLEDSOE, John; Mr.; 64
¢, Loeorgelll, King, AB20 AYRES, Priscilla Frances B432 BLEDSOE, Lewis; Capt; 64;
? , Gidebert (Gilbert); Count; 6 PRIEST: Mrs.: 4 56 65
? , Hafdan; King; 6 AB20 AYRES,'Samu'eI 'Matthias; B432 BLEDSOE, Richmond; Mr.;
? , Hannah; dave; 63 Mr.: 4 64
? , Helen; Lady; 6 A620 AYRES, Theresa Virginia BA435 BALDWIN, Jane; Miss; 4
?, H!Ida,_Lady, 6 DORSEY: Mrs.; 4 B435 BALDWIN, Robert; Mr.; 4
? , Hilaeric; King; 6 A625 ARCHINARD, Cesear; Mr.; B442 BLALOCK, ; Mr.; 81
Z ,Hunnerl_c, 6 68 B600 BARROW, Dani€l; Mr.; 86
2+ John; King; 5 A625 ARCHINARD, Emily Mary BE00 BARROW, John; Mr.; 86
? , Juda; dave; 63 TERRELL: Mrs.: 68 B620 BRUCE, Isabel DE CLARE;
2, Judy; dlave; 77 ' ' Mrs.; 5
2, Lade dave; 63 B B620 BRUCE, Isabel
3 ,k/IYONS; Cﬁwk;f% 3 HUNTINGTON; Mrs;; 5
? ,Mary mother o S, . B620 BRUCE, Robert; Mr.; 5
? , Mingo; dave; 77 B163 'iﬂEisz_Eg‘UFORT' Hawise B620 DE BURGH, Hubert; Earl: 5
? , Ned; dave; 63 ’



B620

B621
B622

B622

B623
B623
B625
B630

B632
B634
B635
B650
B650
B650
B650
B650
B650

B653
B660

C135
C142
C200
C200

C200
C200
C200
C200
C200

C200
C200
C200
C200

C200
C200
C200

C200
C200
C200
C200
C200
C200
C200
C420
C420

C430
C452
C455

C460

DE BURGH, Margaret; Miss;
5

BRASHELD, Thos.; Mr.; 75
BURGESS, Austin Willis; Mr.;
68

BURGESS, Harriett
TERRELL; Mrs.; 68
BROGDEN, George; Mr.; 79
BROGDEN, Wm.; Mr.; 85
BROGGEN, George; Mr.; 85
BAIRD, Mollie RUSH; Mrs,;
56

BRIDGES, Joseph; Mr.; 77
BRADLEY, Dennis; Mr.; 85
BORDEN, Joseph; Mr.; 73; 80
LE BRUN, DARCY; Mrs,; 5
LE BRUN, Alice; Miss; 5

LE BRUN, Elizabeth; Miss; 5
LE BRUN, Hugh; Mr.; 5

LE BRUN, Humphrey; Mr.; 5
LE BRUN, Yolonde
MAUCLARK; Mrs.; 5
BRANDON, Thomas; Mr.; 5
BREWER, Hnery; Mr.; 80

C

CUPTON, Stephen; Mr.; 81
CUPPLES, ; Mr.; 81; 82
COOK, ; Mr.; 85

COOK, Amelia TERRELL
Marriott; Mrs.; 78

COOK, Henry; Mr.; 75; 78
COOK, Lemuel; Mr.; 78
COOK, Martha; Miss; 68
COOK, Mary A; Miss, 78
COOKE, Lucy TERRELL;
Mrs.; 78

COXE, Betsy; Miss; 75
COXE, Cathering; Miss; 75
COXE, Cynthia; Miss; 75
COXE, Elizabeth CRAIG?
Terrell; Mrs.; 75

COXE, Hiram; Mr.; 75
COXE, James; Mr.; 65; 75
COXE, James Robertson; Mr.;
75

COXE, John; Mr.; 75
COXE, Joshua; Mr.; 75
COXE, Margery; Miss; 75
COXE, Mary; Miss; 75
COXE, Samuel; Mr.; 75
COXE, Solomon; Mr.; 75
COXE, Susannah; Miss; 75
CHILES, Menoah; Mr.; 76
MC CULLOUGH, Ben; Mr.;
69; 81; 82

CHILD, Thomas; Mr.; 77; 80
COLLINS, Mich'l; Mr.; 81
CLEMENTS, Anne
BLEDSOE; Mrs.; 64

DE CLARE, Agnes, Miss, 5

C460
C460
C460
C460
C460
C460

C460
C460

C460

C460
C460

C460
C460
C460
C460
C465
C465
C514
C523
C523
C534
C615
C616

C616
C620

C620
C623
C626
C632
C636

C642

D120
D120
D242

D250

D620
D620

E350

DE CLARE, Alice LE BRUN;
Mrs.; 5

DE CLARE, Amice
FITZROBERT; Mrs.; 6

DE CLARE, Eleanor; Miss; 5
DE CLARE, Gilbert; Earl; 5; 6
DE CLARE, Isabel; Miss; 5
DE CLARE, Isabella
MARSHALL; Mrs.; 5

DE CLARE, Joan; Miss; 6
DE CLARE, Joan of ACRE;
Mrs.; 5

DE CLARE, Margaret DE
BURGH; Mrs.; 5

DE CLARE, Maud; Miss; 6
DE CLARE, Maud DE
LACEY; Mrs.; 5

DE CLARE, Maud DE ST.
HILLARY; Mrs.; 6

DE CLARE, Richard; Earl; 5;
6

DE CLARE, Roger; Earl; 6
MC CLURE, Maud; Miss; 57
DE CLERMONT, Addliza;
Miss; 6

DE CLERMONT, Hugh;
Count; 6

CAMPBELL, Sdllie RUSH;
Mrs.; 56

CONSTANTINUS, Flavius
Julius; Emperor; 6
CONSTANTINUS, Flavius
Valerius Aurelius; Emperor; 6
CHANDLER, Robert; Mr.; 58
CORBIN, ; Mr.; 72; 73
CRAWFORD, Amanda Louise
TERRELL; Mrs.; 68
CRAWFORD, James; Mr.; 68
CHEAIRS, Sarah RUSH;
Mrs.; 56

CRAIG, Elizabeth; Miss; 65
CHRISTIAN, ; Miss; 56
CROCKER, ; Mr.; 80
CRUTCHFIELD, ; Mr.; 74; 77
CARTERET, John Lord; Earl;
77

CARLISLE, Edward; Mr.; 80

D

DAVIS, Samuel; Mr.; 86
DOBBS, Arthur; Gov.; 73
DOUGLAS, Susanna; Miss;
64; 71; 72; 83

DICKEN, Emma; Miss, 61
DARCY, Robert; Mr.; 5
DORSEY, Theresa Virginia;
Miss; 4

E

EATON, Wm,; Col.; 72

E400
E520

F200
F236

F236
F240
F324

F324
F324
F324

F324

F324

F324
F324

F326
F326

F326

F460
F460
F500
F623
F624
F624

F626
F626

F630
F640
F640
F640
F640
F652

F655

G163
G350

G350
G410
G416

G416
G456

G500
G540

ELEY, Josiah; Mr.; 74
ENSKE, Gorm; 6

F

FISH, Wm.; Mr.; 77
FOSTER, Christopher; Mr.; 70;
86

FOSTER, John; Mr.; 68; 79
FOESEL, ; Mr.; 80
FITZALEN, Isabel DE
SPENCER; Mrs.; 5
FITZALEN, Philippa; Miss; 5
FITZALEN, Richard; Mr.; 5
FITZGILBERT, Adeliza DE
MESCHINES; Mrs.; 6
FITZGILBERT, Alice DE
PERCIE; Mrs.; 6
FITZGILBERT, Richard; Earl;
6

FITZGILBERT, Robert; Mr.; 6
FITZGILBERT, Rohese
GIFFORD; Mrs.; 6
FITZROBERT, Amice; Miss; 6
FITZROBERT, Hawise DE
BEAUFORT; Mrs.; 6
FITZROBERT, William; Earl;
6

FOWLER, Martha; Miss; 78
FOWLER, Samuel; Mr.; 81
FAWN, Wm.; Mr.; 68
FORSTER, John; Mr.; 73
FOERSAL, ; Mr.; 77
FRIZZLE, Rebecca RUSH;
Mrs.; 56

FRAZIER, Alexander; Mr.; 79
FRAZIER, Sarah TERRELL;
Mrs.; 79

FORT, Elizabeth; Miss; 78
FERRELL, ; 65

FERRELL, Hezekiah; Mr.; 80
FERRELL, John; Mr.; 77; 79
FERRIL, John; Mr.; 77
FRENCH, Abigail RUSH;
Mrs.; 56

FREEMAN, Samuel; Mr.; 80;
81

G

GIFFORD, Walter; Mr.; 6
GOODWIN, Theophilus; Mr.;
70; 80

GUITON, Moses, Mr.; 86
GLEBE, ; Mr.; 79

GILBERT, Jane RUSH; Mrs;;
56

GILBERT, Nancy RUSH;
Mrs.; 56

MC GLOMRE, John; Mr.; 73
GUIN, Eldner; Mr.; 77
GAMMEL, Gorm Del; King; 6



G600

G600
G621
G635
G640
G650
G651

G652

H125
H163
H230

H252
H252

H300

H300
H326

H330
H400
H400
H400
H400
H425
H433
H460

H460

H530
H535

H535

H536
H620

H620
H620

H620
H620

H620
H620
H650
H650

GORE, Agnes BLEDSOE;
Mrs.; 64

GRAY, James; Mr.; 79; 81
GRIGSBY, Alice; Miss; 4
GURDON, ; Mr.; 81

DE GROIL, John; Mr.; 5
GREEN, John; Mr.; 71
GRANVILLE, ; lord; 61; 74;
77

GRIMSTEAD, Miranda E
PRIEST; Mrs.; 56

H

HOPKINS, ; Dr.; 81
HUBBARD, Matt; Mr.; 86
HOCKADAY, Nancy; Miss;
71

HAWKINS, John; Mr.; 70
HAWKINS, Philemon; Mr.;
73; 76; 85; 86

HAYWOOD, John; Mr.; 72;
73

HOITE, William; Mr.; 80
HEDGER, Victorene A
PRIEST; Mrs.; 56
HATWOOD, John; Mr.; 72
HILL, Ben; Mr.; 77

HILL, Henry; Mr.; 73

HILL, Peter; Mr.; 81

HILL, Thomas; Mr.; 79; 80
HOLCOMB, Richard; Mr.; 81
HILDETAND, Harad; King; 6
DE ST. HILLARY, James;
Mr.; 6

DE ST. HILLARY, Maud;
Miss; 6

HUNT, Robert; Mr.; 64
HUNTINGTON, David of;
Mr.; 5

HUNTINGTON, Isabel; Miss;
5

HUNTER, Jesse; Mr.; 81
HARRIS, Alice RUSH; Mrs;;
56

HARRIS, Arthur; Mr.; 56
HARRIS, Emeline RUSH;
Mrs.; 56

HARRIS, John; Mr.; 4
HARRIS, Patience TAYLOR;
Mrs.; 4

HARRIS, Priscilla; Miss; 4
HARRIS, Sarah; Ms.; 74
HORN, Joseph; Mr.; 78
HORN, Nancy WALL Terrell;
Mrs.; 78

1524 INGLETON, Jane; Miss, 4

J

J162
J162
J200

J520
J520
J520
J520
J520
J520
J523

J525
J635

K400

K530

L200
L200
L200

L200
L200
L200

L250
L316
L400
L420
L560
L600

JEFFRIES, Lucy; Miss; 78

JEFFRIES, Osborn; Mr.; 79

JAGOE, Miranda RUSH; Mrs.;
56

JONES, ; Mr.; 77

JONES, Edward; Mr.; 76; 85

JONES, Frances, Mr.; 77

JONES, Robert; Mr.; 85

JONES, Samudl; Mr.; 77

JONES, Sugar; Capt.; 72; 83

JOHNSTON, Gabriel; Gov.;
61; 74

JOHNSON, William; Mr.; 70

JORDAN, David Starr; Mr.; 4

K

KELLY, Maud MC LURE;
Mrs.; 57; 66; 67; 68; 70; 71;
75; 76; 78; 84

KNUT, Horda; King; 6

L

DE LACEY, John; Mr.; 5
DE LACEY, Maud; Miss; 5
LACIE, Maud DE CLARE;
Mrs.; 6

LACIE, Roger; Baron of; 6
LEECH, Dennis; Mr.; 5
LEWIS, Ann TERRELL,;
Mrs.; 55

LAWSON, Reuben; Mr.; 80
LODBROK, Rayner; King; 6
LYLE, ; Mr.; 85

LYLES, Saly; Miss; 83

MC LEMORE, Robert; Mr.; 68
MC LURE, Maud; Miss, 66

M

M160 DE MOWBRAY, Agnes DE

CLARE; Mrs;; 5

M160 DE MOWBRAY, Roger; Mr.;

M160

5

DE MOWBRAY, Wm.; Mr.; 5

M200 MASSEY, Rebecca

TERRELL; Mrs.; 75

M200 MAYS, Terill; Mr.; 65

M200 MAYS, William; Mr.; 65
M240 MOSELEY, ; Cal.; 72

M246 MAUCLARK, Pierre; Mr.; 5
M246 MAUCLARK, Yolonde; Miss;

5

M246 MEGLARM, John; Mr.; 80
M250 MACHEN, Thos,; Mr.; 70; 71

M252

M252

DE MESCHINES, Addliza;
Miss; 6

DE MESCHINES, Randolph;
Earl; 6

M345 MAUDLIN, John; Mr.; 76

M435
M531
M532
M532
M532
M624
M624
M626
M630
M630
M630
M630
M630
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635

M635
M635

M635
M635

M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M635
M650
M650
M650

M650
M650

MOULDIN, John; Mr.; 82
MONTFORT, Jos.; Mr.; 85
MONTAGU, Edward; Sir; 4
MONTAGU, Eleanor; Miss; 4
MOUNTJOY, Allen; Mr.; 77;
80; 81

MARSHALL, Isabella; Miss;
5

MARSHALL, William; Mr.; 5
MERCER, John; Mr.; 76
MARRIOTT, Alice "Aley"
TERRELL; Mrs.; 75; 78
MARRIOTT, Amdia
TERRELL; Mrs.; 78
MARRIOTT, Amdia
TERRELL?;, Widow; 75
MARRIOTT, Benjamin; Mr.;
75

MARRIOTT, Samudl; Mr.; 78
MARTIN, Alexander; Mr.; 86
MARTIN, Ann; Mrs.; 84
MARTIN, Ann TERRELL;
Mrs.; 62; 63; 64; 83; 84
MARTIN, Fanney; Miss; 86
MARTIN, Gabriel; Mr.; 86
MARTIN, George;, Mr.; 69;
76; 84; 85; 86

MARTIN, Gibson; Mr.; 84
MARTIN, James; Mr.; 66; 67;
68; 69; 70; 71; 73; 79; 81; 82;
83; 84; 85; 86

MARTIN, John; Mr.; 4; 55;
68; 80; 83; 84; 85; 86
MARTIN, Joseph; Mr.; 62;
73; 83; 84; 85

MARTIN, Josiah; Mr.; 70; 71
MARTIN, Nancy; Miss; 85;
86

MARTIN, Philemon; Mr.; 84
MARTIN, Phoebe; Miss; 4;
55; 66; 67; 83; 84

MARTIN, Rachdl; Mrs,; 4; 55;
68; 83; 84; 86

MARTIN, Roger; Mr.; 84
MARTIN, Sally; Miss; 86
MARTIN, Sally LYLES;
Mrs.; 83

MARTIN, Sarah; Miss; 83
MARTIN, Sarah; Mrs.; 86
MARTIN, Thomas, Mr.; 84
MARTIN, William; Mr.; 55;
63; 83; 84; 85; 86

MARTIN, Zachariah; Mr.; 84;
85; 86

MARNEY, Agnes
THROCKMORTON; Mrs.; 5
MARNEY, Ann or Anna;
Miss; 5

MARNEY, Elizabeth
SERJEAUX; Mrs.; 5
MARNEY, John; Mr.; 5
MARNEY, William; Mr.; 5



M650 MEORNEY, Jas.; Mr.; 79
N

N163 NEWPORT, Jno.; Mr.; 76

N163 NEWPORT, John; Mr.; 76

N242 NICHOLS, Julius; Mr.; 73

N242 NICHOLS, Susannah
TERRELL; Mrs.; 75

N630 NORWOOD, John; Mr.; 73,

80
@)
0350 ODOM, John; Mr.; 85
P

P~ , PINNON'S SWAMP; 80

P230 PICKETT, James, Mr.; 60

P300 PETTY, James; Mr.; 80

P350 PEYTON, Robert; Mr.; 79

P355 PUTNAM, ; Mr.; 80

P400 POWELL, JamesP; Mr.; 74

P400 POWELL, Rebecca
TERRELL; Mrs,; 74; 78

P450 PULLEN, Thomas; Mr.; 67

P500 PAIN, George; Mr.; 86

P536 PENDRAGON, Uther; King; 6

P536 POUNDERS, Owen; Mr.; 85

P540 PINNELL, John; Mr.; 70

P540 PINNELL, John; Mr.; 80

P620 DE PERCIE, Alice; Miss; 6

P620 DE PERCIE, Wm.; Mr.; 6

P620 PARK, ; Mr.; 81

P622 PARCUS, Elgiva; Mrs;; 6

P622 PARCUS, Harold; King; 6

P623 PRIEST, ADAMS; Mrs,; 56

P623 PRIEST, CRIGLER; Mrs.; 56

P623 PRIEST, RHONIMUS; Mrs,;
56

P623 PRIEST, TURLEY; Mrs; 56

P623 PRIEST, Aquillas R; Mr.; 56

P623 PRIEST, BarziliaE; Miss; 56

P623 PRIEST, Elizabeth RUSH;
Mrs.; 4; 56

P623 PRIEST, EugenelL; Mr.; 56

P623 PRIEST, George Didymus,
Mr.; 56

P623 PRIEST, George Stubblefield;
Mr.; 4; 56

P623 PRIEST, James Grigsby; Mr.;
56

P623 PRIEST, LaviniaVirginia;
Miss, 56

P623 PRIEST, Martin Rush; Mr.; 56

P623 PRIEST, Miranda E; Miss; 56

P623 PRIEST, Priscilla Frances;
Miss; 4; 56

P623 PRIEST, Victorene A; Miss; 56

P623 PRIEST, William W M; Mr;
56

P625 PERSON, Thomas, Mr.; 74

Q
R

R163 ROBERTS, Mourning; 85

R163 ROBERTSON, Amelia; Miss;
78

R200 RUSH, ARNOLD:; Mrs.; 56

R200 RUSH, BELL; Mrs.; 56

R200 RUSH, CAMPBELL; Mrs;;
56

R200 RUSH, CHRISTIAN; Mrs;;
56

R200 RUSH, MORROW; Mrs.; 56

R200 RUSH, Abigail; Miss; 56

R200 RUSH, Abigail TERRELL;
Mrs.; 4; 54; 55; 56; 57; 65; 66;
68; 69; 70; 71; 79

R200 RUSH, Alice; Miss; 56

R200 RUSH, Alice GRIGSBY;
Mrs.; 4

R200 RUSH, Benjamin; Mr.; 4; 56;
65; 66; 70; 79; 80

R200 RUSH, Charneck; Mr.; 83

R200 RUSH, Elizabeth; Miss; 4; 56;
65

R200 RUSH, Emeline; Miss; 56

R200 RUSH, Grigsby; Mr.; 4; 56

R200 RUSH, Jane; Miss; 56; 65

R200 RUSH, Martin; Mr.; 56

R200 RUSH, Mary STONE; Mrs,;
83

R200 RUSH, Miranda C; Miss; 56

R200 RUSH, Mollie; Miss; 56

R200 RUSH, Nancy; Miss, 56

R200 RUSH, Priscilla HARRIS;
Mrs.; 4; 56

R200 RUSH, Rebecca; Miss; 56

R200 RUSH, Sarah; Miss; 56; 68

R200 RUSH, Terrell; Mr.; 56

R200 RUSH, William; Mr.; 4; 55;
56; 65; 66; 69; 70; 71; 79

R200 RUSH, William Terrell; Mr.;
56

R253 REIGNWATER, John; Mr.; 77

R261 ROYCROFT, F; Mr.; 75

R262 ROGERS, David; Mr.; 85

R263 RICHARDSON, BarziliaE
PRIEST; Mrs.; 56

R520 RING, Sigurd; Prince; 6

R523 RANSDELL, Amanda Louise
TERRELL Crawford; Mrs.; 68

R523 RANSDELL, John Hickman;
Mr.; 68

R532 RAINDAKERS, John; Mr.; 80

R536 RAINWATER, John; Mr.; 80

S

S~ , SHOCCO/SHOCK'S CREEK;
80; 81

S132 SAVIDGE, Joshua; Mr.; 81

S143 SHEFFIELD, ; Mr.; 74

S152 DE SPENCER, Eleanor DE
CLARE; Mrs.; 5

S152 DE SPENCER, Hugh; Mr.; 5

S152 DE SPENCER, Isabdl; Miss; 5

S300 SCOTT, Jno.; Mr.; 76

S316 SEDBERRY, Nancy RUSH;
Mrs.; 56

S345 STALLIONS, Elias;, Mr.; 81

S350 STONE, Mary; Miss; 83

S350 SUTTON, Beaumont; Mr.; 62;
73; 80

S350 SUTTON, Christopher; Mr.; 77

S363 STROTHERS, Fras.; Mr.; 85

S363 STROUD, John; Mr.; 85

S363 STROUDER, Frances; Mr.; 62

400 SEAWALL, Benjamin; Mr.; 74

$452 SLINGEBAND, Roic; Prince;
6

460 SCHOLAR, Mary TERRELL;
Mrs.; 78

S520 SIMS, Benjamin; Mr.; 84

S524 SINGLETON, Gilly
TERRELL; Mrs.; 75

S530 SNOYDE, Sigurd; King; 6

S536 SANDERS, Wm.; Mr.; 77

S622 SERJEAUX, Elizabeth; Miss; 5

S622 SERJEAUX, Henry; Mr.; 5

S622 SERJEAUX, Philippa
FITZALEN; Mrs.; 5

T

T100 TABB, John; Mr.; 62

T100 TABB, William; Mr.; 73

T240 TYSSELL, Aaron; Mr.; 86

T260 TUCKER, Bennaman; Mr.; 77

T350 TATUM, Peter; Mr.; 74

T460 TAYLOR, Francis; Mr.; 74

T460 TAYLOR, Patience; Miss; 4

T516 DE TONEBRUGE, Addliza;
Miss; 6

T516 DE TONEBRUGE, Addliza
DE CLERMONT; Mrs.; 6

T516 DE TONEBRUGE, Gilbert;
Earl; 6

T520 THOMAS, John; Mr.; 79

T520 THOMAS, Matthew; Mr.; 70;
81

T520 THOMAS, William; Mr.; 62

U
Vv

V313 VIDFADMA, Ivan; King; 6

V600 DE VERE, Adeliza DE
TONEBRUGE; Mrs.; 6

V600 DE VERE, Alberic; Mr.; 6

V640 VERRELL, William; Dr.; 65;
79

\W



W231 WESTBROOK, Henry; Mr.;
74;77; 79

W231 WESTBROOK, Jenr.; Mr.; 74

W231 WESTBROOK, Ken'd; Mr.;
62

W252 WASHINGTON, Agnes
TERRELL; Mrs,; 55; 62; 63;
64; 83

W252 WASHINGTON, Robert; Mr.;
55; 63; 74; 83

W300 WYATT, Henry; Mr.; 1

W314 WHITFIELD, ; Mrs.; 67

W320 WATTS, Ewdll; Mr.; 75

W320 WATTS, James; Mr.; 75

W350 WOOTEN, Jeremiah; Mr.; 80

W362 WATERS, Susannah; Miss, 4;
53; 54; 55

W362 WEATHERS, Lillian
YOUNG; Mrs,; 78

W400 WALL, Nancy; Mrs.; 78

W414 WOOLFOLK, Joseph; Mr.; 76

W420 WELCH, W F; Mrs,; 75

W420 WILLIS, Robert; Mr.; 76

W425 WILSON, John; Mr.; 76

W426 WALKER, Davey; Mr.; 81

W452 WILLIAMS, Arthur; Mr.; 81

W452 WILLIAMS, Browning; Mr.;
62; 80; 83

W452 WILLIAMS, John; Mr.; 68;
69; 79

W623 WRIGHT, Joseph; Mr.; 77

WG630 WARD, ; Mr.; 85

W630 WARD, Benjamin; Mr.; 79

W632 WURTS, John S; Mr.; 4

W652 WARING, Francis, Mr.; 1; 57

X
Y

Y520 YOUNG, Lillian; Miss, 78
Z

SECTION TWO
TERRELLS

T64~ , TERRELL'SFORD; 62

T640 TYRRELL, RICHMOND;
Mrs.; 4

T640 TERRELL, CHILES; Mrs.;
55

T640 TERRELL, WOODSON;
Mrs.; 55

T640 TERRELL, DOUGLAS;
Mrs.; 55; 71

T640 TERRELL, Abigail; Miss; 4;
54. 55; 57; 65; 66; 68; 69; 70;
71; 79; 81; 82; 83

T640 TERRELL, Agnes; Miss; 55;
66; 83

T640 TERRELL, Agnes TERRELL;
Mrs.; 62; 63; 64

T640 TERRELL, Alice; Miss; 78

T640 TERRELL, AmandaLouise;
Miss; 68

T640 TERRELL, Amdia
ROBERTSON; Mrs.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Amdia; Miss; 78

T640 TERRELL, Ann; Miss; 55; 83;
84

T640 TERRELL, Ann MARTIN;
Mrs.; 55

T640 TYRRELL, Annor Anna
MARNEY; Mrs.; 5

T640 TERRELL, Anne; Miss; 62;
63; 64; 65,66

T640 TERRELL, Anneor Anng;
Miss; 58; 60

T640 TERRELL, Annie; Miss; 75

T640 TERRELL, Arthur; Mr.; 60

T640 TERRELL, Caniza; Miss; 66

T640 TERRELL, Cary Ann; Miss,

75

T640 TERRELL, Charles; Mr.; 62;
66

T640 TERRELL, David; Mr.; 55; 58;
82

T640 TERRELL, EH; Mr.; 1

T640 TYRRELL, Edward; Sir; 2

T640 TERRELL, Edward; Mr.; 60

T640 TYRRELL, Eleanor
MONTAGU; Mrs.; 4

T640 TERRELL, Eliz; Mrs.; 55

T640 TERRELL, Elizabeth RUSH;
Mrs.; 65

T640 TERRELL, Elizabeth
AXFORD; Mrs.; 54; 55

T640 TERRELL, Elizabeth; Miss;
55; 68; 75

T640 TERRELL, Elizabeth; Mrs.; 4;
62; 63; 74; 83

T640 TYRRELL, Elizabeth
BODLEY; Mrs.; 5

T640 TERRELL, Elizabeth CRAIG;
Mrs.; 65

T640 TYRRELL, Elizabeth LE
BRUN; Mrs.; 5

T640 TERRELL, Elizabeth FORT;
Mrs.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Emily; Miss; 71

T640 TERRELL, Emily Mary; Miss,
68

T640 TYRRELL, George; Mr.; 4

T640 TERRELL, Gilly; Miss; 75

T640 TERRELL, Halcot; Mr.; 55;
64; 66; 67; 68; 69; 83

T640 TERRELL, Halcot Hawkins;
Mr.; 67; 74; 83

T640 TERRELL, Hannah; Miss; 55;
62

T640 TERRELL, Harriett; Miss; 68;
71

T640 TERRELL, Harrison; Mr.; 75;
78

T640 TERRELL, Harry; Magjor; 55;
59

T640 TERRELL, Henderson; Mr.; 68

T640 TERRELL, Henry; Mr.; 54; 55;
58; 59; 60; 78; 82

T640 TERRELL, Hezekiah; Mr.; 4;
55; 57; 62; 63; 65; 66; 67; 68;
69; 70; 71; 72; 77; 79; 80; 81,
83

T640 TYRRELL, Hugh; Mr.; 5

T640 TYRRELL, Humphrey; Mr.; 4

T640 TYRRELL, JH; Mr.; 2

T640 TERRELL, James; Mr.; 1; 54;
55; 58; 59; 60; 61; 62; 66; 74;
75; 77

T640 TERRELL, James Madison;
Mr.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Jane; Miss; 60; 65;
78

T640 TYRRELL, Jane BALDWIN;
Mrs.; 4

T640 TYRRELL, Jane INGLETON;
Mrs.; 4

T640 TERRELL, Jefferson; Mr.; 74

T640 TERRELL, Jeptha; Mr.; 55;
62; 63; 64; 66; 71; 74; 75; 78;
83

T640 TERRELL, Jno.; Mr.; 76

T640 TERREL, Jno.; Mr.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Joel; Mr.; 54; 55;
58; 59; 60; 62; 64; 65; 66; 67;
74; 79

T640 TERRELL, John; Mr.; 4; 54;
55; 56; 58; 59; 60; 61; 62; 63;
64; 65; 66; 67; 71; 72; 73; 74,
75; 76; 77; 78; 80; 82; 83; 85

T640 TERRILL, John; Mr.; 73

T640 TERRELL, John Dabney; Mr.;
54; 58; 59; 60; 61; 67

T640 TERRELL, John Davis; Mr.;
54

T640 TERRELL, John Lewis; Mr.;
78

T640 TERRELL, Joseph; Mr.; 66

T640 TERRELL, Lo-Hannah; Miss;
63; 83

T640 TERRELL, Lohamar; Miss; 83

T640 TERRELL, Lucy JEFFRIES,;
Mrs.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Lucy; Miss; 65;
75; 78

T640 TERRELL, Madison; Mr.; 74

T640 TERRELL, Malinda; Miss; 65;
66

T640 TERRELL, Martha COOK;
Mrs.; 68

T640 TERRELL, Martha; Miss; 60

T640 TERRELL, Martha; Mrs.; 4; 60

T640 TERRELL, Martha FOWLER;
Mrs.; 78



T640 TERRELL, Mary; Miss; 78

T640 TERRELL, Mary A COOK;
Mrs.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Mill Elizabeth;
Ms.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Nancy
HOCKADAY ; Mrs.; 55; 71

T640 TERRELL, Nancy; Mrs,; 71;
75

T640 TERRELL, Nancy WALL;
Mrs.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Obadiah "Ki";
Mr.; 65; 75

T640 TERRELL, Obedience; Mrs;
64

T640 TERRELL, Patrick; Mr.; 71

T640 TERRELL, Phoebe MARTIN;
Mrs.; 4; 55; 66; 67; 68; 74; 80;
83; 84

T640 TERRELL, Polly; Miss; 71

T640 TERRELL, Polly Jackson;
Miss; 71

T640 TERRELL, Polly Moriah;
Miss; 71

T640 TERRELL, Rebecca; Miss; 75;
78

T640 TERRELL, Richmond; Mr.; 1;
2; 53; 57; 65; 66; 83; 86

T640 TERRELL, Robert; Mr.; 60; 66

T640 TYRRELL, Robert; Mr.; 4; 57;
58

T640 TERRELL, Sarah; Miss; 65;
75; 79

T640 TERRELL, Sarah
MAUDLIN?, Mrs.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Sarah MARTIN;
Mrs.; 83

T640 TERRELL, Sarah; Miss; 75

T640 TERRELL, Sarah; Mrs.; 61;
63; 76; 78

T640 TERRELL, Sidney; Miss; 65;
66

T640 TERRELL, Simon; Mr.; 71

T640 TERRELL, Solomon; Mr.; 74;
75; 78

T640 TERRELL, Susanna
DOUGLAS; Mrs.; 64; 71; 83

T640 TERRELL, Susannah
WATERS; Mrs.; 4; 53; 54; 55

T640 TERRELL, Susannah; Mrs.;
58; 59; 60; 82

T640 TERRELL, Susannah; Miss; 75

T640 TYRRELL, Thomas; Mr.; 1; 5

T640 TERRELL, Thomas; Mr.; 60;
75; 86

T640 TERRELL, Thomas Jefferson;
Mr.; 78

T640 TERRELL, Timothy; Mr.; 53;
55; 59; 60; 65; 66; 67; 69; 70;
71; 75; 83

T640 TYRRELL, Timothy; Sir; 1; 2;
53

T640 TERRELL, Toliver; Mr.; 64;
66

T640 TYRRELL, Walter; Sir; 1

T640 TYRRELL, William; Mr.; 2; 4;
5

T640 TERRELL, William; Mr.; 1; 2;
4; 53; 54; 55; 57; 58; 59; 60;
65; 66; 75; 76; 82

T640 TERRELL, William P; Mr_;
75; 78
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